
Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       1                                                                                                              November 17, 2020 

           

County of Inyo 
Board of Supervisors 

Board of Supervisors Room 
County Administrative Center 

224 North Edwards 
Independence, California 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Public Notices: (1)  In Compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting please contact the Clerk of the Board at 
(760) 878-0373.  (28 CFR 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the County to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility 
to this meeting. Should you because of a disability require appropriate alternative formatting of this agenda, please notify the Clerk of the Board 72 hours prior to the meeting to 
enable the County to make the agenda available in a reasonable alternative format. (Government Code Section 54954.2).  (2) If a writing, that is a public record relating to an 
agenda item for an open session of a regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors, is distributed less than 72 hours prior to the meeting, the writing shall be available for public 
inspection at the Office of the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, 224 N. Edwards, Independence, California and is available per Government Code § 54957.5(b)(1).               

Note: Historically the Board does break for lunch; the timing of a lunch break is made at the discretion of the Chairperson and at the Board’s convenience. 

 

November 17, 2020 - 8:30 AM 

  
 

 1. PUBLIC COMMENT 
  

 

CLOSED SESSION  
  

 

  2. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION – – Names of 
cases: LADWP v. Inyo County et al. (CA 5th District Court of Appeal Case No. 
F081389) and Inyo County v. LADWP (Kern County Sup. Ct. Case Nos. BCV-18-
101260-TSC, BCV-18-101261-TSC, and BCV-18-101262-TSC). 

  
 

  3. CONFERENCE WITH COUNTY’S LABOR NEGOTIATORS – Regarding employee 
organizations: Deputy Sheriff’s Association (DSA); Elected Officials Assistant 
Association (EOAA); Inyo County Correctional Officers Association (ICCOA); Inyo 
County Employees Association (ICEA); Inyo County Probation Peace Officers 
Association (ICPPOA); IHSS Workers; Law Enforcement Administrators’ Association 
(LEAA). Unrepresented employees: all. County designated representatives – 
Administrative Officer Clint Quilter, Assistant County Administrator Leslie Chapman, 
Deputy Personnel Director Sue Dishion, County Counsel Marshall Rudolph, Health 
and Human Services Director Marilyn Mann, and Chief Probation Officer Jeff 
Thomson. 

  

 
 

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC:  In order to minimize the spread of the COVID-19 virus, Governor Newsom has issued 
Executive Orders that temporarily suspend certain requirements of the Brown Act. Please be advised that the Board 
of Supervisors Chambers are closed to the public, the Board will be conducting its meetings exclusively online.  

Board Members and Staff will participate via Zoom webinar, accessible to the public at https://zoom.us/j/868254781. 
Individuals will be asked to provide their name and an email address in order to access the videoconference. 
Anyone who does not want to provide their email address may use the following generic, non-functioning address to 
gain access: donotreply@inyocounty.us.  

Anyone wishing to make either a general public comment or a comment on a specific agenda item prior to the 
meeting or as the item is being heard, may do so either in writing or by utilizing the Zoom "hand-waving feature" 
when appropriate during the meeting (the Chair will call on those who wish to speak). Written public comment, 
limited to 250 words or less, may be emailed to the Assistant Clerk of the Board at boardclerk@inyocounty.us. 
Your comments may or may not be read aloud, but all comments will be made a part of the record. Please make 
sure to submit a separate email for each item that you wish to comment upon. 

 

https://zoom.us/j/868254781
mailto:donotreply@inyocounty.us
mailto:boardclerk@inyocounty.us


Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       2                                                                                                              November 17, 2020 

OPEN SESSION (With the exception of timed items, all open-session items may be considered at any 
time and in any order during the meeting in the Board’s discretion.) 

  
 

10 A.M. 4. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
  

 

  5. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION AS REQUIRED BY LAW. 
  

 

  6. PUBLIC COMMENT 
  

 

  7. COUNTY DEPARTMENT REPORTS (Reports limited to two minutes) 
  

 

  8. COVID-19 STAFF UPDATE 
  

 

DEPARTMENTAL - PERSONNEL ACTIONS  
  

 

 9. Health & Human Services - Behavioral Health - Request Board find that, 
consistent with the adopted Authorized Position Review Policy: A) the availability of 
funding for one (1) part-time (BPAR) Progress House Residential Caregiver exists in 
the Behavioral Health budgets (no County General Funds), as certified by the HHS 
Director and concurred with by the County Administrator and Auditor-Controller; B) 
where internal candidates may meet the qualifications for the position, the vacancy 
could possibly be filled through an internal recruitment, but an open recruitment is 
more appropriate to ensure qualified applicants apply; and C) approve the hiring of 
one (1) part-time (BPAR) Progress House Residential Caregiver at Range 53PT 
($17.10/hr. - $20.82/hr.) per hour. 

  
 

 10. Health & Human Services - Health/Prevention - Request Board, contingent upon 
the approval of the ELC Cares Grant budget:  

A) approve the job description for Case Investigator;  
B) change the Authorized Strength in the HHS Public Health and Prevention 

Division by adding two (2) bilingual term-limited B-PAR Case Investigator 
positions at Range 60 with an expiration date of March 31, 2022;  

C) consistent with the adopted Authorized Position Review Policy, find that due 
to the time-limited nature of the positions it is unlikely they could be filled by 
internal candidates meeting the qualifications for the positions, so an open 
recruitment is more appropriate to ensure qualified applicants apply; and 

D) approve the hiring of two (2) bilingual term-limited Case Investigator B-PAR 
contract positions at Range 60 ($3,758 - $4,564), for a period ending in 
March 31, 2022. 

  
 

 11. Health & Human Services - Health/Prevention - Request Board, contingent upon 
the approval of the ELC Cares Grant budget:  

A) approve the job description for the COVID-19 Program and Grant Manager, a 
time-limited position;  

B) change the authorized strength in the HHS Public Health and Prevention 
Division by adding one (1) time-limited, contracted COVID-19 Program 
Manager position at Range 78 with an expiration date of March 31, 2022; 

C) consistent with the adopted Authorized Position Review Policy, find that due 
to the time-limited nature of the position it is unlikely that it could be filled by 
an internal candidate meeting the qualifications for the position, so an open 
recruitment is more appropriate to ensure qualified applicants apply;  



Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       3                                                                                                              November 17, 2020 

D) approve the hiring of one (1) time-limited COVID-19 Program and Grant 
Manager position at Range 78 ($5,741 - $6,976), for a contract period ending 
March 31, 2022. 

  
 

 12. Health & Human Services - Health/Prevention - Request Board, contingent upon 
the approval of the ELC Cares Grant budget:  

A) approve job descriptions for an Infection Preventionist and a Senior Infection 
Preventionist;  

B) change the authorized strength in the HHS Public Health and Prevention 
Division by adding two (2) term-limited contracted Infection Preventionist 
positions at Range 78 or Senior Infection Preventionist positions at Range 80 
with an expiration date of March 31, 2022;  

C) consistent with the adopted Authorized Positive Review policy, find that due 
to the time-limited nature of the positions it is unlikely they could be filled by 
internal candidates meeting the qualifications for the positions, so an open 
recruitment is more appropriate to ensure qualified applicants apply;  

D) approve the hiring of two (2) term-limited Infection Preventionist positions at 
Range 78 ($5,741 - $6,976) or two (2) term-limited Senior Infection 
Preventionist positions at Range 80 ($6,018 - $7,320), for a contract period 
ending March 31, 2022. 

  
 

 13. Health & Human Services - Health/Prevention - Request Board, contingent upon 
the approval of the ELC Cares Grant budget:  

A) approve the job description for the COVID-19 Response Coordinator, a term-
limited position;  

B) change the authorized strength in the HHS Public Health and Prevention 
Division by adding one (1) time-limited, COVID-19 Response Coordinator 
position at Range 63 with an expiration date of March 31, 2022;  

C) consistent with the adopted Authorized Position Review Policy, find that due 
to the time-limited nature of the position it is unlikely it could be filled by an 
internal candidate meeting the qualifications for the position, so an open 
recruitment is more appropriate to ensure qualified applicants apply;  

D) approve the hiring of one (1) time limited COVID-19 Response Coordinator 
position at Range 63 ($4,023 - $4,895), for a contract period ending March 
31, 2022. 

  
 

CONSENT AGENDA (Approval recommended by the County Administrator) 
  

 

 14. Agricultural Commissioner - ESWMA - Request Board: A) declare Malcolm Smith 
Motorsports of Riverside, CA the successful bidder for three Yamaha Kodiak 700 
ATVs per Bid No. 2020-04; and B) authorize the purchase of three (3) Yamaha 
Kodiak 700 ATVs from Malcolm Smith Motorsports of Riverside, CA in an amount 
not to exceed $28,919.88. 

  
 

 15. County Counsel - Request Board: A) receive the 2020 Conflict of Interest Code 
Biennial Reports from the Agriculture, Public Administration/Public Guardian, Public 
Works, and Risk Management departments; B) receive the 2020 Conflict of Interest 
Code Biennial Reports from the Lone Pine Community Services District and 
Southern Inyo Fire Protection District; and C) receive and approve the amended 
Conflict of Interest Code for the Public Works Department. 

  
 

 16. Public Works - Request Board: A) declare Statewide Traffic Safety and Signs, Inc. 
dba Statewide Safety Systems of Bakersfield, CA the successful bidder for Compact 



Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       4                                                                                                              November 17, 2020 

Radar Speed Trailers per Bid No. RD20-01; and B) authorize the purchase of four 
(4) 2020 Wanco Model WSDT3-S Compact Radar Speed Trailers from Statewide 
Safety Systems of Bakersfield, CA in an amount not to exceed $31,593.21. 

  
 

 17. Public Works - Request Board: A) declare Bishop Ford of Bishop, CA the 
successful bidder for F350 Trucks per Bid No. RD20-05; and B) authorize the 
purchase of two (2) new 2021 Regular Cab Ford F350 Trucks and two (2) new 2021 
SuperCab Ford F350 Trucks from Bishop Ford of Bishop, CA in an amount not to 
exceed $140,713.34. 

  
 

 18. Public Works - Request Board: A) declare Silver State Barricade and Sign of 
Sparks, NV the successful bidder for Compact Light Towers per Bid No. RD20-06; 
and B) authorize the purchase of two (2) new 2020 Wanco Model WLTT-4MM6K 
Compact Diesel Light Towers from Silver State Barricade and Sign of Sparks, NV in 
an amount not to exceed $22,024.54. 

  
 

 19. Public Works - Request Board: A) declare United Rentals of Ridgecrest, CA the 
successful bidder for Tow Brooms per Bid No. RD20-07; and B) authorize the 
purchase of two (2) new 2020 MB Model 53MH tow behind brooms from United 
Rentals of Ridgecrest, CA in an amount not to exceed $57,236.80. 

  
 

 20. Public Works - Request Board: A) declare Environmental Concepts of Tehachapi, 
CA the successful bidder for Asphaltic Emulsion per Bid No. RD20-08; and B) 
authorize the purchase of twelve (12) 250 gallon capacity totes of SS-1H asphaltic 
emulsion from Environmental Concepts of Tehachapi, CA in an amount not to 
exceed $21,108.75. 

  
 

 21. Public Works - Request Board: 

A) approve the purchase agreement between the County of Inyo and the Indian 
Wells Water District, a public agency, of Ridgecrest, CA for the purchase of a 
highway easement deed in an amount not to exceed $1,300, and authorize 
the Public Works Director to sign; 

B) approve the purchase agreement between the County of Inyo and Jose M. 
Nunez and Maria G. Nunez for the purchase of a highway easement deed in 
an amount not to exceed $1,000, and authorize the Public Works Director to 
sign; 

C) approve Resolution No. 2020-43, titled, “A Resolution of theBoardof 
Supervisors of the County of Inyo Accepting a Highway Easement Deed 
Across APN 033-490-02 for the Realignment of a Portion of Walker Creek 
Road" and authorize the Chairperson to sign; and 

D) approve Resolution No. 2020-44, titled, “A Resolution of the Board of 
Supervisors of the County of Inyo Accepting a Highway Easement Deed 
Across APN 033-400-10 for the Realignment of a Portion of Walker Creek 
Road" and authorize the Chairperson to sign. 

  
 

DEPARTMENTAL (To be considered at the Board's convenience) 
  

 

 22. Planning Department - Request the Board receive a presentation and provide input 
to Death Valley National Park's Superintendent Mike Reynolds and Management 
Assistant Abby Wines on proposed projects at Stovepipe Wells, Emigrant Junction, 
Mosaic Canyon, Devils Cornfield, and Mesquite Flat Sand Dunes. 

  
 



Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       5                                                                                                              November 17, 2020 

 23. Planning Department - Request Board receive a presentation from staff regarding a 
grant proposal from the Nature Conservancy to purchase property in Chicago Valley; 
review draft comment letters; provide comments; and authorize the Chairperson to 
sign. 

  
 

 24. Health & Human Services - Health/Prevention - Request Board approve the Fiscal 
Year 2020-2021 ELC Cares Budget #610390 as follows: increase estimated revenue 
in Federal Other (Revenue Code 4552) by $853,501 and increase appropriation in 
the following object codes (4/5th vote required):  
    •     Salaried employees (Object Code 5001) by $343,868;  
    •     Overtime (Object Code 5003) by $10,000;  
    •     Standby time (Object Code 5004) by $10,000;  
    •     Part time employees (Object Code 5012) by $83,244;  
    •     Retirement and Social Security (Object Code 5021) by $38,657;  
    •     PERS Retirement (Object Code 5022) by $38,937;  
    •     Medical Insurance (Object Code 5031) by $104,554;  
    •     Disability (Object code 5032) by $4,903;  
    •     Cell Phones (Object Code 5122) by $1,338;  
    •     Advertising (Object code 5263) by $1,000;  
    •     Professional Services (Object Code 5265) by $195,000;  
    •     General Operating (Object Code 5311) by $4,000;  
    •     Internal Charges (Object Code 5121) by $12,000; and  
    •     Office and Other Equipment (Object Code 5232) by $6,000. 

  
 

 25. Health & Human Services - Request Board ratify and approve a contract with Mono 
County, in an amount not to exceed $20,000, for Eastern Sierra Area Agency on 
Aging's Registered Dietitian (RD) to provide the mandated RD services for menu and 
nutrition services to Mono County seniors, and authorize the HHS/ESAAA Director to 
sign. 

  
 

 26. Sheriff - Request Board: A) amend the Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Jail CAD RMS 
Project Budget #022950 as follows: increase estimated revenue in Operating 
Transfers In Revenue Code No. 4998 by $25,000 and increase appropriation in 
Special and Professional Services Object Code 5265 by $25,000 (4/5ths vote 
required); B) amend the Fiscal Year 2020-20121 AB443 Fund #502709 as follows: 
increase appropriations Operating Transfer Out Object Code 5801 by $25,000 
(4/5ths vote required); and C) declare Sun Ridge Systems, Inc. of El Dorado Hills, 
CA a sole-source provider of RIMS CIBRS Reporting and authorize the issuance of a 
purchase order in an amount not to exceed $25,000, payable to Sun Ridge Systems, 
Inc. of El Dorado Hills, CA for RIMS CIBRS Reporting. 

  
 

 27. Sheriff - Request Board: A) amend the Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Sheriff Budget 
#022700 as follows: increase estimated revenue in Operating Transfers In Revenue 
Code No. 4998 by $12,614 and increase appropriation in Personal and Safety 
Equipment Object Code 5112 by $12,614 (4/5ths vote required); B) amend the Fiscal 
Year 2020-2021 AB443 Budget #502709 as follows: increase appropriation in 
Operating Transfers out Object Code No. 5801 by $12,614 (4/5ths vote required); C) 
declare Adamson Police Products of Los Alamitos, CA the successful bidder for 
vehicle docking station and tablet cases per Bid No. 2020-03; and D) authorize the 
purchase of 28 vehicle docking station and tablet cases with vehicle specific mounts 
from Adamson Police Products of Los Alamitos, CA in an amount not to exceed 
$12,614. 

  
 

 28. County Administrator - Emergency Services - Request Board approve 



Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       6                                                                                                              November 17, 2020 

Amendment No. 1 to the agreement between the County of Inyo and Kelley Williams 
for the provision of personal services as Emergency Services Manager, effective 
November 26, 2020, and authorize the County Administrator to sign. 

  
 

 29. Clerk of the Board - Request Board: A) confirm from among its members a 
delegate and alternate to the boards of directors for both the Rural County 
Representatives of California and the Golden State Finance Authority; and B) 
confirm a supervisor as delegate and a staff member as Inyo County's alternate to 
the Environmental Services Joint Powers Authority. 

  
 

 30. Clerk of the Board - Request Board approve the minutes of the regular Board of 
Supervisors meeting of November 3, 2020. 

  
 

COMMENT (Portion of the Agenda when the Board takes comment from the public and County staff) 
  

 

  31. PUBLIC COMMENT 
  

 

BOARD MEMBERS AND STAFF REPORTS  
  

 

 

 



County of Inyo

Health & Human Services - Behavioral Health
 

DEPARTMENTAL - PERSONNEL ACTIONS -
 ACTION REQUIRED

 
MEETING:  November 17, 2020 

FROM:  Lucy Vincent 
 
SUBJECT:  Request authorization to hire one part time (BPAR) Progress House Residential Caregiver in the 
HHS Behavioral Health Division. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board find that, consistent with the adopted Authorized Position Review Policy: A) the availability of 
funding for one (1) part-time (BPAR) Progress House Residential Caregiver exists in the Behavioral Health 
budgets (no County General Funds), as certified by the HHS Director and concurred with by the County 
Administrator and Auditor-Controller; B) where internal candidates may meet the qualifications for the position, 
the vacancy could possibly be filled through an internal recruitment, but an open recruitment is more appropriate 
to ensure qualified applicants apply; and C) approve the hiring of one (1) part-time (BPAR) Progress House 
Residential Caregiver at Range 53PT ($17.10/hr. - $20.82/hr.) per hour.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
A part time Residential Caregiver position in the Behavioral Health Division is vacant as an employee has 
resigned from the position effective November 11, 2020. This position is one of six authorized Residential 
Caregiver positions and is supervised by the Progress House Manager. Residential Caregivers provide close 
supervision, medication assistance, linkages to the community, supportive counseling and crisis intervention for 
the residents. They also assist with daily living skills and provision of meals and housekeeping of the facility. The 
Caregivers additionally provide the first line of communication as part of the mental health on-call response. 
Caregivers are able to provide assistance to resolve approximately two thirds of the calls received without the 
need to move to the second level of on-call response, resulting in reduced costs. Residential Caregivers must be 
able to de-escalate crises and assess and communicate effectively around behavioral health and health issues 
with consumers, professionals and partners. The part-time, 30 hour per week position ensures that there is 
flexibility in staffing to allow for adequate coverage during staff vacations, sick time and vacancies as well as 
providing a greater capacity for overlap between staff when the facility is fully staffed. 

The Department respectfully requests that your Board authorize the hiring of one part-time Residential Caregiver 
to fill the vacancy at Progress House. 

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
N/A
 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The Board could choose to not to fill this vacancy. This would result in continued difficulty in meeting the higher 
acuity of the program and will result in continued overtime costs being incurred, and resulting personnel 
challenges.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Behavioral Health is a division of Health and Human Services and works in partnership with multiple agencies 
such as probation, jail, law enforcement, and primary health in addition to all other HHS divisions.
 
FINANCING:
Progress House is funded through our federal Block Grant and State MHSA funds specifically targeting this 
population. This positon will be budgeted 100% in Mental Health (045200) in the salaries and benefits object 
codes. No County general funds.
 
ATTACHMENTS:

 
APPROVALS:
Lucy Vincent Created/Initiated - 11/3/2020
Melissa Best-Baker Approved - 11/3/2020
Meaghan McCamman Approved - 11/10/2020
Marilyn Mann Approved - 11/12/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 11/12/2020
Sue Dishion Approved - 11/12/2020
Amy Shepherd Approved - 11/12/2020
Marilyn Mann Final Approval - 11/12/2020



County of Inyo

Health & Human Services - Health/Prevention
 

DEPARTMENTAL - PERSONNEL ACTIONS -
 ACTION REQUIRED

 
MEETING:  November 17, 2020 

FROM:  Marilyn Mann 
 
SUBJECT:  Approve Case Investigator job description, authorize a change in authorized strength in Health and 
Human Services, and authorize the hiring of two B-Par term-limited Case Investigator contract positions.  
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board, contingent upon the approval of the ELC Cares Grant budget: 
A) approve the job description for Case Investigator; 
B) change the Authorized Strength in the HHS Public Health and Prevention Division by adding two (2) bilingual 
term-limited B-PAR Case Investigator positions at Range 60 with an expiration date of March 31, 2022; 
C) consistent with the adopted Authorized Position Review Policy, find that due to the time-limited nature of the 
positions it is unlikely they could be filled by internal candidates meeting the qualifications for the positions, so an 
open recruitment is more appropriate to ensure qualified applicants apply; and
D) approve the hiring of two (2) bilingual term-limited Case Investigator B-PAR contract positions at Range 60 
($3,758 - $4,564), for a period ending in March 31, 2022.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The Department received formal notification from the California Department of Public Health (CDPH) in August 2020 of a grant award of 
$1,610,178 for COVID-19 ELC (Epidemiology Laboratory Capacity) Enhancing Detection Funding.  The funding is intended to provide 
critical resources to local health departments to support a wide-range of COVID-19/SARS-CoV-2 testing and epidemiologic surveillance 
related activities.  The funding expands on prior COVID-19 awards (ELC CARES and ELC Community-based Surveillance) and spans six 
different strategies to build upon current investments and to better address our response to COVID-19 over the next 24 months.  

Inyo County is being allocated funding to address local needs in four of the six strategy areas, as two of the strategies are specific to 
counties that have public health laboratories. The Department has identified specific staffing and/or contracting options needed to meet the 
goals for each strategy.  The following is a summary of the strategies and related activities and staffing needs outlined in the plan 
submitted to CDPH by the County of Inyo.

Strategy 1: Enhance Laboratory, Surveillance and Other Workforce Capacity ($409,273.00)

Building the Department's workforce capacity to support the management of the COVID-19 related activities is critical.  The pandemic has 
had a significant workload impact on our small Public Health office, which has been managing the ever-changing COVID-19 environment, 
while still working to meet competing needs of other public health programs in the division.  Two primary staffing needs were identified 
under this strategy: a COVID-19 Program and Grant Manager and a COVID-19 Response Coordinator.  The Program and Grant Manager 
position would be responsible for providing leadership, program and grant management of all aspects of our COVID-19 response 
including, but not limited to training and hiring staff to improve epidemiologic capacity; building our contact tracing capacity, especially to 
our Latinx community, which is disproportionately impacted by the disease; increasing the capacity for timely data management, analysis, 
and reporting; ensuring our preparedness to implement a COVID-19 vaccine plan; build expertise for healthcare and community outbreak 
response, including infection prevention and control; provide oversight to all COVID-19 staff functions; and other COVID-19 related duties 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

as identified.  

The Department is also recommending that a COVID-19 Response Coordinator be hired as a term-limited contract employee.  This 
position would provide clerical and programmatic support to the COVID-19 response team, as well as coordinate activities and 
assignments of case investigators and contact tracers, including providing supervision and guidance.  The Department is recommending 
that both of these positions be hired as contract positions on a term-limited basis.  

Strategy 2 and Strategy 3: No Funding

Strategy 4: Improve Public Health Surveillance and Reporting of Electronic Health Data ($325,721.00)

Improving our local epidemiologic capacity to ensure effective surveillance; data reporting and analysis; and to lead local disease 
prevention and mitigation efforts is a key goal identified under this strategy. Milestones identified to meet this goal include:

 Contracting with an epidemiologist at 0.5 FTE 
 Hiring the above referenced COVID-19 Program and Grant Manager to lead COVID-19 response efforts
 Purchasing and implementing a HIPAA compliant document sharing and messaging system, as well as a case management 

system that effectively interfaces with CalCONNECT, the State’s contact tracing data management system.

Strategy 5: Use Laboratory Data to Enhance Investigation, Response and Prevention by Supporting California Connected, the State's 
comprehensive contact tracing program ($470,923.00)

COVID-19 has not impacted all ethnic groups equally and part of this funding will be used to address health equity issues across the 
County.  Statewide and locally, our Latinx community is disproportionately impacted by COVID-19. Improving our clinical capacity to 
provide more robust infection prevention outreach and education, as well as infection prevention technical assistance and oversight, 
particularly in high risk residential settings is critical. Additionally, ensuring robust contact tracing is occurring in order to promote 
containment is critical. It is important to coordinate these efforts with local tribal entities and health care providers.  To address this 
strategy the Department proposes the following:

 Hiring two term-limited Infection Preventionists/Senior Infection Preventionists.One position would be designated to act primarily 
as an infection preventionist, working with our health care partners and local residential facilities to coordinate effective infection 
control and prevention efforts.The second position will be used to provide additional clinical support to the COVID-19 response 
effort by providing additional infection prevention expertise, supporting efforts to enhance our testing capacity, and assisting in 
vaccine distribution planning and implementation.

 Hiring two term-limited, part-time Bilingual Case Investigators to assist in the contact investigation and follow-up with isolated and 
quarantined individuals, including ensuring concrete support needs of these individuals are identified and addressed.

 Contracting with local tribal and/or other community-based organizations to provide concrete supports that may be needed by 
those who are isolated or quarantined.

 

Given the time limited nature of these positions, the Department requests that the positions be hired as term-limited contract employees.  

Strategy 6: Coordinate and Engage with Partners including Skilled Nursing Facilities ($404,261.00)

Coordination of our response efforts with local health care partners and residential facilities where our most vulnerable population resides 
will be supported, in part, by strengthening our staff resource capacity with the positions outlined in the previous strategies. Our primary 
goals in this strategy include enhancing our capacity for testing and infection control and prevention of COVID-19/SARS-CoV-2.  In 
addition to strengthening our staff resource capacity, the Department proposes to :

 Contract with local community-based healthcare resources, including but not limited to hospitals, rural health centers, Indian 
health services, EMS (emergency medical services) agencies, pharmacies, and private providers to provide enhanced testing 
and/or vaccine services.

 Utilize the contracted, term-limited staff identified in Strategy 5 to provide robust infection prevention technical assistance; 
engaging with local, regional, and state public health partners to identify, implement and monitor strategies to mitigate COVID-19, 
particularly in residential living settings like our Skilled Nursing Facilities.

 Conduct outreach and education to enhance public information about disease prevention, including purchasing media spots in 
local and social media outlets. 

The Department’s Public Health division is responsible for not only our local response to the pandemic, but also for ongoing communicable 
disease surveillance and management, childhood immunization services, pregnancy testing and emergency contraception, flu vaccines, 
Tb testing, and other maternal and child health programming, as well as providing case management services for programs like California 
Children’s Services and CARES HIV programming.  The request for term-limited contract positions will allow for us to enhance our COVID-
19 response through more robust and focused team efforts, as well as ensure the continuity of other critical public health services. 

The Department respectfully requests your Board change Departments authorized strength as proposed, approve the proposed job 
description(s), and approve the hiring of the position(s) as term-limited, contract employee(s) contingent upon the approval of the ELC 
budget.



Agenda Request 
Page 3

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose not to approve the proposed positions, resulting in the Department working with 
California Department of Health to identify alternatives to implement the ELC grant programming.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
CDPH, local health care providers
 
FINANCING:
Federal funding.  These expenses will be claimed out of the newly created budget ELC #2 (610390) in the 
Salaries and Benefits object codes.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Case Investigator
 
APPROVALS:
Rhiannon Baker Created/Initiated - 11/2/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 11/2/2020
Marilyn Mann Approved - 11/9/2020
Melissa Best-Baker Approved - 11/9/2020
Sue Dishion Approved - 11/10/2020
Amy Shepherd Approved - 11/10/2020
Marilyn Mann Final Approval - 11/10/2020



INYO COUNTY
PERSONNEL SERVICES

P. O. BOX 249 (760) 878-0377 
INDEPENDENCE, CA 93526        FAX (760) 878-0465

AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER
(WOMEN, MINORITIES, AND DISABLED ARE ENCOURAGED TO APPLY)

ANNOUNCES AN OPEN RECRUITMENT FOR:

CASE INVESTIGATOR
Term-Limited Position Ending March 31, 2022

DEPARTMENT: Health and Human Services – Public Health Division
LOCATION: Countywide
SALARY: Range 60 $3758  $3941  $4139  $4350 $4564**

The above monthly salary is paid over 26 pay periods annually.

DEFINITION: To provide COVID-19 case investigation and contact tracing services under general supervision. The Case 
Investigator will interface with Inyo County COVID-19 positive individuals to help them recall everyone with whom they have 
had close contact during the timeframe while they may have been infectious, then contact the individuals to let them know of 
their potential exposure. Case Investigators will ensure compliance with state and federal regulations and completes data 
reporting to state databases.

This is a remote, time-limited position that is expected to last until approximately March 31, 2022, with the possibility of being 
extended.

CURRENT POSITION:  
Bilingual (Spanish/English) is a requirement for this Position.

ESSENTIAL JOB DUTIES:
Disease Investigation

 Communicate to community members infected with COVID-19 results and link those with symptoms to testing and care
 Provide information regarding treatment sources, necessary security requirements such as quarantine, and other procedures to 

reduce the spread or prevalence of the disease
 Provide consultation regarding symptoms, CDC recommendations and isolation requirements
 Conduct disease investigations, recommend containment or risk reduction measures
 Identify virus source and interview people with SARS CoV-2 infections and COVID-19 (i.e., disease) using motivational 

interviewing techniques. Identify who the infected individual has been in contact with in order to communicate potential 
exposure

 Make collateral contacts to obtain pertinent information concerning other individuals who may have been exposed or infected
 Communicate to contacts of their exposure, assessing their symptoms and risk and providing instructions for next steps. 

Provide contacts with information regarding disease prevention. If symptoms arise, advise to seek medical attention early
 Determine if the case is part of a larger group with a higher risk of transmission.
 Provide health education/risk reduction

Reporting
 Responsible for accurate, timely recordkeeping and following data entry protocols
 Gather and compile data in cooperation with various groups and agencies for use at national, State or local levels
 Identify and report trends identified through disease investigation
 Report outbreak clusters

Compliance
 Ensure state and federal compliance laws and regulations are met

Case Management



 Conducts ongoing client needs assessments and may verify needs by contacting other service providers
 Completes narrative reports regarding a client’s condition and services provided and/or recommended
 Enters data regarding case and client information and contacts into automated system(s)
 Makes client referrals to County and/or community resources
 Draws from experience and uses independent judgment to answer questions and provide education relating to COVID-19 

symptoms, testing, and isolation/ quarantine
 Maintains appropriate and timely records and documentation
 Maintains appropriate client service standards in compliance with federal, state, and local laws and regulations

EMPLOYMENT STANDARDS
Education/Experience:
Path 1 Two years of full-time experience performing paraprofessional or clerical duties AND the equivalent to completion of 
two years of college, including 15 semester or 22 quarter units in health care, social welfare, social/human service, psychology, 
sociology, or other social or behavioral science or related field. Applicants must submit their transcripts and/or detailed report 
of the units completed for relevant course work.
OR
Path 2 A Bachelor’s Degree in a closely related field
OR
Path 3 Four years of full-time experience performing increasing responsible paraprofessional or clerical duties

1Paraprofessional is defined as a person trained to assist a professional (including but not limited to social workers, therapists, doctors, 
teachers, and lawyers), but is not licensed to independently practice in the profession.

Knowledge of:
Appropriate professional interpersonal skills; correct English and Spanish usage, spelling, grammar, and punctuation; IBM- 
compatible computers and software; some Internet familiarity; use of media as a communication tool. Basic processes, systems, 
and regulations relevant to the division to which this position is assigned (Public Health); basic community resources useful to 
clients served; basic methods and attitudes involved in the care and support of the target client population; rapport building 
techniques; effective counseling and intervention techniques.

Ability to:
Entry/training level: Compose basic business letters and professional correspondence; provide professional telephone and in-
person responses to members of the public; operate office equipment such as photocopy machine, facsimile machine, 
typewriter, computer; make public presentations occasionally; balance and prioritize multiple tasks at the same time; prepare 
accurate and timely reports; think quickly and respond appropriately to unexpected patient behavior; establish and maintain 
effective working relations with co-workers, outside organizations, and the public; perform detailed procedures with accuracy 
and efficiency, and maintain confidential information in accordance with legal standards and/or County regulations; report 
specific indications of need medical services; interview persons to obtain a variety of information applicable to the provision of 
health and human services; understand and accept differences in human behavior resulting from cultural, economic or other 
forms of deprivation; effectively instruct adults, including those with physical and mental disabilities, in isolation and 
quarantine requirements.

Typical Physical Requirements: While performing the essential functions of this job class, the employee is regularly required 
to: use hands and fingers to operate a variety of office equipment.

Typical Working Conditions:
Assigned work is performed remotely. Incumbent will have continuous contact with clients, County staff, management, general 
public and outside organizations/agencies.

SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS: May be required to work flexible hours including evenings and weekends on some occasions; 
must possess a valid operator’s license issued by the State Department of Motor Vehicles. Must successfully complete a pre-
employment background investigation. Your position may be required to serve as a Disaster Service Worker during a County 
emergency. Consistent attendance is an essential function of the position.
SELECTION: Selection procedures will be determined by the number and qualifications of applicants and may include a 
qualification screening, skills examination, and oral interview.

APPLICATION: This recruitment will remain open until position has been filled. Applications must be received in the 
Inyo County Personnel Office, P.O. Box 249, Independence, CA 93526. Must apply on Inyo County application form. A cover 



letter and/or resume will be accepted in addition to the application form but will not serve as a substitute for a completed 
application. It is not acceptable to complete the application with statements like “See/Refer to Resume” or “See 
Attached”. Incomplete applications will not be processed.

REASONABLE ACCOMMODATION FOR INDIVIDUALS WITH QUALIFYING DISABILITIES: Inyo County will
make reasonable efforts in the examination process on a case-by-case basis to accommodate persons with disabilities. If you have special 
needs, please contact (760) 878-0377 prior to the examination process.

CITIZENSHIP/IMMIGRATION STATUS: Inyo County hires only U.S. citizens and lawfully authorized non-citizens in accordance with 
the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986.

The County of Inyo has work sites located throughout Inyo County in the Owens Valley (Independence, Bishop, Lone Pine, Big Pine, and 
Olancha) and Death Valley area (Death Valley, Shoshone, and Tecopa). All County positions are considered Countywide positions. 
Positions may be temporarily or permanently reassigned to a work site based upon the needs of the County.



County of Inyo

Health & Human Services - Health/Prevention
 

DEPARTMENTAL - PERSONNEL ACTIONS -
 ACTION REQUIRED

 
MEETING:  November 17, 2020 

FROM:  Marilyn Mann 
 
SUBJECT:  Approve job description for COVID-19 Program and Grant Manager, change the authorized strength 
in Health and Human Services, and authorize the hiring of a term-limited COVID-19 Program and Grant Manager 
contract position. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board, contingent upon the approval of the ELC Cares Grant budget: 
A) approve the job description for the COVID-19 Program and Grant Manager, a time-limited position; 
B) change the authorized strength in the HHS Public Health and Prevention Division by adding one (1) time-
limited, contracted COVID-19 Program Manager position at Range 78 with an expiration date of March 31, 2022; 
C) consistent with the adopted Authorized Position Review Policy, find that due to the time-limited nature of the 
position it is unlikely that it could be filled by an internal candidate meeting the qualifications for the position, so 
an open recruitment is more appropriate to ensure qualified applicants apply; 
D) approve the hiring of one (1) time-limited COVID-19 Program and Grant Manager position at Range 78 
($5,741 - $6,976), for a contract period ending March 31, 2022.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The Department received formal notification from the California Department of Public Health (CDPH) in August 2020 of a grant award of 
$1,610,178 for COVID-19 ELC (Epidemiology Laboratory Capacity) Enhancing Detection Funding.  The funding is intended to provide 
critical resources to local health departments to support a wide-range of COVID-19/SARS-CoV-2 testing and epidemiologic surveillance 
related activities.  The funding expands on prior COVID-19 awards (ELC CARES and ELC Community-based Surveillance) and spans six 
different strategies to build upon current investments and to better address our response to COVID-19 over the next 24 months.  

Inyo County is being allocated funding to address local needs in four of the six strategy areas, as two of the strategies are specific to 
counties that have public health laboratories. The Department has identified specific staffing and/or contracting options needed to meet the 
goals for each strategy.  The following is a summary of the strategies and related activities and staffing needs outlined in the plan 
submitted to CDPH by the County of Inyo.

Strategy 1: Enhance Laboratory, Surveillance and Other Workforce Capacity ($409,273.00)

Building the Department's workforce capacity to support the management of the COVID-19 related activities is critical.  The pandemic has 
had a significant workload impact on our small Public Health office, which has been managing the ever-changing COVID-19 environment, 
while still working to meet competing needs of other public health programs in the division.  Two primary staffing needs were identified 
under this strategy: a COVID-19 Program and Grant Manager and a COVID-19 Response Coordinator.  The Program and Grant Manager 
position would be responsible for providing leadership, program and grant management of all aspects of our COVID-19 response 
including, but not limited to training and hiring staff to improve epidemiologic capacity; building our contact tracing capacity, especially to 
our Latinx community, which is disproportionately impacted by the disease; increasing the capacity for timely data management, analysis, 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

and reporting; ensuring our preparedness to implement a COVID-19 vaccine plan; build expertise for healthcare and community outbreak 
response, including infection prevention and control; provide oversight to all COVID-19 staff functions; and other COVID-19 related duties 
as identified.  

The Department is also recommending that a COVID-19 Response Coordinator be hired as a term-limited contract employee.  This 
position would provide clerical and programmatic support to the COVID-19 response team, as well as coordinate activities and 
assignments of case investigators and contact tracers, including providing supervision and guidance.  The Department is recommending 
that both of these positions be hired as contract positions on a term-limited basis.  

Strategy 2 and Strategy 3: No Funding

Strategy 4: Improve Public Health Surveillance and Reporting of Electronic Health Data ($325,721.00)

Improving our local epidemiologic capacity to ensure effective surveillance; data reporting and analysis; and to lead local disease 
prevention and mitigation efforts is a key goal identified under this strategy. Milestones identified to meet this goal include:

 Contracting with an epidemiologist at 0.5 FTE 
 Hiring the above referenced COVID-19 Program and Grant Manager to lead COVID-19 response efforts
 Purchasing and implementing a HIPAA compliant document sharing and messaging system, as well as a case management 

system that effectively interfaces with CalCONNECT, the State’s contact tracing data management system.

 

Strategy 5: Use Laboratory Data to Enhance Investigation, Response and Prevention by Supporting California Connected, the State's 
comprehensive contact tracing program ($470,923.00)

COVID-19 has not impacted all ethnic groups equally and part of this funding will be used to address health equity issues across the 
County.  Statewide and locally, our Latinx community is disproportionately impacted by COVID-19. Improving our clinical capacity to 
provide more robust infection prevention outreach and education, as well as infection prevention technical assistance and oversight, 
particularly in high risk residential settings is critical. Additionally, ensuring robust contact tracing is occurring in order to promote 
containment is critical. It is important to coordinate these efforts with local tribal entities and health care providers.  To address this 
strategy the Department proposes the following: 

 Hiring two term-limited Infection Preventionists/Senior Infection Preventionists.One position would be designated to act primarily 
as an infection preventionist, working with our health care partners and local residential facilities to coordinate effective infection 
control and prevention efforts.The second position will be used to provide additional clinical support to the COVID-19 response 
effort by providing additional infection prevention expertise, supporting efforts to enhance our testing capacity, and assisting in 
vaccine distribution planning and implementation.

 Hiring two term-limited, part-time Bilingual Case Investigators to assist in the contact investigation and follow-up with isolated and 
quarantined individuals, including ensuring concrete support needs of these individuals are identified and addressed.

 Contracting with local tribal and/or other community-based organizations to provide concrete supports that may be needed by 
those who are isolated or quarantined.

Given the time limited nature of these positions, the Department requests that the positions be hired as term-limited contract employees.  

Strategy 6: Coordinate and Engage with Partners including Skilled Nursing Facilities ($404,261.00)

 

Coordination of our response efforts with local health care partners and residential facilities where our most vulnerable population resides 
will be supported, in part, by strengthening our staff resource capacity with the positions outlined in the previous strategies. Our primary 
goals in this strategy include enhancing our capacity for testing and infection control and prevention of COVID-19/SARS-CoV-2.  In 
addition to strengthening our staff resource capacity, the Department proposes to :

 Contract with local community-based healthcare resources, including but not limited to hospitals, rural health centers, Indian 
health services, EMS (emergency medical services) agencies, pharmacies, and private providers to provide enhanced testing 
and/or vaccine services.

 Utilize the contracted, term-limited staff identified in Strategy 5 to provide robust infection prevention technical assistance; 
engaging with local, regional, and state public health partners to identify, implement and monitor strategies to mitigate COVID-19, 
particularly in residential living settings like our Skilled Nursing Facilities.

 Conduct outreach and education to enhance public information about disease prevention, including purchasing media spots in 
local and social media outlets. 

The Department’s Public Health division is responsible for not only our local response to the pandemic, but also for ongoing communicable 
disease surveillance and management, childhood immunization services, pregnancy testing and emergency contraception, flu vaccines, 
Tb testing, and other maternal and child health programming, as well as providing case management services for programs like California 
Children’s Services and CARES HIV programming.  The request for term-limited contract positions will allow for us to enhance our COVID-



Agenda Request 
Page 3

19 response through more robust and focused team efforts, as well as ensure the continuity of other critical public health services. 

The Department respectfully requests your Board change Departments authorized strength as proposed, approve the proposed job 
description(s), and approve the hiring of the position(s) as term-limited, contract employee(s) contingent upon the approval of the ELC 
budget.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose not to approve the proposed positions, resulting in the Department working with 
California Department of Health to identify alternatives to implement the ELC grant programming.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
CDPH, local health care providers and other community partners
 
FINANCING:
Federal funding. These expenses will be claimed out of the newly created budget ELC #2 (610390) in the 
Salaries and Benefits object codes.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Draft COVID-19 Program and Grant Manager
 
APPROVALS:
Rhiannon Baker Created/Initiated - 11/2/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 11/2/2020
Marilyn Mann Approved - 11/9/2020
Melissa Best-Baker Approved - 11/9/2020
Sue Dishion Approved - 11/10/2020
Amy Shepherd Approved - 11/10/2020
Marilyn Mann Final Approval - 11/10/2020



12/2010

 

 

ANNOUNCES AN OPEN RECRUITMENT FOR:

COVID-19 PROGRAM GRANT MANAGER
Term-Limited Position Ending March 31, 2022

DEPARTMENT: Health and Human Services, Public Health & Prevention Division
LOCATION: County-wide
SALARY: Range 78   
TERM:  

**BENEFITS:    

DEFINITION:   Under supervision of the Deputy Director of Public Health and Prevention, provide planning, 
administration, management oversight and supervision of Public Health projects and activities. Will develop 
and implement processes, work with program staff, and assist leadership with defining and prioritizing strategic 
projects related to COVID-19.

This position requires contract and project management, interpersonal, and communication skills. A successful 
candidate will need to feel comfortable working with a wide range of stakeholders within a complex system. 
The position analyzes low, moderate to high risk new or existing opportunities designated as part of their 
contract and grant portfolio. Contract and Grant activity may be non-routine and require development of 
specialized contract and grant vehicles and techniques to accomplish business goals and objectives. Under the 
leadership of Deputy Director of Public Health, client management will be at the forefront and will require but 
not be limited to training, supporting and directing project teams throughout the contract or grant lifecycle.

ESSENTIAL JOB DUTIES:  Plans, directs, and administers the implementation and ongoing management of 
public health COVID-19 response and recovery activities, in the most cost-effective and services-oriented 
manner; facilitates and provides positive leadership to program, projects, multi-disciplinary team members and 
contractors. Directs, coordinates, and monitors the development of designated programs’ work plans, priorities, 
and evaluation criteria; assigns work activities, projects, and teams; performs the most critical and sensitive 
professional representation, facilitation, and negotiation tasks; monitors and evaluates work in progress and at 
completion to ensure compliance with program and project criteria. Identifies programmatic goals, objectives, 
priorities, and activities to be accomplished consistent with the principle of public health, and in a Health and 
Human Services context; develops strategies for the successful achievement of those goals, objectives, and 
priorities; directs and coordinates the implementation of accepted strategies and plans. Identifies and develops 
new and/or modified programs that would promote and enhance public health response; initiates, oversees, and 
participates in the necessary research and analysis to justify the appropriateness of implementing the proposed 
program, project, intervention or policy. Assists in development of the budget for assigned programs by 
preparing cost estimates and projections, and performing ongoing monitoring of expenditures to ensure 
compliance with budget provisions; reviews simple to complex solicitations and prepares with the assistance of 
project teams, specialized and/or non-routine response for proposals, bids, and contract or grant modifications; 
develops negotiation strategy to include the negotiation of terms and conditions of awards, establishing 

INYO COUNTY 
PERSONNEL SERVICES
P. O. BOX 249
INDEPENDENCE, CA  93526 

(760)  878-0377
FAX (760)  878-0465

AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER
(WOMEN, MINORITIES, AND DISABLED ARE ENCOURAGED TO APPLY)



12/2010

compliance and evaluation criteria, and reporting requirements; analyzes contract or grant requirements, special 
provisions, terms and conditions to ensure compliance with appropriate laws, regulations, and county policies 
and procedures, oversee and monitor subcontracts and all deliverables.

Prepare notes, reports and other documents for monitoring and reporting activities as required. Other related 
duties may be assigned.

EMPLOYMENT STANDARDS
Education/Experience:  
At least five (5) years of progressively responsible professional or clinical experience including at least three (3) 
years of administrative and management/supervisory responsibility. A bachelor’s degree or higher with 
emphasis in public health, social science, and/or business/public administration or other applicable field is 
preferred.

Knowledge of:  Program development, administration, and service delivery related to the program or programs 
in the area of responsibility; current management and leadership techniques, performance appraisal methods, 
and public administration; knowledge of planning and scheduling techniques to ensure that timelines and 
schedules are established appropriately, modified as needed, and adhered to; knowledge of budgeting principles 
in order to develop, manage, and/or track budgets, budget allocations, and expenditures; public and private 
community resources

Ability to: Engage in outreach and information activities to identify and secure funding for projects and 
programs; provide effective leadership and supervision; act as a liaison between staff and administration; 
communicate effectively in written and oral forms; establish and maintain cooperative working relationships with 
multi-system partners and as part of the multidisciplinary team; manage multiple tasks and respond appropriately 
to crisis situations; utilize supervision effectively and ensure communication up and down the supervision chain. 
Work with various cultural and ethnic groups in a tactful and effective manner.



County of Inyo

Health & Human Services - Health/Prevention
 

DEPARTMENTAL - PERSONNEL ACTIONS -
 ACTION REQUIRED

 
MEETING:  November 17, 2020 

FROM:  Marilyn Mann 
 
SUBJECT:  Approve the job descriptions for an Infection Preventionist and Senior Infection Preventionist, 
change the authorized strength in Health and Human Services, and authorize the hiring of two term-limited 
Infection Preventionist or Senior Preventionist contract positions. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board, contingent upon the approval of the ELC Cares Grant budget: 
A) approve job descriptions for an Infection Preventionist and a Senior Infection Preventionist; 
B) change the authorized strength in the HHS Public Health and Prevention Division by adding two (2) term-
limited contracted Infection Preventionist positions at Range 78 or Senior Infection Preventionist positions at 
Range 80 with an expiration date of March 31, 2022; 
C) consistent with the adopted Authorized Positive Review policy, find that due to the time-limited nature of the 
positions it is unlikely they could be filled by internal candidates meeting the qualifications for the positions, so an 
open recruitment is more appropriate to ensure qualified applicants apply; 
D) approve the hiring of two (2) term-limited Infection Preventionist positions at Range 78 ($5,741 - $6,976) or 
two (2) term-limited Senior Infection Preventionist positions at Range 80 ($6,018 - $7,320), for a contract period 
ending March 31, 2022.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The Department received formal notification from the California Department of Public Health (CDPH) in August 2020 of a grant award of 
$1,610,178 for COVID-19 ELC (Epidemiology Laboratory Capacity) Enhancing Detection Funding.  The funding is intended to provide 
critical resources to local health departments to support a wide-range of COVID-19/SARS-CoV-2 testing and epidemiologic surveillance 
related activities.  The funding expands on prior COVID-19 awards (ELC CARES and ELC Community-based Surveillance) and spans six 
different strategies to build upon current investments and to better address our response to COVID-19 over the next 24 months.  

Inyo County is being allocated funding to address local needs in four of the six strategy areas, as two of the strategies are specific to 
counties that have public health laboratories. The Department has identified specific staffing and/or contracting options needed to meet the 
goals for each strategy.  The following is a summary of the strategies and related activities and staffing needs outlined in the plan 
submitted to CDPH by the County of Inyo.

Strategy 1: Enhance Laboratory, Surveillance and Other Workforce Capacity ($409,273.00)

Building the Department's workforce capacity to support the management of the COVID-19 related activities is critical.  The pandemic has 
had a significant workload impact on our small Public Health office, which has been managing the ever-changing COVID-19 environment, 
while still working to meet competing needs of other public health programs in the division.  Two primary staffing needs were identified 
under this strategy: a COVID-19 Program and Grant Manager and a COVID-19 Response Coordinator.  The Program and Grant Manager 
position would be responsible for providing leadership, program and grant management of all aspects of our COVID-19 response 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

including, but not limited to training and hiring staff to improve epidemiologic capacity; building our contact tracing capacity, especially to 
our Latinx community, which is disproportionately impacted by the disease; increasing the capacity for timely data management, analysis, 
and reporting; ensuring our preparedness to implement a COVID-19 vaccine plan; build expertise for healthcare and community outbreak 
response, including infection prevention and control; provide oversight to all COVID-19 staff functions; and other COVID-19 related duties 
as identified.  

The Department is also recommending that a COVID-19 Response Coordinator be hired as a term-limited contract employee.  This 
position would provide clerical and programmatic support to the COVID-19 response team, as well as coordinate activities and 
assignments of case investigators and contact tracers, including providing supervision and guidance.  The Department is recommending 
that both of these positions be hired as contract positions on a term-limited basis.  

Strategy 2 and Strategy 3: No Funding

Strategy 4: Improve Public Health Surveillance and Reporting of Electronic Health Data ($325,721.00)

Improving our local epidemiologic capacity to ensure effective surveillance; data reporting and analysis; and to lead local disease 
prevention and mitigation efforts is a key goal identified under this strategy. Milestones identified to meet this goal include:
• Contracting with an epidemiologist at 0.5 FTE 
• Hiring the above referenced COVID-19 Program and Grant Manager to lead COVID-19 response efforts
• Purchasing and implementing a HIPAA compliant document sharing and messaging system, as well as a case management system that 
effectively interfaces with CalCONNECT, the State’s contact tracing data management system.

Strategy 5: Use Laboratory Data to Enhance Investigation, Response and Prevention by Supporting California Connected, the State's 
comprehensive contact tracing program ($470,923.00)

COVID-19 has not impacted all ethnic groups equally and part of this funding will be used to address health equity issues across the 
County.  Statewide and locally, our Latinx community is disproportionately impacted by COVID-19. Improving our clinical capacity to 
provide more robust infection prevention outreach and education, as well as infection prevention technical assistance and oversight, 
particularly in high risk residential settings is critical. Additionally, ensuring robust contact tracing is occurring in order to promote 
containment is critical. It is important to coordinate these efforts with local tribal entities and health care providers.  To address this 
strategy the Department proposes the following: 
• Hiring two term-limited Infection Preventionists/Senior Infection Preventionists.  One position would be designated to act primarily as an 
infection preventionist, working with our health care partners and local residential facilities to coordinate effective infection control and 
prevention efforts.  The second position will be used to provide additional clinical support to the COVID-19 response effort by providing 
additional infection prevention expertise, supporting efforts to enhance our testing capacity, and assisting in vaccine distribution planning 
and implementation.  
• Hiring two term-limited, part-time Bilingual Case Investigators to assist in the contact investigation and follow-up with isolated and 
quarantined individuals, including ensuring concrete support needs of these individuals are identified and addressed.
• Contracting with local tribal and/or other community-based organizations to provide concrete supports that may be needed by those who 
are isolated or quarantined.  

Given the time limited nature of these positions, the Department requests that the positions be hired as term-limited contract employees.  

Strategy 6: Coordinate and Engage with Partners including Skilled Nursing Facilities ($404,261.00)

Coordination of our response efforts with local health care partners and residential facilities where our most vulnerable population resides 
will be supported, in part, by strengthening our staff resource capacity with the positions outlined in the previous strategies. Our primary 
goals in this strategy include enhancing our capacity for testing and infection control and prevention of COVID-19/SARS-CoV-2.  In 
addition to strengthening our staff resource capacity, the Department proposes to :
• Contract with local community-based healthcare resources, including but not limited to hospitals, rural health centers, Indian health 
services, EMS (emergency medical services) agencies, pharmacies, and private providers to provide enhanced testing and/or vaccine 
services.
• Utilize the contracted, term-limited staff identified in Strategy 5 to provide robust infection prevention technical assistance; engaging with 
local, regional, and state public health partners to identify, implement and monitor strategies to mitigate COVID-19, particularly in 
residential living settings like our Skilled Nursing Facilities.  
• Conduct outreach and education to enhance public information about disease prevention, including purchasing media spots in local and 
social media outlets. 

The Department’s Public Health division is responsible for not only our local response to the pandemic, but also for ongoing communicable 
disease surveillance and management, childhood immunization services, pregnancy testing and emergency contraception, flu vaccines, 
Tb testing, and other maternal and child health programming, as well as providing case management services for programs like California 
Children’s Services and CARES HIV programming.  The request for term-limited contract positions will allow for us to enhance our COVID-
19 response through more robust and focused team efforts, as well as ensure the continuity of other critical public health services.  

The Department respectfully requests your Board change Departments authorized strength as proposed, approve the proposed job 
description(s), and approve the hiring of the position(s) as term-limited, contract employee(s) contingent upon the approval of the ELC 



Agenda Request 
Page 3

budget.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose not to approve the proposed positions, resulting in the Department working with 
California Department of Health to identify alternatives to implement the ELC grant programming.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
CDBH, local health care providers and community partners
 
FINANCING:
Federal funding. These expenses will be claimed out of the newly created budget ELC #2 (610390) in the 
Salaries and Benefits object codes.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Infection Preventionist
 
APPROVALS:
Rhiannon Baker Created/Initiated - 11/9/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 11/9/2020
Marilyn Mann Approved - 11/9/2020
Melissa Best-Baker Approved - 11/9/2020
Sue Dishion Approved - 11/10/2020
Amy Shepherd Approved - 11/10/2020
Marilyn Mann Final Approval - 11/10/2020



INYO COUNTY 
PERSONNEL SERVICES
P. o. Box 249
INDEPENDENCE, CA 93526

(760) 878-0377
FAX (760) 878-0465

AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER
(WOMEN, MINORITIES, AND DISABLED ARE ENCOURAGED TO APPLY)

ANNOUNCES AN OPEN RECRUITMENT FOR:

INFECTION PREVENTIONIST/SENIOR INFECTION 
PREVENTIONIST

Term-Limited Position Ending March 31, 2022

Application Deadline: OPEN UNTIL FILLED

DEPARTMENT: 
LOCATION: 
SALARY:

Health & Human Services 
Independence, CA
Infection Preventionist   Range 78 $5628 $5904 $6204 $6514 $6839
Senior Infection Preventionist Range 80 $5900 $6199 $6512 $6834 $7176
 (The above monthly salaries are paid over 26 annual pay periods.)

**BENEF IT. : CalPERS Retirement System : Existing ("Classic") CalPERS members as of January l,  2013, (2% at 55) -  Inyo County 
pays employee contribution for current CalPERS members; New CalPERS members hired after January 1, 2013 (2% at 62) will be required 
to pay employee portion of retirement. Medical Plan - Inyo County pays a portion of employee and dependent monthly premium on PERS 
medical plans; 100% of employee and dependent monthly premium paid for dental and vision; $20,000 term life insurance policy on 
employee. Vacation - 10 days per year during the first three years; 15 days per year after three years; l additional day for each  year of 
service after ten years to a maximum of25 days per year. Sick leave- 15 days per year. Flex (personal days)- 5 days per fiscal year. Paid 
holidays - 11 per year.

DEFINITION: An Infection Preventionist is responsible for the effective direction, management, and operation 
of the infection prevention program, including the education of staff members and independent practitioners, and 
consulting with the state department of health.  The IP utilizes evidence-based practices such as those published 
by the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC).  Additionally, the IP ensures compliance with 
regulations and requirements from the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS), The Joint 
Commission (TJC), other accrediting healthcare organizations, and state regulations. This individual is 
accountable for decreasing the incidence and transmission of infectious diseases throughout the community.

A Senior Infection Preventionist brings additional public health knowledge and experience to the position with 
licensure as a public health nurse.

ESSENTIAL JOB DUTIES: Partners with the Deputy Director of Public Health and Inyo County Public Health 
to develop, implement and evaluate annual infection prevention goals and action plan; partners with facility 
leaders, physicians, local, state, and national agencies on activities related to infection prevention; accountable for 
surveillance and investigations of healthcare acquired and community acquired infections; reviews relevant public 
health issues to integrate into practice and implements infection prevention education programs; systematically 
collects and analyzes healthcare-associated infection data using epidemiological principles and statistical methods 
to identify trends and risk factors; measures progress and sustainability of prevention efforts over time; maintains 
a system for reporting possible incidents of communicable diseases to local, state, or national agencies as required, 
maintain current knowledge of federal, state, and local regulations and ensure that the healthcare leaders are 
informed of appropriate issues; understand and comply with infection control, safety, and OSHA procedures and 
regulations



KNOWLEDGE OF: Microbiology, epidemiology, infectious diseases, sterilization and disinfection, medication, 
vaccine and antibiotic usage, statistics, and regulatory requirements. Possess strong skills in the areas of 
consultation, teaching, data analysis & interpretation, and project management



EMPLOYMENT STANDARDS:

Infection Preventionist: Must possess a current California Registered Nurse License with a broad level of experience 
including critical care, emergency medicine, and medical/surgical nursing.

Senior Infection Preventionist: Must possess a current California Registered Nurse License with a Bachelor’s 
Degree in an applied clinical science (Nursing, Medical Technology, Microbiology, Public Health).



County of Inyo

Health & Human Services - Health/Prevention
 

DEPARTMENTAL - PERSONNEL ACTIONS -
 ACTION REQUIRED

 
MEETING:  November 17, 2020 

FROM:  Marilyn Mann 
 
SUBJECT:  Approve the job description for a COVID-19 Response Coordinator, change the authorized strength 
in Health and Human Services, and authorize the hiring of a term-limited COVID-19 Response Coordinator 
contract position. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board, contingent upon the approval of the ELC Cares Grant budget: 
A) approve the job description for the COVID-19 Response Coordinator, a term-limited position; 
B) change the authorized strength in the HHS Public Health and Prevention Division by adding one (1) time-
limited, COVID-19 Response Coordinator position at Range 63 with an expiration date of March 31, 2022; 
C) consistent with the adopted Authorized Position Review Policy, find that due to the time-limited nature of the 
position it is unlikely it could be filled by an internal candidate meeting the qualifications for the position, so an 
open recruitment is more appropriate to ensure qualified applicants apply; 
D) approve the hiring of one (1) time limited COVID-19 Response Coordinator position at Range 63 ($4,023 - 
$4,895), for a contract period ending March 31, 2022.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The Department received formal notification from the California Department of Public Health (CDPH) in August 
2020 of a grant award of $1,610,178 for COVID-19 ELC (Epidemiology Laboratory Capacity) Enhancing 
Detection Funding.  The funding is intended to provide critical resources to local health departments to support a 
wide-range of COVID-19/SARS-CoV-2 testing and epidemiologic surveillance related activities.  The funding 
expands on prior COVID-19 awards (ELC CARES and ELC Community-based Surveillance) and spans six 
different strategies to build upon current investments and to better address our response to COVID-19 over the 
next 24 months.  

Inyo County is being allocated funding to address local needs in four of the six strategy areas, as two of the 
strategies are specific to counties that have public health laboratories. The Department has identified specific 
staffing and/or contracting options needed to meet the goals for each strategy.  The following is a summary of the 
strategies and related activities and staffing needs outlined in the plan submitted to CDPH by the County of Inyo.

Strategy 1: Enhance Laboratory, Surveillance and Other Workforce Capacity ($409,273.00)

Building the Department's workforce capacity to support the management of the COVID-19 related activities is 
critical.  The pandemic has had a significant workload impact on our small Public Health office, which has been 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

managing the ever-changing COVID-19 environment, while still working to meet competing needs of other public 
health programs in the division.  Two primary staffing needs were identified under this strategy: a COVID-19 
Program and Grant Manager and a COVID-19 Response Coordinator.  The Program and Grant Manager position 
would be responsible for providing leadership, program and grant management of all aspects of our COVID-19 
response including, but not limited to training and hiring staff to improve epidemiologic capacity; building our 
contact tracing capacity, especially to our Latinx community, which is disproportionately impacted by the disease; 
increasing the capacity for timely data management, analysis, and reporting; ensuring our preparedness to 
implement a COVID-19 vaccine plan; build expertise for healthcare and community outbreak response, including 
infection prevention and control; provide oversight to all COVID-19 staff functions; and other COVID-19 related 
duties as identified.  

The Department is also recommending that a COVID-19 Response Coordinator be hired as a term-limited 
contract employee.  This position would provide clerical and programmatic support to the COVID-19 response 
team, as well as coordinate activities and assignments of case investigators and contact tracers, including 
providing supervision and guidance.  The Department is recommending that both of these positions be hired as 
contract positions on a term-limited basis.  

Strategy 2 and Strategy 3: No Funding

Strategy 4: Improve Public Health Surveillance and Reporting of Electronic Health Data ($325,721.00)

Improving our local epidemiologic capacity to ensure effective surveillance; data reporting and analysis; and to 
lead local disease prevention and mitigation efforts is a key goal identified under this strategy. Milestones 
identified to meet this goal include:
• Contracting with an epidemiologist at 0.5 FTE 
• Hiring the above referenced COVID-19 Program and Grant Manager to lead COVID-19 response efforts
• Purchasing and implementing a HIPAA compliant document sharing and messaging system, as well as a case 
management system that effectively interfaces with CalCONNECT, the State’s contact tracing data management 
system.

Strategy 5: Use Laboratory Data to Enhance Investigation, Response and Prevention by Supporting California 
Connected, the State's comprehensive contact tracing program ($470,923.00)

COVID-19 has not impacted all ethnic groups equally and part of this funding will be used to address health 
equity issues across the County.  Statewide and locally, our Latinx community is disproportionately impacted by 
COVID-19. Improving our clinical capacity to provide more robust infection prevention outreach and education, as 
well as infection prevention technical assistance and oversight, particularly in high risk residential settings is 
critical. Additionally, ensuring robust contact tracing is occurring in order to promote containment is critical. It is 
important to coordinate these efforts with local tribal entities and health care providers.  To address this strategy 
the Department proposes the following: 
• Hiring two term-limited Infection Preventionists/Senior Infection Preventionists.  One position would be 
designated to act primarily as an infection preventionist, working with our health care partners and local 
residential facilities to coordinate effective infection control and prevention efforts.  The second position will be 
used to provide additional clinical support to the COVID-19 response effort by providing additional infection 
prevention expertise, supporting efforts to enhance our testing capacity, and assisting in vaccine distribution 
planning and implementation.  
• Hiring two term-limited, part-time Bilingual Case Investigators to assist in the contact investigation and follow-up 
with isolated and quarantined individuals, including ensuring concrete support needs of these individuals are 
identified and addressed.
• Contracting with local tribal and/or other community-based organizations to provide concrete supports that may 
be needed by those who are isolated or quarantined.  

Given the time limited nature of these positions, the Department requests that the positions be hired as term-
limited contract employees.  



Agenda Request 
Page 3

Strategy 6: Coordinate and Engage with Partners including Skilled Nursing Facilities ($404,261.00)

Coordination of our response efforts with local health care partners and residential facilities where our most 
vulnerable population resides will be supported, in part, by strengthening our staff resource capacity with the 
positions outlined in the previous strategies. Our primary goals in this strategy include enhancing our capacity for 
testing and infection control and prevention of COVID-19/SARS-CoV-2.  In addition to strengthening our staff 
resource capacity, the Department proposes to :
• Contract with local community-based healthcare resources, including but not limited to hospitals, rural health 
centers, Indian health services, EMS (emergency medical services) agencies, pharmacies, and private providers 
to provide enhanced testing and/or vaccine services.
• Utilize the contracted, term-limited staff identified in Strategy 5 to provide robust infection prevention technical 
assistance; engaging with local, regional, and state public health partners to identify, implement and monitor 
strategies to mitigate COVID-19, particularly in residential living settings like our Skilled Nursing Facilities.  
• Conduct outreach and education to enhance public information about disease prevention, including purchasing 
media spots in local and social media outlets. 

The Department’s Public Health division is responsible for not only our local response to the pandemic, but also 
for ongoing communicable disease surveillance and management, childhood immunization services, pregnancy 
testing and emergency contraception, flu vaccines, Tb testing, and other maternal and child health programming, 
as well as providing case management services for programs like California Children’s Services and CARES HIV 
programming.  The request for term-limited contract positions will allow for us to enhance our COVID-19 
response through more robust and focused team efforts, as well as ensure the continuity of other critical public 
health services.  

The Department respectfully requests your Board change Departments authorized strength as proposed, 
approve the proposed job description(s), and approve the hiring of the position(s) as term-limited, contract 
employee(s) contingent upon the approval of the ELC budget.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose not to approve the proposed positions, resulting in the Department working with 
California Department of Health to identify alternatives to implement the ELC grant programming.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
CDPH, local health providers and community partners 
 
FINANCING:
Federal funding. These expenses will be claimed out of the newly created budget ELC #2 (610390) in the 
Salaries and Benefits object codes.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Draft COVID-19 Response Coorinator
 
APPROVALS:
Rhiannon Baker Created/Initiated - 11/3/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 11/3/2020
Marilyn Mann Approved - 11/9/2020



Agenda Request 
Page 4

Melissa Best-Baker Approved - 11/9/2020
Sue Dishion Approved - 11/10/2020
Amy Shepherd Approved - 11/10/2020
Marilyn Mann Final Approval - 11/10/2020



 

 
ANNOUNCES A CLOSED COUNTYWIDE RECRUITMENT FOR:

COVID-19 RESPONSE COORDINATOR
Term-Limited Position Ending March 31, 2022

 

DEPARTMENT: Health & Human Services – Fiscal 
LOCATION: Countywide 
SALARY: COVID-19 Response Assistant: Range 63  

(The above monthly salary is paid over 26 pay periods annually.)

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS

COVID-19 Response Assistant has strong interpersonal skills and can work well independently and as a part of a team. They 
adapt quickly to new technologies and systems and is flexible towards changes in processes and instructions. They can prioritize 
tasks and manage stress in a fast-paced environment. They possess a strong attention to detail and excellent time-management 
skills. These candidates are confident in asking questions and taking initiative to solve problems. 

Employees at this level are expected to be fully qualified and able to perform difficult and responsible office support work within 
the framework of established work methods and procedures and to use independent judgment in selecting and applying specific 
references, procedures, sequences and alternatives to different work situations.

EXAMPLES OF ESSENTIAL DUTIES – Duties may include, but are not limited to, the following:

 Receives and responds to COVID-19 related phone calls, voice mail messages, and emails
 Prepares and distributes daily and weekly reports, maintaining time and attendance records, establishes and 

maintains logs and files
 Prepares, updates, and maintains computerized spreadsheets and databases on a personal computer for 

tracking, investigation, and statistical recordkeeping purposes; prepares and completes periodic and 
requested reports summarizing a variety of information and COVID-19 records.

 Develops, implements, and oversees procedures, work processes, and tracking/documentation systems to 
support assigned administrative responsibilities; designs appropriate worksheets, computerized and hard 
copy filing systems, verification and double-checking tools and mechanisms, and other processes.

 Researches, interprets and/or applies various guidelines related to COVID-19 response and administrative 
support functions.

 Receives, compiles, verifies, and inputs a variety of data/documentation into appropriate spreadsheets, 
databases, and information systems; reconfigures data for reporting and statistical purposes.

 Receives and processes documents from the public, other agencies, and other County departments relative to 
and in accordance with protocols of assigned program/operation, division, or department.

 Interfaces with and monitors contracts with County departments/vendors as assigned.
 Receives/screens department mail and manages correspondence and administrative work flow in the 

department manager's office while ensuring deadlines are met.
 Performs a variety of clerical and specialized duties in support of assigned work unit as necessary and upon 

request; performs related duties as assigned.
 Coordinates and schedules fixed site and mobile clinics
 May supervise clerical or paraprofessional staff, such as contact tracing team.

INYO COUNTY 
PERSONNEL SERVICES
P. O. BOX 249
INDEPENDENCE, CA  93526 

(760)  878-0377
FAX (760)  878-0465

AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER
(WOMEN, MINORITIES, AND DISABLED ARE ENCOURAGED TO APPLY)



EMPLOYMENT STANDARDS:   

Knowledge of:
 The application and operation of common word processing and spreadsheet software used on personal computers.
 Standard and accepted office procedures, practices, systems and equipment as applied to accounting and financial
 recordkeeping operations.
 Standard and accepted English usage, spelling, grammar, and punctuation.
 Standard and accepted record keeping systems and filing processes of assigned work unit.
 Standard and accepted statistical and mathematical calculations.
 Personal computer and office equipment necessary for successful job performance.
 Business letter and report writing.
 Standard and accepted administrative practices in governmental agencies.
 Standard and accepted personnel management practices.

Skill to:
 Analyze assignments received, differentiate between two or three sets of information, identify and interpret 
 general  department information, know, observe, problem solve, remember, understand, explain, and count.
 Learn, interpret, and apply relevant laws, codes, guidelines, and regulations affecting assigned areas of  

responsibility in response to COVID-19
 Understand and carry out both oral and written directions in an independent manner.
 Learn the organization and operations of the County, assigned work unit, and of outside agencies as necessary to 

assume 
 assigned responsibilities.
 Organize duties and determine priorities in order to meet assigned deadlines for self and others.
 Interpret, explain and apply operating policies, rules and procedures related to assigned functions.
 Compile and maintain extensive records and files.
 Word process/type at a speed necessary for successful job performance.
 Operate and utilize a variety of office equipment including computer hardware and software as assigned.
 Analyze situations carefully and adopt effective courses of action.
 Recognize issues of a confidential nature and handle appropriately.
 Plan, organize and schedule priorities for self and others in an effective and timely manner.
 Work with various cultural and ethnic groups in a tactful and effective manner.
 Communicate clearly, concisely, and tactfully in both oral and written forms.
 Meet the physical requirements necessary to perform required duties in a safe and effective manner for self and 

others.
 Establish and maintain effective working relationships with those contacted in the performance of assigned duties.

Minimum Qualifications:
High school graduate or equivalent with three years of full-time experience performing significant and progressively 
responsible office clerical duties that has included providing direct support to management level staff  



County of Inyo

Agricultural Commissioner - ESWMA
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  November 17, 2020 

FROM:  Nathan Reade 
 
SUBJECT:  Eastern Sierra Weed Management Area (ESWMA) Approval of BID NO. 2020-04 for three (3) All-
Terrain Vehicles (ATV) for FY 2020/2021 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board: A) declare Malcolm Smith Motorsports of Riverside, CA the successful bidder for three Yamaha 
Kodiak 700 ATVs per Bid No. 2020-04; and B) authorize the purchase of three (3) Yamaha Kodiak 700 ATVs 
from Malcolm Smith Motorsports of Riverside, CA in an amount not to exceed $28,919.88.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
If approved the purchase of the three (3) Yamaha Kodiak 700 ATVs from Malcolm Smith Motorsports of 
Riverside, Ca will be replacing three (3) ATVs per the ESWMA’s policy of cyclically replacing ATVs for fleet 
reliability and maintenance cost deferment. ESWMA received the following bids:

 Malcolm Smith Motorsports, Riverside CA: $28,919.88 (corrected amount)
The Bid (No. 2020-04) submitted by Malcolm Smith Motorsports, Riverside CA incorrectly states that they will 
provide two (2) ATVs at $9,639.96 per ATV for a total of $19,279.92. Malcolm Smith Motorsports, Riverside CA 
has amended this in a letter (see supporting documentation) stating that they will provide three (3) ATVs at 
$9,639.96 for a total of $28,919.88.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
The Eastern Sierra Weed Management Area (ESWMA) uses ATVs to access, monitor, and treat difficult to 
access noxious weed sites. ATV's are used in place of the use of manual backpack sprayers in areas where 
backpack sprayers are not practical. ESWMA's policy is to cyclically replace older ATVs to ensure fleet reliability 
and minimize maintenance costs as funds allow.
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Not approving this request, possibly limiting the scope of weed abatement treatment and preventing ESWMA 
from fulfilling contracts with State and local/other agencies. This alternative would limit the scope of noxious 
weed abatement treatments, allowing for an increase in noxious weed populations in Inyo and Mono Counties, 
and potentially preclude this program from fulfilling commitments to current grant funding requirements and 
contracted work for other agencies.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:



Agenda Request 
Page 2

none
 
FINANCING:
ESWMA, budget Unit 621300, is a non-general fund department. Funds for this program are provided through 
various agreements and contracts. Adequate funds in ESWMA budget unit 621300, expense object code 5650 
have been allocated in the department’s requested FY 20/21 budget for this request.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. ATV Bid
2. Malcolm Smith Motor Sports Correction Letter
 
APPROVALS:
Alexandra Barbella Created/Initiated - 11/4/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 11/6/2020
Nathan Reade Approved - 11/9/2020
Alexandra Barbella Approved - 11/9/2020
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 11/9/2020
Amy Shepherd Approved - 11/9/2020
Nathan Reade Final Approval - 11/10/2020



INYO COLTNTY PURCHASING
P.O. DRAWERN

INDEPENDENCE, CA 93526
(760) 878_0293

October 28,2020

Akexandra Barbella
Inyo County ESWMA

Alexandra,

Thank you.

Enclosed is one (1) proposal received for bid 2020-04ATV units for your review andevaluation' As you ate aware, each bid will need to be evaluated with scrutiny. product,
customer service' installation, warranty, auailabilityldelivery, experience & reputation as wellas cost' are all factors to be considered before making the final determination of who will beawarded a bid' once you have determined the chosei vendor, you will need to prepare anAgenda Request to place before the Board of Supervisorc io, approval (for purchases greaterthan $10'000)' It it PI understanding that due to covlD there are very few units availableuntil after the first of the year. If yotidid not receive the respolse or price range you had hopedin this bid process, you may chooie to re-bid after the first of the year. please feel free tocontact the vendors should you have any questions in regards to their proposals.

--Z )---.2
Emma Bills, Assistant purchasing Agent



COUNTY OF INYO BID TABULATION

Project Title & Bid No.
tQ

Bid Opening Date Location: Counf.v Arlnin Center

I tm Srui-'t'r,rI"Y\a,t
.S

$n,x1,1)

2.

I

J.

I

8.

9.

Basa Bid Bitl Adtlitive
A

Bitl.4dtlitive
B

Bit Additive
C

Total Buse
Bkl $nil

Addlthtes

Bt flDE R .\'..4 \il-. Bond

Brian \nderson
SALES I4ANAGER
[utta"., on@malcolmsnrith'com

951-687-1500

Smith

7t9!.1 I rrrjra6.: A',,i. . Rrverside. 
' 

l'' 
(')?'')()4 ' lvrvw irraicoltrr:'rrrtir corrl

l0

Opened By:

Present:



BrD NO. 2020-04 PAGE 1 OF 4

couNTY oF |NYO (760) 878_0293

MATERIAL OR SERVICES
TO BE DELIVERED TO: ESWMA

218 Wye Road
BISHOP, CA 93514

RETURN BIDS TO INYO COUNTY BOARD CLERK
COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE CENTER
224N. EDWARDS STREET
P.O. BOX N
INDEPENDENCE, CA 93526

BID OPENING, DATE'

Prices quoted FOB DESTTNATTON UNLESS OTHERWTSE STATED.
MAKE YOUR BID OR QUOTATIONS IN THE SPACE PROVIDED ON THE ATTACHED SHEETS.
IMPORTANT: Bid must be sealed with bid number as indicated above on the outside of the envelope.
Read the lnstructions and conditions before making your Bid or euotation.

INSTRUCTIONS & CONDITIONS

1' All prices and notations must be typewritten or written in ink. No erasures permitted. Mistakes may be crossed out and
corrections made adjacent and must be initialed in ink by person signing quotation.

2' State brand or make on each item. lf quoting an article exactly as specified, the words "or equal" must be stricken out by thebidder' lf quoting on other than make, modej or brand specified, the manufactureis name and the catalogue number must begiven, or descriptive cut and information attached to the quotations.

3. Quote on each item separately. Prices should be stated in units specified herein.

4' Each quotation must be in a separate sealed envelope with bid number, on outside, and must be submitted to the lnyo County
Board Clerk, not later than the hour and day specified hereon, at whic_h iime it will b'e fublicly opened and read. A properly
addressed and bid numbered envelope, without postage, is included for your convenibnce.

5' Time of delivery is a part of the consideration and must be stated in definite terms, and must be adhered to. lf time varies on
different items, the bidder shall so state in the column provided, opposite each item.

6. Terms of less than 10 days for cash discount will be considered as net.

7 ' All quotations must be signed with the Firm's name and by a responsible officer or employee. Obligations assumed by such
signature must be fulfilled.

8' No charge for packing, drayage, or for any other purpose will be allowed over and above the prices quoted on this sheet.

9' The right is reserved, unless othenrvise stated, to accept or reject any or all quotations, or any part thereof, either separately or
as a whole, or, to waive any informality in a bid.

10' Samples of items, when required, must be furnished free of expense to the County of lnyo and if not destroyed by tests, will
upon request be returned at the bidders expense.

11 ln case of default by the vendor, the County of lnyo may procure the articles or service from other sources.

12' Cost of transportation, handling, and/or inspection on deliveries or offers for delivery, which do not meet the specifications will
be for the account of the vendor.

1 3' The vendor shall hold the County of lnyo,. its officers, agents, servants and employees, harmless from liability of any nature or
kind on account of use of any copyrighted, or uncopyrighted composition, secret [.""rs, patented or unpatented invention,
article or appliance furnished or used under this quotation.

14. The vendor will not be held liable for failure or delay in fulfillment if hindered or prevented by fire, sfikes, or Acts of God.



BID NO. 2020-04 pAGE 2 OF 4
15' Quotations are subject to acceptance at any time within 30 days after opening same, unless othenrvise stipulated.

16' Verify your quotations before submission as they cannot be withdrawn, or corrected, after being opened.

17' Return this sheet whether or not you quote a price. lf you do not quote, state your reason, othena/se your name may beremoved from the mailing list.

18' Amounts paid for transportation of property to the county of lnyo are exempt from Federal rransportation Tax. An exemptioncertificate is not required where the shipping papers tno*in" lonsignee ai County;ii;yo, as such papers may be acceptedby the carrier as proof of the exempt charaCter of tne equipment.

19' There is a contracting preference of 5o/o for small business enterprises and g% for local businesses available for this Requestfor Proposals (bids)' To be eligible for the preterences, a smarl ousinu.. 
"nieiprir" 

ru.t ,uorit proof of state registration as a

3u|5#!Jhi,1*il,?rto',li'' 
buiiness must provide ceftlfication that it is a rocar'business as oenn6o oy rnyo Counly code

For questions reg-aldlng specifications, please contract Alexandra Barbella, project
Coordinator at (760) 873-3SZB.

THE FOLLOWING MUST BE FILLED IN BY THE BIDDER IN SUBMITTING HIS BID:

tl? T/ztt.i-/u4 kve n
Y- tV€,fst u->L C/+

rry & STATE)

To the county of lnyo: we.(l) hereby agree to furnish the articres and/or services,
at the prices and terms stated subject to the instructions and conditions set forth
in this bid.

DATED AT

/o /3
20 Z-O

CASH DISCOUNT TERMS

NAME OF COMpANy il-t rX LLo L St,r, rrt .ytosarsf

NAME OF COMPANY REPRESENTATIVE (PR 3 u-, a=r*J A..Sr.

COMPANY REPRESENTATIVE SIGNATUR

STREET ADDRESS 'req
Ert, a, t-t-rt-l-<- 4xr Iz^

clTY AND STATE g-.'c EZI r r> € <1..\ nz f7>

PHONE NUMBER q{l 6 &}' t ?c>c-->

FAX NUMBER



BtD NO. 2020-04

Three (3) Arv units with the foilowing specifications;

ENGINE
Engine Type: 4-stroke Twin Cylinder
Displacement: At least 686cc
Fuel System: Electronic Fuel Injection
Cooling: Liquid

DRIVETRAIN
Transmissior/Final Drive : Automatic cvr IVLAI/R/p; Shaft
Drive System: On-Demand True AWD/2WD

PAGE 3 OF 4

SUSPENSION
Front Suspension:
Rear Suspension:

BRAKES
Front/Rear Brakes

TIRES/WIIEELS
Front Tires / Model:
Rear Tires / Model:
Wheels: Stock

At least Double Wishbone 7,' Travel
At least Double Wishbone, 9" Travel

Dual hydraulic disc (front)/ multi-disk wet brake (back)

25 x8-12
25 x 10-12

DIMENSIONS
Wheelbase: About 49" (124.46 cm)
Dry Weight: Not to exceed 659lbs
Ground Clearance: At least 10,, - 12

CAPACITIES
Fuel Capacity:4-8 gal
Rack Capacity: At least l l0 lb (front) / l9g lb (rear)
Hitch Towing Rating: At least l,322lb
Hitch/Type: Standard/2" Receiver

FEATURES
Skid Plates: Front/Rear A-Arm Skid plates, Frame Skid plate
Capacity: Rack Extensions Front and Rear
Lighting: Standard
Steering: Standard non-power steering
Instrumentation: default
Other: Heavy Duty Rear Grab Bar

BIDDER SHALL INCLUDE COMPLETE FACTORY SPECIFICATIONS OF ITEM BID



BtD NO. 2020-04

lndicate any exception to the bid:

Subtotal

Safes Tax (7.75o/o)

Shipping Charge

Total

PAGE 4 OF 4

IR 2-+-o7 q3

Bid prices will remain valid and in effect through t\ 2-Z '7ar2o

Clerk of

m
Qullter, Admlnlthtlve Olflcer

Delivery will be made in _days after receipt of order

lnyo County, Calllornla



Malcolm Smith Motorsports

lnyo County

224 N Edwards St
lndependence CA 93526

7599 lndiana Ave
Riverside CA 92504

951 687 1300

Buyer's Order

H w c 760_878_0293
I hereby agree to purchase the following unit(s) from you under the terms and conditions specified. Delivery is to be made
as soon as possible. lt is agreed, however, that neither you nor the manufacturer will be liable for failure to make delivery.

Unit lnformation
New/U Year Make Model Serial No. Stock No. Dealer Retail Price

Date 1011312020
Order No.
Salesman BrianAnderson

New 2021 YAMAHA KODIAK 7OO

Options

Notes:
* PRICE INCLUDES DELIVERY TO INDEPENDENCE CA

-- PRICE IS FOR EACH VEHICLE

Trade lnformation

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX Y123456 $7,299.00

$zManufacturer Base Price
Manufacturer Options (M)
Manufacturer Suoq Ret Frice
Dealer Retail Pride"

7$
$

.299.
$0.

,29s.

00
00
00
00
00

7,299.
$0.

Customer Price
Freioht
Dealer Added Options (D)
Customer Added Options
Dealer Prep / Rigging Fee

$7,299.
$682.

$0
$o

$798.

00
00
00
00
00

Unit Subtotal
Reoistration Fee
(noT used)
California Tire Fee
(not used)
bank Feo
Credit Card Fees
Service Contract
Prooertv / Liabilitv
Tire and Wheel '
Pre-Paid Maintenance
Electronic Veh Reo
Vch Elec Doc Feetos
GAP
GPS Theft Deterrent
Battery
Title/Licensei Reqistration Fees
Document or Adirinistration Fees
Sales Tax

$8,779.00
$33.00

$0.00
$z.oo
$0.00
$o.oo
$o.oo
$0.00
$o.oo
$0.00
$o.oo

$30.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$o.oo

s19.00
$es.oo

$686.96
Cash Price
Trade Allowance
Payoff

639$s .96
.00
.00

$0
$o

Net Trade
let Sale (Cash Price - Net Trade)
Credit Life lnsurance
Accident & Disability

90.00
$9,639.96

$0 00
$0.00

Sub Total (Net Sate + Other Charges)
Cash Down'Pavment
Amount to PaflFinance

Monthly Payment of $0.00 For 0 Months at 0.00% lnterest
NOTICETOBUYER: (1)Donotsignthisagreementbeforeyoureaditorifitcontainsanvblankspacestobefilledin. (2)youareentifledtoacomotetetv
l9-t::-T:llt ,_(_31,lt 

you default in the, performance of your obligations under this agreemeni, the vehicle may be repossesidd ano you may be subject'to suii
Ue u!,)para rndebtedness evidenced by this agreement.
TRADE-IN NOTICE: Customer respr6sents lhat all trade in units described above are free of all liens and encumbrances ex(;\riiiliApp;;i;d'c"r;ofi"n.t".ii6".t 

rates and monthty payment are approximate and may vary from those determined by the tunt4rt "t 
not"d

$I 639

$9,
$o

639

96
00
96

filled in copy of this
and liability for

Thank You for You Business!



KOdiak 700 TfiP FEATURES

1. Big Bore Engine Built to Tackle the Real World
Combining big bore power without losing an ounce of comlort, the

Kodiak@ 700 locuses on midrange power with gearing that is

designed lor low rpm cruising and a smooth-running m0t0r mounts,

all thanks to its 700-class engine.

2. High-Performance Ultramatic@ Transmission
Yamaha's class-leading transmission combines immediate response

with advanced features like natural, all-wheel engine braking for

control on conlidence. And, of course, the Ultramatic@ is proven to
be the most durable ATV kansmission on the market.

3. Trail-Ready Chassis
With plenty of ground clearance, the Kodiak 700 tackles rough terrain

with ease. Wide-arc A-arms and lull-body skid plates ensure the

Kodiak 700 is able to handle anything the farm or trail can throw at it.

4. Compact Ergonomics
To ease overall feel and handling and b00st rider confidence, the

Kodiak 700 combines big b0re performance with a more compact body

design commonly found in mid-sized ATVs.

5. Ready to Work
Heavy-duty sleel cargO racks can pack a total ol 308 pounds

combined.

Tactical Green
$7,299 MSRP- $425 Destination Charge*

Ridge Red
$7,299 MSRP- $425 Destination Charge.

Fall Beige with Reallree Edge
$7,599 MSRP. $425 Destination Charge.

.,@YAMAHA
'Manulaclurer'sSuggested Relail Price(MSRP) shown. Does not includelax,title, prep0rdeslinalion charges.Actual pricessel by dealer.

W"



Kodiak 700

': : ., -,r.: . '

, r',r':' 1,; t
High-Perl0rmance Ultramatic@ Transmission
Kodiak 700's ultramatic@ transmission features a gated shifter, dual-
range (Hi/Lo) drive plus reverse gear, and the most advanced-and
durable-CVT drive system available. An automatic centrilugal clutch
maintains constant belt tension for reduced belt wear, and a sprag
clutch delivers natural all-wheel engine braking.

Big Bore Engine Built to Explore
Packing practical, fun and usable p0wer, the K0diak 700's engjne
balances big b0re power with a strong midrange. The Kodiak 700
features a 686cc motor with optimized torque, power delivery and
character that is fun and exciting 0n trails while still being smooth and
quiet when expl0ring or w0rking on the j0b site.

Gated Shill Lever and Handlebar"Mounted 4W0 Control
Yamaha's peerless Ultramatic@ transmission runs throuoh a five-
positi0n shift lever with High, Low, Neutral, Reverse and Park gates lor
positive and precise transmission operation. A robust mechanical 4WD
system is selected using a handlebar-mounted levet.

High-Mounted Air lntake
Tackle mud and water thanks to the Kodiak 700's high-mounted air
intake lay0ut. The desjgn increases power and torque while providing
additional ro0m l0r on-board storage and easy, t00lless servicing 0f
the loam air filter.

High-Perlormance Tires
Maximizing available traction, the Kodiak 700 features 25-inch
Maxxis@ tires that provide precise steering teel and teedback.

Slrong, Durable Brakes
Strong and reliable braking comes standard on every Kodiak 700
thanks to hydraulic front disc brakes and sealed wet rear brake system.

Terrain-Tackling Gr0und Clearance
To handle nearly any terrain with ease, the Kodiak 700 oflers an

impressive 10.8-inches of maximum ground clearance and full-length
c0mposite skid plates f0r maximum underbelly protection.

lndependenl Double Wishh0ne Front and Rear Suspensi0n
lndependent d0uble wishb0ne suspensi0n, with 7.'1 " of front wheel
travel and 9.1 " at the rear, provides excellent rider c0mfort even on the
toughest trails.

Underseat Fuel Tank
An optimized 4.76-gallon fuel tank is located under the seat {or
excellent mass centrallzati0n and handling.

Compacl Ergonomics
With plenty of room for the rider to move during riding, the l0w seat
improves rider c0mfort and simplifies mounting and dismounting.
Despite the full-size performance, the Kodiak 700 features a more
compacl body design similar t0 a mid-sized ATV to ease overall feel

and handling.

Aggressive and ourable Slyling
Rugged comp0site fr0nt bumper resists scratching and won't rust.

Ready lor Accessories
The Kodiak 700 was engineered in concert with a range of accessories
f0r perfect fit and function for nearly every type of ride. Wlth a standard
12V power polnt, you can keep devices charged, too.

Extensive Cargo Capacity
Rugged, large-diameter steel carg0 racks with durable wrinkle paint

finish can pack a total of 308 pounds combined (110 lbs. front, 198
lbs. rea0. An 0n-board storage c0mpartment keeps things dry, too.

10-Year-Bell Warranty
The Kodiak 700 transmission uses its own cooling intake to maintain
pr0per temperatures, an oversized belt to handle the torque of the large
motor and Yamaha's unique sprag clutch to maintain constant belt
tension. The end result is a drivetrain built f0r years ol troubleJree

service that leaves the competition in the dust and is backed by the
industry's 0nly 1o-Year V-Belt Limited Warranty.

yamahamolorsporls.com
F0r Access0ries, visit sh0pyamaha.c0m

Slainless Steel Erhaust
T0 maintain clean-running performance for years, the Kodiak 700 uses
a stainless sleel exhaust system and leatures a screen-type spark arrestor
lor great power with minimum noise 0utput.

High-Capacity Radiator
Slow-speed technical riding can place a lot 0f thermal demands on a
liquid-cooled motor, so the Kodiak 700 features a high-capacity
radiator that delivers plenty 0f air tlow lor maximum cooling efficiency
and is positioned high in the lrame for optimal protecti0n.

Drive System Air lntake
A high-m0unted drive system air intake helps reduce drive system
temperatures and assists in keeping water and debris {rom entering the
drive case. Buill Real W0rld ToughrM, Assembled in the USA

As with other Yamaha ATVS and Side-by-Sides, the Kodiak is
assembied in the USA l0 meet Yamaha's exacting standards for
durability and reliability.

products are lor identificatjon purposes onty, and a.e not jntended to bo an endo.sement. O 2020 yamaha [4otor Corporatjon. U.S.A. Ail rights reserved.



Kodiak 700

SPECIFICATIONS:
Engine lype

Bore x Slroke

Compression Ratio '

F[el Delivery

Transmission

Final Drive

Suspension / Front

Srspension / Rear

Brakes / Front

Brakes / Rear

Tires / Fronl

Tires / Rear

LxWxH

Seal Heighl

Ittheel base

Turning Radius

MaximIm Ground

Cleara nce

Fuel Capacity

Wel Weight

Rack Capacily

Towing Capacily

Warranty

Color'

686cc liquid-co0led S0HC 4-stroke

102.0mm x 84.0mm

10.0:1

Yamaha Fuel lniection (YFl), 44mm

Ultramatic V-belt with all-wheel engine braking;

H,L.N.R,P

Lever-operated 2WD/4WD: shafl

Independent double wishbone, 7.1-in travel

lndependent d0uble wishb0ne with anti-sway bar,

9.1-in travel

Dual hydraulic disc

Multi-disk wet brake

AT25 x 812 Maxxis@ MU19

AT25 x 10-12 Maxxis@ MU20

81.5 in x 46.5 in x 48.8 in

33.9 in

49.2 in

126.0 in

10.8 in

4.8 gal

659 lb

110 lb (front) / 198 lb (rear)

1322 lb (When equipped with optional accessory.)

6 Month (Limited Factory Warranty), 1o-Year V-

Belt Limited Warranty

Taclical Green; Ridge Red; Fall Beige with

Realtree Edge

"'Wetweightincludesthevehiclewithall shndardequiprrEntandall lluids. including oil, coolanl(as
app I icable) and a tul I hnk 0l lusl. ll does not include lhe weighl ol oplions or accessories. Wet weighl is
uselul in making reaFworld comoatisons wilh other models.

products a.0 tor identilicalion purposes only. and are not intended to be an eodorsement. @2020 Yamaha Motor Corporation, U.S.A. All .ights.es.d?d.



1

Alexandra Barbella

From: Brian Anderson <banderson@malcolmsmith.com>
Sent: Wednesday, November 4, 2020 10:02 AM
To: Alexandra Barbella
Subject: RE: ESWMA ATV bid
Attachments: INYO COUNTY.pdf

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the Inyo County Network. DO NOT click links or open attachments 
unless you recognize and trust the sender. Contact Information Services with questions or concerns. 
 
 
Here is a copy of the buyers order that I had previously mailed out to you.   The price breakdown is correct for each ATV 
but I only calculated the total on 2.  The correct pricing for 3 Kodiak 700 is $28919.88. 
 
$9,639.96 Per Vehicle 
 
If you need anything else from just let me know 
 
Thank You, 
Brian Anderson 
 
-----Original Message----- 
From: Alexandra Barbella <abarbella@inyocounty.us> 
Sent: Wednesday, November 4, 2020 9:34 AM 
To: Emma Bills <ebills@inyocounty.us> 
Cc: Brian Anderson <banderson@malcolmsmith.com> 
Subject: FW: ESWMA ATV bid 
 
Emma, 
 
Is it ok for Brian from Malcolm Smith Motor Sports to send the corrected paperwork as a digital copy or does he need to 
send in a hard copy in the mail? 
 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
 
Alexandra Barbella, M.S. 
 
Project Coordinator 
Inyo and Mono Counties Agricultural Commissioner's Office Owen's Valley Mosquito Abatement Program Eastern Sierra 
Weed Management Area 
 
207 W. South Street 
Bishop, Ca 93514 
 
760.873.3578 
 
-----Original Message----- 
From: Brian Anderson [mailto:banderson@malcolmsmith.com] 
Sent: Tuesday, November 3, 2020 5:56 PM 



County of Inyo

County Counsel
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  November 17, 2020 

FROM:  Marshall Rudolph 
 
SUBJECT:  Conflict of Interest Codes 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board: A) receive the 2020 Conflict of Interest Code Biennial Reports from the Agriculture, Public 
Administration/Public Guardian, Public Works, and Risk Management departments; B) receive the 2020 Conflict 
of Interest Code Biennial Reports from the Lone Pine Community Services District and Southern Inyo Fire 
Protection District; and C) receive and approve the amended Conflict of Interest Code for the Public Works 
Department.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
In even numbered years, Government Code section 87306.5 requires all local agencies in the County with a 
conflict of interest code (Code) to review the Code and revise it as needed. The Code identifies decision makers 
within the Agency that are required to prepare and file with the Clerk/Recorder a Statement of Economic Interest, 
which is frequently identified as a Form 700.

The request to commence the review process is made by Inyo County Counsel. On January 24, 2020, the Office 
of County Counsel notified each district within Inyo County of its obligation to review its conflict of interest code 
and submit the required biennial report on or before October 1, 2020.  

We have received notices in the form of Biennial Reports from all of the  departments and agencies identified 
above and are attached hereto. Additionally, in conducting their biennial review, one (1) department made 
necessary changes to their department's conflict of interest code. 

Your Board is asked to receive the Biennial Reports and approve the Amended Conflict of Interest Codes 
identified herein.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 

 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The Board may decline to approve and/or receive the biennial report or the amended conflict of interest code. 
Such action, however, would be contrary to the Board’s duties as the County’s conflict of interest code approving 
body.
 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
N/A
 
FINANCING:
The recommended action results in no financial impact to the County of Inyo. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Ag Comm CIC Response
2. PAPG CIC Response
3. Public Works CIC Response
4. Risk Management CIC Response
5. Lone Pine Community Service District CIC Response
6. Southern Inyo Fire Protection District CIC Response
 
APPROVALS:
Cori Denault Created/Initiated - 11/10/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 11/10/2020
Marshall Rudolph Final Approval - 11/10/2020



2020  DEPARTMENTAL CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE BIENNIAL REPORT 

Inyo County Ordinance No. 931 requires each department submit to the Board of Supervisors a biennial 
report identifying changes in its Conflict of Interest Code, or a statement that their code is not in need of 
amendment. Such reports shall be submitted to the Office of County Counsel for approval no later than 
October 1, of each even-numbered year.   Once reviewed, the Office of County Counsel will submit all 
reports to the Board for their approval.  

# # # 

This department has reviewed its conflict of interest code and has determined that: 

(1) [X] Our department's code accurately designates all positions which 
make or participate in the making of governmental decisions; that the 
disclosure assigned those positions accurately requires the 
disclosure of all investments.  business positions, interests in real 
property and sources of income which may foreseeably be affected 
materially by the decisions made  by those designated positions; 
and further that the code includes all other provisions required by 
Government Code Section 87302; or,  

(2) [ ] Our department’s code is in need of amendment.  We have 
determined that the following amendments are necessary (check 
applicable items):  

Include new positions which must be designated. 

Make changes to the reportable sources of income, 
investments, business positions, or real property.  

Make changes to the titles of positions assigned.  

Delete positions which have been abolished or changed. 

Change or add the provisions required by Government Code 
Section 87302.  

Contact Person   Nathan Reade         
Department         Agriculture Commissioner       
Mailing Address  207 W South Street, Bishop, CA 93514      
Date of Review of Departmental Conflict of Interest Code 10/27/2020

Signature of Department Head

Note:  Government Code Section 87306 requires that when a department has determined that amendments are necessitated 

by changed circumstances, the amendments or revisions shall be submitted to the code reviewing body within 90 days. 

s/COCO/CIC/Biennial.Depts 20 01242020 

























County of Inyo

Public Works
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  November 17, 2020 

FROM:  Trevor Taylor 
 
SUBJECT:  Request authorization to purchase four (4) radar speed trailers 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board: A) declare Statewide Traffic Safety and Signs, Inc. dba Statewide Safety Systems of Bakersfield, 
CA the successful bidder for Compact Radar Speed Trailers per Bid No. RD20-01; and B) authorize the purchase 
of four (4) 2020 Wanco Model WSDT3-S Compact Radar Speed Trailers from Statewide Safety Systems of 
Bakersfield, CA in an amount not to exceed $31,593.21.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The Road Department solicited bids for radar speed trailers in October, 2020 for the purpose of having portable 
speed awareness equipment available for deployment as needed in residential areas throughout the County.  
Bids were opened on November 4th, 2020, and six bids were received:

Statewide Traffic Safety and Signs, Inc. of Bakersfield, CA                                                        $31,593.21
United Rentals of Ridgecrest, CA                                                                                              $34,210.63
Mercaterra Atlantic, LLC of Round Rock, TX                                                                             $40,934.23
USIQ, Inc. of Northbrook, IL                                                                                                    $34,010.45
Wharton Concrete Forming Supply of Carson City, NV                                                                $33,815.51
Silver State Barricade and Sign of Sparks, NV                                                                           $33,369.43

The Road Department has reviewed the bids for responsiveness.  The Road Department recommends your 
Board authorize the purchase of four (4) 2020 Wanco Model WSDT3-S Compact Radar Speed Trailers from 
Statewide Safety Systems of Bakersfield, CA to be delivered to the Inyo County Road Yard at 750 south Clay 
Street, Independence, CA.  The total expense, including delivery and taxes, is not to exceed $31,59.21.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose not to approve this purchase.  This is not recommended as formal studies have proven 
that speeding drivers respond by slowing down to legal limits when their actual speed is displayed on an 
electronic sign and this equipment purchase is warranted by speed complaints in the County.  
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:



Agenda Request 
Page 2

N/A
 
FINANCING:
The costs for radar speed trailers will be paid from the Road Department Budget 034600, Object Code 5650 - 
Equipment.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Bid Tab - Radar Speed Trailers
2. BID RD20-01 - Statewide Safety Systems
 
APPROVALS:
Trevor Taylor Created/Initiated - 10/27/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 10/28/2020
Trevor Taylor Approved - 11/9/2020
Breanne Nelums Approved - 11/9/2020
Chris Cash Approved - 11/10/2020
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 11/10/2020
Amy Shepherd Approved - 11/10/2020
Michael Errante Final Approval - 11/10/2020



COUNTY OF INYO BID TABULATION

Road Department Radar Trailers - ZC DCJSO - O \

Bid opening Date: November 4, 2020 3:30 PM Location: County Admin Building

SOpened By.

Present: (Y\^n ro fn \4.

Clnu,., ,, *[

I Ic-
Tnc-

S+. $a{,sq3 at

2 !nr\<"o.Edc.Ls S:q,e\o k3

J llv\arer"\euao,- Cdk"^| .
LLC

S t{o,q3q zB

4 0sry, Tnc S 
=q\ctc 

qS

5

la s;Lvaf }ta*e

tur.lhartua + jz, gt5. s I

$ zb,'a.eq.. I 3

UII)Dl,lt NAMI: Total Bicl llond

i-
\ l[ Ar \lQ.-

-b.^^















County of Inyo

Public Works
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  November 17, 2020 

FROM:  Trevor Taylor 
 
SUBJECT:  Request authorization to purchase Ford F350 trucks  
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board: A) declare Bishop Ford of Bishop, CA the successful bidder for F350 Trucks per Bid No. RD20-
05; and B) authorize the purchase of two (2) new 2021 Regular Cab Ford F350 Trucks and two (2) new 2021 
SuperCab Ford F350 Trucks from Bishop Ford of Bishop, CA in an amount not to exceed $140,713.34.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The Road Department solicited bids for new trucks in October, 2020 for the purpose of augmenting the Road 
Department's aging fleet and phasing out the use of older, less reliable vehicles.  Bids were opened on 
November 4th, 2020 and one bid was received:

Bishop Ford                                                                           $140,713.34

The Road Department has reviewed the bid for responsiveness and is recommending your Board authorize the 
purchase of two (2) new 2021 Regular Cab Ford F350 Trucks and two (2) new 2021 SuperCab Ford F350 Trucks 
from Bishop Ford.  The total expense, including delivery, taxes, and applicable fees, is not to exceed 
$140,713.34.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The Board could choose not to approve this purchase.  This is not recommended as the Road Department has 
budgeted for new vehicles this fiscal year and the continued phasing out of older, less reliable vehicles provides 
increased safety and aids in meeting emissions requirements imposed on Road Department's fleet. 
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
N/A
 
FINANCING:
The costs for the new trucks will be paid out of the Road Department Budget 034600, Object Code 5655 - 
Vehicles.



Agenda Request 
Page 2

 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Bid Tab - Ford Trucks
2. BID RD20-05 - Bishop Ford
 
APPROVALS:
Trevor Taylor Created/Initiated - 10/27/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 10/27/2020
Trevor Taylor Approved - 11/10/2020
Breanne Nelums Approved - 11/10/2020
Chris Cash Approved - 11/10/2020
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 11/10/2020
Amy Shepherd Approved - 11/10/2020
Michael Errante Final Approval - 11/12/2020



COUNTY OF INYO BID TABULATION

Bid opening: R CgO-CS * f:SO-ku.|.-S
Bid Opening Date: November 4, 2020 3:30 PM Location: County Admin Building

I foYD(P lq0, f l3 3q

2

J

4.

5

Illl)l)lrlt N,AMI: Total llitl Bonrl

Opened By:

Present: f,\donre.. \i ,^{-^^

\-,-
\Farir s rL) fNV\

























County of Inyo

Public Works
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  November 17, 2020 

FROM:  Trevor Taylor 
 
SUBJECT:  Request authorization to purchase two (2) compact light towers 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board: A) declare Silver State Barricade and Sign of Sparks, NV the successful bidder for Compact 
Light Towers per Bid No. RD20-06; and B) authorize the purchase of two (2) new 2020 Wanco Model WLTT-
4MM6K Compact Diesel Light Towers from Silver State Barricade and Sign of Sparks, NV in an amount not to 
exceed $22,024.54.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The Road Department solicited bids for compact diesel light towers in October, 2020 for the purpose of having 
portable lights available for night time repair work when needed.  Bids were opened on November 4th, 2020 and 
six bids were received:

United Rentals of Ridgecrest, CA                                                    $23,862.68
Statewide Traffic Safety and Signs, Inc. of Bakersfield, CA                $21,950.00
Safety Zone Specialists of Lakeland, FL                                           $22,746.03
All Around Access, LLC of Naples, FL                                               $24,782.50
Wharton Concrete Forming Supply of Carson City, NV                       $22,322.09
Silver State Barricade and Sign of Sparks, NV                                  $22,024.54

The Road Department has reviewed the bids for responsiveness.  There is a small business contracting 
preference of 5% for this request for bids.  Silver State Barricade and Sign has submitted their Disadvantage 
Business Enterprise (DBE) certification and are eligible for the small business contracting preference.  Silver 
State Barricade and Sign's bid falls within the 5% contracting preference of the apparent low bidder, Statewide 
Traffic Safety and Signs.  Per County Code Section 6.06.040, "the lowest responsive bid submitted by a … small 
business that is within five percent of the lowest responsive bid shall be considered the low bid and that business 
shall be awarded the contract."  Given the above, Silver State Barricade and Sign should be considered the low 
bid.

The Road Department is recommending your Board authorize the purchase of two (2) new 2020/2021 Wanco 
Model WLTT-4MM6K Compact Diesel Light Towers from Silver State Barricade and Sign, to be delivered to the 
Inyo County Road Yard at 750 South Clay Street, Independence, CA.  The total expense, including delivery and 
taxes, is not to exceed $22,024.54.



Agenda Request 
Page 2

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The Board could choose not to approve this purchase.  This is not recommended as having newer Tier 4 Final 
Compliant equipment will aid the Road Department in meeting emissions requirements for its equipment fleet.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
N/A
 
FINANCING:
The costs for the compact light towers will be paid from the Road Department Budget 034600, Object Code 5650 
- Equipment.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Bid Tab - Compact Light Towers
2. BID RD20-06 - Silver State
 
APPROVALS:
Trevor Taylor Created/Initiated - 10/27/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 10/27/2020
Trevor Taylor Approved - 11/9/2020
Breanne Nelums Approved - 11/9/2020
Chris Cash Approved - 11/9/2020
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 11/9/2020
Amy Shepherd Approved - 11/10/2020
Trevor Taylor Approved - 11/10/2020
Michael Errante Final Approval - 11/12/2020



COUNTY OF INYO BID TABULATION

Bid openins' -Rb aC OG CoUpac_d U-+'fbt,:q\rsL
Bid opening Date: November 4, 2020 3:30 PM Location: County Admin Building

5Opened By

Present: [4n,, 
^ 
.o"_[^[*^

1 Drnth.tR*^tttt $eE, 
KLoz. Lpg

2 Sa\e.*(.\" lrraffrc-
Sc-k-{y s-Struu=a"vr.-

S;\,qgo "o

J 6c$+y Zovre Wsb'L,s+ $ aa,-r qt" c>3

4. LL A'r-ouvc,\ Ac.ess
L/_c,

A seq\18z so

5

("

Whwtan kuete

3t tu u( &n*<-

b 2],'b2). of

x ea, azl 5q

Bll)DFrlt NAMI: 'l'otal Bid Boncl



,Ou ^

eJfi,,.ffioflffi.,*
702-?3tL3316

702 67e$O0

n53284tW

Nevada Unlfied
II

u-.N@z'"

RTC

Thieis to&nifythat:

ft{ofton Consulting, LLC, DBA Silvet State Baricade & SiSn
Is registercd as a Disadvaataged Business Eatetptise ia the Nevada Uaified Cettifrcation Prcgram

Undet the Prouisioas of 49 CFR Part 2li

A.ad is Thetefarc Recogaized This 30th Day oftrme,2015

And sultctsedes aalt cettifrcatioa ot listiag preuiouely iseaed

Ce ttifi c a te No. i1U20322%6N UCP

Merqofiun Phnnlry Otgmlalbn

ffi

)
o.

g
2

F

?
o
E
d
)
u
F
{t)
<.)

IO
l$
rf,

6\
l-.

-b
{-Jg
tsli

k)t
tr

d
f)tl

\,\)
2
Y)g
}.r
l!
k)
ct

o

t,
d
o

)

A
=)4
3
d,

\9
\P

bJ
/L

ufio. h U"S-{.

I

6GOSS342
A{ Figfrl3 Rosev.d

702 W7-2355



County of Inyo
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

Drawer Q, Independence, CA 93526
Main (760) 878-0201 Fax (760) 878-2001

MEMORANDUM

FROM

DATE:

Prospective Bidden

Inyo County Public Works - Road Departrnent

Request for Bid #RD20-06 - Compact Light Towers

October 8,2020

TO

RE:

Enclosed you will find the necessary information for preparing and submitting your bid for T1VO (2) New
Wanco Model WLTT Compact Light Towers or equal forthe Inyo CountyRoad Department.

The deadline for submitting your bid is November 4,2020 at 3:30 P.M,

If you have further questions, please email inquiries to Trevor Taylor at ttaylor@inyocounty.us. Should it be
found necessary, a written addendum will be posted on the website www.inyocounty.uslBid_Packaees.html. It
will be the responsibility of interested parties to visit the website &equently to ensure receipt of any new
information that may be made available. The use of a brand name does not indicate preference for that brand.
It is intended to establish a level of quality, function and reliability.

ffi
Trevor Taylor
Engineering Assistant



BID # RD20-06 - Compact Light Towers

RETURN BIDS TO: Inyo County Board Clerk
P.O. Drawer N, Independence, CA 93526.

I

eID OPENING: DATE: ilo,vember 4h, 2g2o TIME: 3:3O P.M.

pRrcES QUOTED F.O.B. DESTINATION UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED. MAKE YOUR BID OR

QUOTATTON rN THE SPACE PROVIDED ON THE ATTACHED SHEETS.

Any bidder who wishes their bid to be considered is responsible for making certain that their bid is

received by the Inyo County Board Clerk by the Bid Submittal Deadline. NO ORAL' TELEPHOI{IC'
TELEGRAPHIC, OR FACSIMILE BIDS OR MODTFTCATIONS WILL BE CONSTDERED, BrDS
RECEIVED A]TER THE BID SUBMITTAL DEADTINE WILL BE REJECTED REGARDLESS OF
POSTMARK DATE.

IMPORTANT: Bid must be sealed with bid number as indicated above on the outside of the
envelope. Read the Instructions and Conditions before making your Bid or Quotation.

INSTRUCTIONS & CONDMONS

All prices and notations must be typewritten or written in ink. No erasures permitted.
Mistakes may be crossed out and corrections made adjacent to and must be initialed in ink by
person signing quotation.

State brand or make on each item. If quoting an article exactly as specified, the bidder must
strike out the words "or equal". If quoting on other than make, model or brand specified, the
manufacturer's name and the catalogue number must be given, or descriptive cut and
information attached to the quotations.

3. Quote on each item separately. Prices should be stated in units specified herein.

Each quotation must be in separate sealed envelope with bid number on outside, and must be
submitted to Inyo C-ounty Board Clerk, not later than the hour and day specified hereon, at
which time it will be publicly opened and read.

1

2,

6

7

4.

5 Time of delivery is a part of the consideration and must be stated in definite terms, and must
be adhered to. If time varies on different items, the bidder shall so state in the column
provided, opposite each item.

Terms of less than ten days for cash discount will be considered as net.

All quotations must be signed with the Firm's name and by a responsible officer or employee.
Obligations assumed by such signature must be fulfilled.

Page 1 of 6



I

9

No charge for packing, drayage, or for any other purpose will be allowed over and above the
prices quoted on this sheet.

The right is reserved, unless otherwise stated, to accept or reject any or all quotations, or any
part thereof, either separately or as a whole, or, to waive any informality in a bid.

Samples of items, when required, must be furnished free of expense to the Cnunty of Inyo
and if not destroyed by tests, will upon request be returned at the bidder's expense.

In case of default by the vendor, the County of Inyo may procure the articles or service from
other sources.

Cost of transportation, handling, andlor inspection on deliveries, or offers for delivery, which
do not meet the specifications will be paid for by the vendor.

The vendor shall hold the County of Inyo, ib officers, agents, servants and employees,
harmless from liability of any nature or kind on account of use of any copyrighted, or
uncopyrighted composition, secret prccess, patented or unpatented invention, afticle or
appliance furnished or used under this quotation.

The vendor will not be held liable for failure or delay in fulfillment if hindered or prevented by
fire, strikes, or Acts of God.

10.

11.

t2.

13.

L4,

15. Quobtions are subject to acceptance at any time within ninety (90) days after opening same,
unless otherwise stipulated.

16. Veriff your quotations before submission as they cannot be withdrawn, or corrected, after
being opened.

L7, Return this sheet whether or not you quote a price. If you do not quote, state your reason,
otherwise your name may be removed from our mailing list.

19.

Local businesses are entitled to contracting and or purchase preference. A local business (as

defined by ordinance) is entitled to a preference if its bid is within 8Vo based on the base price

of the low bid received and will be treated as the low bidder. To be eligible for the
preferences, a local business must provide a certification that it is a local business as defined
by Inyo County Code 56.06.020 (b) with its bid.

18. Amounts paid for transpoftation of propefi to the County of Inyo are exempt from Federal
Transportation Tax. An exemption certificate is not required where shipping papers show the
consignee as County of Inyo, as such, papers may be accepted by the carrier as proof of the
exempt character of the equipment.

Small businesses are entitled to contracting and or purchase preference. A small business (as

defined by ordinance) is entitled to a preference if its bid is within Sa/o of the base price of the
low bid received and will be treated as the low bidder.

20.

Page 2 of 6



I.

u.

BID FORM
T,{YO COLINTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

BID NO: RD20-06 - Compact Light Towers

The purpose of this specification is to describe a new Wanco Model WLTT Compact Light Tower. It is
required that the unit(s) will be delivered FOB Inyo County Road Department, 750 S. Clay Street,

Independencen CA 93526ready to operate. The use of a brand name does not indicate preference for
that brand. It is intended to establish a level of quality, function and reliability.

BID ITEM(S)
The County of Inyo is requesting bids for TWO (2) NEW WANCO MODEL WLTT COMPACT
LIGHT TOWERS.

MINIMUM BID SPECIFICATIONS

Sequentially number any exceptions and explain on a separate sheet if needed. If you would like to

submit a product as an "or equal", provide full specifications and a request a minimum of 7 days before

the bid opening date. Email these requests to ttavlor@inyocounty.us.

DESCRIPTION (Place an "X" /number in the appropriate column) COMPLY EXCEPTION

SYSTEM:

New Wanco Model WLTT Telescoping Light Tower on compact

towable trailer, Diesel powered. Max height at least 20 feet. X
FEATURES:

Low tongue weight for ease of moving the trailer by hand with
one n X
Three outriggers and four leveling jacks for stability x
Lights can be safely adjusted from the ground X
Lights can be aimed independently and hold position dout tools Y
Single winch raises and lowers tower smoothly and easily x
lnclude power winch operation option if available X
Tower rotates "360 degrees to avoid repositioning trailer x
Lights operate at any height r
All-steel, weather resistant equipment cabinet protects controls,

engine, and other components from the elements X
Hinged door panel with lockable door latch provides access to
controls, engine, and electronics x
Confiol panel includes circuit breakers for lights and

convenience outlet x
Control panel features engine hour meter and LED status
indicators X
Convenience outlet with dedicated circuit breaker powers

auxiliary equipment X
Main power circuit breaker provides added protection and

instant-off to prevent engine damage x
Automatic engine-shutdown system protects engine from
damage due to low oil pressure and high coolant rature x

Page 3 of 6



CONTROL PANEL:

Allows operator to start and stop engine, switch power onloff K
Located inside equipment cabinet, sheet steel enclosure K
Entire control box removable for servicing X
Power switches for main power, lights, and the power outlet r
LED indicators for engine status conditions (high temp shutdown,
low oil re X

Hour meter and power outlet located in control panel x
TRAI[ER:

All welded structural steel frame, bolt on fenders, with tie down
and forklift uides

K

5T225/75Dt3 steel belted tires, load rating B X
Standard tow hitch, SAE Class 2 X

Standard taillights, license plate holder, and allwiring requ ired

for trailer connection v
POWER SYSTEM:

Engine and Generator produce system power x
1800 RPM Engine type Mitsubishi L3E, Tier 4 Final diesel, 3

,4 cooled X

Brushless, Grade H Generator x
Fuel Tank capacity of 60 gallons v
OPTIONS:

Power operated winch operation, lnclude manualwince in the

event of system failure X
LED lights, four 350 Watt fixtures x
Emergency shutdown stop button on exterior of equipment bay

for manual e shutdown X
DELIVERY REQUIREMENTS:

Compact light towers and all specified attachments shall be

delivered to 750 S. Clay Street, lndependence, CA 93526.
A

IU. EXCEPTIONS
E-ptatn a"y and all exceptions identified in Section II, above (attach additional sheets if necessary)

Page 4 of 6



IV. BID
I agrce to furnish tnyo County with the products specified on the Bid Form for the prices indicated

below.

l. Compact Light Tower Bid Type (Year, Make, and Model):

2. UNIT PRICE:

3. SUBTOTAL for TWO (2) Units:

4. SALES TAX (Inyo County @7.75%):

5. DELIVERY to Inyo CountyRoad Department
FOB 750 S. Clay Street,Independence, CA 93526

6lL.4uuco

$
qB1 5. le

$ n'+qo.y
1g

$ l. s33

$ 700

..$ LZ ,o1-{ .
fl

,9i lr"',fal'u Bo* i r a)"e Sr t'NL

Ross Snt, zd

TOTAL PRICE

BIDDER:

CompanyName:

ContactName:

Address:

Ctty I State lZip:

Phone Number:

Email Address:

l9q7 0 u-- Jo,l. Aw

J k

ca.ss @ Ssbsnrt, Cor-r

Fax Number: r

V CERTIFICATION
In submitting this bid, I understand that Inyo County reserves the right to reject any and all bids and/or

reject any and all items of such bids and/or waive any irregularities in a bid. By signature on this bid
document, I agree to the terms outlined in this Request for Bids. I certifu that I am an authorized agent

for the above company.

Signed: Title

Date: L

0

Admlnlstttlve O'filcer

(+t oy za

Thlr

ind ot

ncslvod

GountY' Cailiomla

Page 5 of 6



vI. BII} SITBIVtrTTAL
ffiid in a SEALED envelope labeled with "BID No. RD20-06 - compact Light

Towers" and the name of the Bidderprinted on the outside of the envelope-

Bids must be submitted by the time and date specified below to the Inyo County Board Clerk, P.O.

Drawer N (mail), lndependence, CA 93526,or by delivery to the Board Clerk at224 N- Edwards Streeg

Independence, CA gliZAby or before 3:1O P.M. on November 4er 2020.

lrlote: PLEASE BE ADVISED that despite information you may receive from lail services,

EdG"ighr delivery by the Usps, ups, r'earx, and other carriers is often scheduled as a two-day

deliverv due to the remote nature of Inyo County.

Page 6 of 5



Compact LightTowers
LED/ Metal Halide /LED Balloon

,;rrt

,tl

\i

I

d

\
!-

-

rI

800-972.0755@nnco'power&Lrghr www.wanco.com



The ingenious compact light tower
our customers asked for

t Up to 18 units on a single truck

I Aim lights from the ground

t Heavy gauge all-steel body

I Tallest of all compact light towers

I Largest fuel tank and longest run time in its class

Wanco Compact LightTowers are all about size and efficiency.

They save you money right from the start by fitting more units

on a truck, then save you even more with features that include

an extra-large fuel tank and lights you can adjust without a step.

When you order a fleet of new Wanco Compact Light Towers-up to
18 units-it fits on a single 53-foot truck. giving you more units for the
same shipping cost. A small footprint and fold-up towpar make this
light tower extremely compact for storage as well, so it takes up less

space both on thejob-site and in your yard.

Its small size doesnt sacrifice performance, though. When paired with
the largest fuel tank in its class, its robust industrial-grade power plant
provides the longest run time of any compact light tower available-
about 240 hours before refueling.

Wanco Compact LightTowers are equipped with state-of-the-art
technology to achieve superior illumination whether you choose LED

or metal halide lights. Our LEDs are the most powerfulyou'll find on
any LED light tower in any class, and our HlDs use a highly reflective
fixture design that puts maximum light on the job for longer, increasing
productivity and safety, saving you time and money. Balloon lights are
also available.

Efficiency and safety continue with durable components that will last,
and thoughtful design features that may surprise you. Rental houses
will love the industrial-grade leveling jack and the only all-steel cabinet
available in a compact model. Users can aim the lights while standing
on the ground, before raising the tower-no ladder needed, no need to
climb on the trailer-and the always vertical tower is easy to raise and
lower with a dual-handle manual winch or a power winch.

Compact and efficient, cost-effective to own and operate, the unique
Wanco Compact Light Tower is impressively unlike any other.

To see or orderonetoday, catt 800.972.O755 orvisitwanco.com.

WANCO tNC.
5870 Tennyson Street
Arvada, Colorado 80003
800-972-0755
303-427-5700
3Q3-427-5725fax
wwwwanco,com

Deployedfootprint'129x111in(327x281cm),IxW

0peratingheight Max.24lrft(7.5m) '
Min.7%ft(2.4m)

Travel heighr 93 in (237m)

Welght Operating Approx. 19651b (B91kg)

Shipp'ng Approx. 1580|b (71ikg)

Tongueweight Dry 80lb (i6k9)

Lights 480-wattLED5 350-watt[EDs Metalhalider

Lamps* [our,l80Wfixtures Four3s0wfixtures F0ur1000wlamps

Luminosity** 57,800lmperfixture 49,000lmpufixture l10000lmperlamp
231,200lmt0tal 196,000lmtotal 440,tr0lmtotal

Power system

Englnetype Tier4tinaldiesel,3-rylinder,,{.cyde

Engine speed* 1800rpm @60H2 or 1500rpm @50H2

Generatortype Brushless,dassH

Sound level 68 dB @ 23 ft (7m) at max. load

Baftery Maintenanre-fee AGM, 1 2 Vdc, 550 (CA

Kubota'D1005 Mitsubishio[3E

Maximumpoweroutput* 13.1hp(9.8kW) 12.2hp(9.1kW)

Displacement* 61.08 in! (1 001 cmr) 58.09 in3 (952(m3)

Fueltankcapacity 60gal (2271) 60gal (2271)

48&wattlEos 3so-watt[EDs Metalhalides

Fuelconsumption* 0.3lgal/hr(1.17Uh) 0.25galihr(0.096Uh) 0.49gal/hr(1,86l-/h)

Runtimebeforerefueling* Approx.l90hrs Approx.240hrs Approx.l20hn

Output power

0utput* 6kWorSkW

Vohage* 120vacor240vac

Amperage 50A@120V, 25A@240V

kequenql 60Hzor50Hz

Voltage regulation +6%, no load tofull load

'Depending on model **Continuout intensity for LEDi, initiol intensity for metal holides

Due to Wanco's commitment to continuoF lnprcvement of our products, all information 6 subJect to change withon notice.
Wanco and the Wanco logo arc registercd |/ademarks of Wanco tnc. All other trademarks are prcperty of their respectfue owners.

02019 Wanco lnc. All rights reserued. Printed in the USA. I WPBOOS1 November 2019 {! erin,uO on ,"*cted paper

Brief specifications
Physical



County of Inyo

Public Works
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  November 17, 2020 

FROM:  Trevor Taylor 
 
SUBJECT:  Request authorization to purchase two (2) tow behind brooms 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board: A) declare United Rentals of Ridgecrest, CA the successful bidder for Tow Brooms per Bid No. 
RD20-07; and B) authorize the purchase of two (2) new 2020 MB Model 53MH tow behind brooms from United 
Rentals of Ridgecrest, CA in an amount not to exceed $57,236.80.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The Road Department solicited bids for tow behind brooms in October, 2020 to be used for maintenance 
operations.  Bids were opened on November 4th, 2020 and three bids were received:

United Rentals of Bakersfield, CA                                              $57,236.80
Sequoia Equipment Company of Bakersfield, CA                         $73,539.38
Stotz Equipment of Montclair, CA                                               $65,943.00

The Road Department has reviewed the bids for responsiveness.  The Road Department recommends your 
Board authorize the purchase of two (2) new 2020 MB Model 53MH Tow Behind Brooms from United Rentals of 
Ridgecrest, CA to be delivered to the Inyo County Road Yard at 750 South Clay Street, Independence.  The total 
expense, including delivery and tax, is not to exceed $57,236.80.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose not to approve this purchase.  This is not recommended because new tow brooms are 
needed for keeping up with on going road maintenance needs.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
N/A
 
FINANCING:
The costs for tow brooms will be paid from the Road Department Budget 034600, Object Code 5650 - 
Equipment. 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Bid Tab - Tow Brooms
2. Bid RD20-07 - United Rentals
 
APPROVALS:
Trevor Taylor Created/Initiated - 10/27/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 10/27/2020
Trevor Taylor Approved - 11/10/2020
Breanne Nelums Approved - 11/10/2020
Chris Cash Approved - 11/10/2020
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 11/10/2020
Amy Shepherd Approved - 11/10/2020
Michael Errante Final Approval - 11/10/2020



Opened By

COUNTY OF INYO BID TABULATION

Bid opening: ? [J EO --O] - -fOdBfCOp.-5

Bid opening Date: November 4, 2020 3:30 PM Location: county Admin Buildfulg

R.\ p EIb>

Present: M^ [Lt c,n" Kt 
^Lu:t^--

C \*,r, o Cr"*f

I

Dnr&.lRn',r\eL=
#
5*l ,tg-o 80

2 Sr-gtoo,n tf"nffif^f w73,ssQ #

J f/to*z €+*rrnernt
u (05 ,1't3.o,c

4.

5

Bll)DL:tt NAMI, Total llicl lJond



















County of Inyo

Public Works
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  November 17, 2020 

FROM:  Trevor Taylor 
 
SUBJECT:  Request authorization to purchase emulsified asphalt 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board: A) declare Environmental Concepts of Tehachapi, CA the successful bidder for Asphaltic 
Emulsion per Bid No. RD20-08; and B) authorize the purchase of twelve (12) 250 gallon capacity totes of SS-1H 
asphaltic emulsion from Environmental Concepts of Tehachapi, CA in an amount not to exceed $21,108.75.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The Road Department solicited bids for asphaltic emulsion in October, 2020 for road paving and maintenance 
needs.  Bids were opened on November 4th, 2020 and one bid was received:

Pavement Preservation Specialties, Inc. dba Environmental Concepts                       $21,1088.75

The Road Department has reviewed the bid for responsiveness is recommending your Board authorize the 
purchase of twelve (12) 250 gallon capacity totes of SS-1H asphaltic emulsion from Environmental Concepts to 
be picked up at the material plant in Bakersfield.  The total expense including tax is not to exceed $21,108.75.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The Board could choose not to approve this purchase.  This is not recommended as this product is needed for 
any asphalt work that the Road Department undertakes and having the option for will-call filling of totes will 
ensure that material needs are met through the coming spring.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
N/A
 
FINANCING:
The costs for emulsified asphalt will be paid out of the Road Department Budget 034600, Object Code 5309 - 
Road Materials.
 
ATTACHMENTS:



Agenda Request 
Page 2

1. Bid Tab - Asphaltic Emulsion
2. BID RD20-08 - Environmental Concepts
 
APPROVALS:
Trevor Taylor Created/Initiated - 10/27/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 10/27/2020
Trevor Taylor Approved - 11/10/2020
Breanne Nelums Approved - 11/10/2020
Chris Cash Approved - 11/10/2020
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 11/10/2020
Amy Shepherd Approved - 11/10/2020
Michael Errante Final Approval - 11/10/2020



COUNTY OF INYO BID TABULATION

Project Title & Bid No. &ulo - Dg
Bid Opening Date rt lllao Location: County Admin Center

I buruncnen*a.-l Ccnrzpts $ at, to8.'is
2

I

4

5

6

7

8

I

10

BIDDER NAME
Bid

Opened By

Present

Ut-ts

6,nunnn Bitts



( il

,r.Ii ( rir.,

County of Inyo
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

Drawer Q, Independence, CA93526
Main (760) 878-0201 Fax (760) 878-2001

MEMORANDUM

FROM:

DATE:

Prospective Bidders

Inyo County Public Works - Road Department

Request for Bid #RD20-08 - Asphaltic Emulsion

October 16,2020

TO

RE

Enclosed you will find the necessary information for preparing and submitting your bid for providing 250
gallon capacity totes of CSS-IH Asphaltic Emulsion to the lryo County Road Department.

The deadline for submitting your bid is November 412020 at 3:30 P.M.

If you have further questions, please email inquiries to Trevor Taylor at ttaylor@inyocounty.us. Should it be
found necessary, a written addendum will be posted on the website www.inyocounty.us/Bid-Packages.html. It
will be the responsibility of interested parties to visit the website frequently to ensure receipt of any new
information that may be made available.

Trevor Taylor
Engineering Assistant



County of Inyo
DEPARTMENT OF PT]BLIC WORKS

168 N. Edwards Street, Independence, CA 93526
Main 760.878.0201 Fax 7 60.878.2001

October 19,2020

Addendum No. L

Bid No. RD20-08 ASPHALTIC EMULSION

To: ALL BIDDERS

Please include Addendum No. I as part of the bid package for the above referenced bid number
and acknowledge this addendum by signing and including as part of your bid:

1. This addendum replaces all references to CSS-IH asphaltic emulsion with SS-IH
asphaltic emulsion. The referenced Caltrans Standard Specification section still
applies. For questions or comments regarding this addendum contact Trevor Taylor
at ttaylor@inyocounty.us or 760-878 -0347 .

We hereby acknowledge Addendum No. I

I t1 2<>"L
Signature and Date



BID # RD20-08 - Asphaltic Emulsion

RETURN BIDS TO: Inyo County Board Clerk
P.O. Drawer N, Independence, CA 93526.

BID OPENING: DATE: November 4th. 2O2O TIME: 3:30 P.M.

PRICES QUOTED F.O.B. DESTINATION UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED. MAKE YOUR BID OR

QUOTATION IN THE SPACE PROVIDED ON THE ATTACHED SHEETS,

Any bidder who wishes their bid to be considered is responsible for making certain that their bid is
received by the Inyo County Board Clerk by the Bid Submittal Deadline. NO ORAL, TELEPHONIC,
TELEGRAPHTC, OR FACSTMILE BrDS OR MODTFICATTONS WrLL BE CONSTDERED. BrDS
RECEIVED AFTER THE BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE WILL BE REJECTED REGARDLESS OF
POSTMARK DATE.

IMPORTANT: Bid must be sealed with bid number as indicated above on the outside of the
envelope. Read the Instructions and Conditions before making your Bid or Quotation.

INSTRUCTIONS & CONDITIONS

All prices and notations must be typewritten or written in ink. No erasures permitted.
Mistakes may be crossed out and corrections made adjacent to and must be initialed in ink by
person signing quotation.

State brand or make on each item. If quoting an article exactly as specified, the bidder must
strike out the words "or equal". If quoting on other than make, model or brand specified, the
manufacturer's name and the catalogue number must be given, or descriptive cut and
information attached to the quotations.

Quote on each item separately. Prices should be stated in units specified herein.

Each quotation must be in separate sealed envelope with bid number on outside, and must be
submitted to Inyo County Board Clerk, not later than the hour and day specified hereon, at
which time it will be publicly opened and read.

Time of delivery is a part of the consideration and must be stated in definite terms, and must
be adhered to. If time varies on different items, the bidder shall so state in the column
provided, opposite each item.

Terms of less than ten days for cash discount will be considered as net.

All quotations must be signed with the Firm's name and by a responsible officer or employee.
Obligations assumed by such signature must be fulfilled.

1

2.

3.

4.

5

6

7

Page 1 of 4



B

9

No charge for packing, drayage, or for any other purpose will be allowed over and above the
prices quoted on this sheet.

The right is reserved, unless otherwise stated, to accept or reject any or all quotations, or any
paft thereof, either separately or as a whole, or, to waive any informality in a bid.

10. Samples of items, when required, must be furnished free of expense to the County of Inyo
and if not destroyed by tests, will upon request be returned at the bidder's expense.

11. In case of default by the vendor, the County of Inyo may procure the articles or service from
other sources.

t2. Cost of transpoftation, handling, and/or inspection on deliveries, or offers for delivery, which
do not meet the specifications will be paid for by the vendor.

13 The vendor shall hold the County of Inyo, its officers, agents, servants and employees,
harmless from liability of any nature or kind on account of use of any copyrighted, or
uncopyrighted composition, secret process, patented or unpatented invention, afticle or
appliance furnished or used under this quotation.

14. The vendor will not be held liable for failure or delay in fulfillment if hindered or prevented by
fire, strikes, or Acts of God.

15. Quotations are subject to acceptance at any time within ninety (90) days after opening same,
unless otherwise stipulated.

16. Verify your quotations before submission as they cannot be withdrawn, or corrected, after
being opened.

1B

Return this sheet whether or not you quote a price. If you do not quote, state your reason,
otherwise your name may be removed from our mailing list.

Amounts paid for transportation of propefi to the County of Inyo are exempt from Federal
Transportation Tax. An exemption certificate is not required where shipping papers show the
consignee as County of Inyo, as such, papers may be accepted by the carrier as proof of the
exempt character of the equipment.

19. Small businesses are entitled to contracting and or purchase preference. A small business (as
defined by ordinance) is entitled to a preference if its bid is within 5% of the base price of the
low bid received and will be treated as the low bidder.

T7,

Local businesses are entitled to contracting and or purchase preference. A local business (as
defined by ordinance) is entitled to a preference if its bid is within Bolo based on the base price
of the low bid received and will be treated as the low bidder. To be eligible for the
preferences, a local business must provide a certification that it is a local business as defined
by Inyo County Code 56.06.020 (b) with its bid.

20

Page 2 of 4



BID FORM
INYO COLINTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

BID NO: RD20-08 - Asphaltic Emulsion

The purpose of this specification is to describe the requirements involved in providin9250 gallon totes
of CSS-IH Asphaltic Emulsion to the Inyo County Road Department. The intent of this request for bids
is to purchase eight (8) new totes of emulsion as well as establish a cost for refilling 4 empty totes with
the same material. Specified product will be picked up by the Inyo County Road Department FOB at
the material plant. Material plantlre-fill location must be within 200 road miles of Independence, CA
for a bid to be considered.

I. PRODUCT
CSS-IH asphaltic emulsion shall conform to the 2018 Standard Specification, State of California,
Department of Transportation, Section 94 - Asphaltic Emulsions. Vendor shall furnish a certificate of
compliance in accordance with this section showing that the material conforms to specification
requirements. If the material when sampled and tested, fails to meet any of the specification
requirements, the Vendor shall immediately replace any of such material remaining unused with
material that meets the specification. The County will make no payment for any portion of material
already used, which is found to fail to meet specification requirements by those tests. The product shall
be provided in 250 gallon bulk capacity totes.

il. PICK.UP REOTIIREMENTS

Eight (8) new totes of product will be picked up (4 totes at one time) FOB the material plant. Pick-up
location must be within 200 road miles of Independence, CA. This bid also establishes pricing for
refilling four (4) additional empty totes if needed. Specify lead time needed for refilling empty totes as
well as the amount of time pricing will remain valid and in effect.

ur. EXCEPTIONS
Explain any exceptions to the requirements above (attach additional sheets if necessary)

{'

4-

TV BID
I agree to furnish Inyo County with the products specified on the Bid Form for the prices indicated
below. I understand that the County is not obligated to order the refilling of the four empty totes but
pricing is established should the need arise.

1. New 250 gallon tote of CSSl-H Asphaltic Emulsion:

a. UNIT PRICE:

b. EXTENDED COST for Eight (8) Units:

$ tblsop
\1. \oo 

zu
$

Page 3 of 4



2. Refill of 250 gallon tote with CSSI-H Asphaltic Emulsion:

a. UNIT PRICE:

b. EXTENDED COST for Four (4) Units:

3. SUBTOTAL:
g,)s

4. SALES rLx(@_%)

$g
$

$

$

$

\5?.b
6, loc@

@

TOTAL PRICE..........
ft 161rt^L Ai;i';fr,,s^1

"?tiiilT'
lr

..$

PAVEMENT PRESERVATION SPECIALTIES, INC.

DBA ENVIRONMENTAL CONCEPTS

($
27801 HALE COURT

TEHACHAPI, CA 93561

BIDDER:

CompanyName:

Contact Name:

Address:

CitylStatelZip:

Phone Number:

Email Address:

V

1--- Fax Number:

CERTIFICATION
In submitting this bid, I understand that Inyo County reserves the right to reject any and all bids and./or
reject any and all items of such bids and/or waive any irregularities in a bid. By signature on this bid
document, I agree to the terms outlined in this Request for Bids. I certify that I am an authorized agent
for the above company

Signed:

Date:

Title

L t\

and lnyo

VI. BID SUBI\,IITTAL
Please submit your bid in a SEALED envelope labeled with "BID NO. RD20-08
and the name of the Bidder printed on the outside of the envelope.

Bids must be submitted by the tirne and date specified below to the Inyo County
Drawer N (mail), Independence, CA 93526, or by delivery to the Board Clerk at224N.
Independence, CA 93526 by or before 3:30 P.M. on November 4th. 2020.

Note: PLEASE BE ADVISED that despite information you may receive from mail services,
"Overnight" delivery by the USPS, UPS, FedEx, and other carriers is often scheduled as a two-day
delivery due to the remote nature of Inyo County.

Street,

Page 4 of 4



County of Inyo

Public Works
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  November 17, 2020 

FROM:  Ashley Helms 
 
SUBJECT:  Right of Way Acquisitions for the Walker Creek Road Bridge Replacement Project 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board:
A) approve the purchase agreement between the County of Inyo and the Indian Wells Water District, a public 
agency, of Ridgecrest, CA for the purchase of a highway easement deed in an amount not to exceed $1,300, and 
authorize the Public Works Director to sign;
B) approve the purchase agreement between the County of Inyo and Jose M. Nunez and Maria G. Nunez for the 
purchase of a highway easement deed in an amount not to exceed $1,000, and authorize the Public Works 
Director to sign;
C) approve Resolution No. 2020-43, titled, “A Resolution of theBoardof Supervisors of the County of Inyo 
Accepting a Highway Easement Deed Across APN 033-490-02 for the Realignment of a Portion of Walker Creek 
Road" and authorize the Chairperson to sign; and
D) approve Resolution No. 2020-44, titled, “A Resolution of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo 
Accepting a Highway Easement Deed Across APN 033-400-10 for the Realignment of a Portion of Walker Creek 
Road" and authorize the Chairperson to sign.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The Walker Creek Road Bridge Replacement Project (project) is 100% funded through the Highway Bridge 
Program, a Federal Highway Administration program administered locally by Caltrans District 9.  The project will 
replace the functionally obsolete 9 foot wide bridge, located west of Olancha. The new bridge will be constructed 
approximately 375 feet southeast of the existing bridge and will require the realignment of the approach roads in 
either direction; the roadway realignment impacts four undeveloped parcels. The sub-consultant responsible for 
Right of Way Acquisition has completed appraisals of the permanent road easements and temporary 
construction easements, and has negotiated the purchase agreements with the property owners.  This agenda 
item brings two of the acquisitions to the Board for approval and acceptance, the remaining two will follow shortly.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 

 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The Board could choose not to approve the purchase agreements and highway easement deeds, this is not 
recommended because the federally funded bridge replacement project cannot be constructed without the right 
of way acquisitions.



Agenda Request 
Page 2

 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Caltrans and the Federal Highway Administration
 
FINANCING:
The costs associated with the purchase agreements will be paid out of Budget 034601 (Road Projects - State 
Funded), Object Code 5736 (Walker Creek).  One hundred percent of these expenses are federally 
reimbursable.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. IWVWD Purchase Agreement
2. IWWD Highway Easement Deed
3. IWWD Resolution No. 2020-43
4. Nunez Purchase Agreement
5. Nunez Highway Easement Deed
6. Nunez Resolution No. 2020-44
 
APPROVALS:
Ashley Helms Created/Initiated - 10/30/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 11/2/2020
Ashley Helms Approved - 11/3/2020
Breanne Nelums Approved - 11/3/2020
Michael Errante Approved - 11/3/2020
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 11/3/2020
Amy Shepherd Approved - 11/3/2020
Michele Hartshorn Approved - 11/12/2020
Michael Errante Final Approval - 11/12/2020









































COPY



COPY



COPY



RESOLUTION NO. 20-43

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE COUNTY OF INYO 
ACCEPTING A HIGHWAY EASEMENT DEED ACROSS APN 033-490-02 FOR 

THE REALIGNMENT OF A PORTION OF WALKER CREEK ROAD

WHEREAS, the Indian Wells Water District (“Grantor”), as owners of the property located at APN 033-
490-02 (“the Property”), agrees to grant the County of Inyo (“Grantee”) a permanent easement and right-
of-way for public road purposes as described in the attached legal description as Exhibit “A” and associated 
map as Exhibit “B”;

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo (“the Board”) desires to accept that 
Highway Easement Deed; and

WHEREAS, the Board and the Grantor have mutually agreed to execute and record the Highway 
Easement Deed, and the Certificate of Acceptance pursuant to Government Code 27281, attached hereto, 
to achieve the goals set out above.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that:

1. The Board approves and accepts the Highway Easement Deed from the Grantor; and

2. The Board authorizes Michael Errante, in his capacity as the Director of Public Works, to 
execute the Certificate of Acceptance, pursuant to Government Code § 27281, for the 
Acceptance of the Highway Easement Deed on behalf of the Board.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this day of , 2020, by the following vote:

AYES:  
NOES:    
ABSTAIN: ________
ABSENT:  

Matt Kingsley, Chairperson
Inyo County Board of Supervisors

ATTEST: Clint Quilter
Clerk of the Board

By:  
Darcy Ellis,
Assistant Clerk of the Board























COPY



COPY





RESOLUTION NO. 20-44

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE COUNTY OF INYO 
ACCEPTING A HIGHWAY EASEMENT DEED ACROSS APN 033-400-10 FOR 

THE REALIGNMENT OF A PORTION OF WALKER CREEK ROAD

WHEREAS, Jose M. Nunez and Maria G. Nunez  (“Grantors”), as owners of the property located at 
APN 033-400-10 (“the Property”), agrees to grant the County of Inyo (“Grantee”) a permanent easement 
and right-of-way for public road purposes as described in the attached legal description as Exhibit “A” and 
associated map as Exhibit “B”;

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo (“the Board”) desires to accept that 
Highway Easement Deed; and

WHEREAS, the Board and the Grantor have mutually agreed to execute and record the Highway 
Easement Deed, and the Certificate of Acceptance pursuant to Government Code 27281, attached hereto, 
to achieve the goals set out above.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that:

1. The Board approves and accepts the Highway Easement Deed from the Grantors; and

2. The Board authorizes Michael Errante, in his capacity as the Director of Public Works, to 
execute the Certificate of Acceptance, pursuant to Government Code § 27281, for the 
Acceptance of the Highway Easement Deed on behalf of the Board.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this day of , 2020, by the following vote:

AYES:  
NOES:    
ABSTAIN: ________
ABSENT:  

Matt Kingsley, Chairperson
Inyo County Board of Supervisors

ATTEST: Clint Quilter
Clerk of the Board

By:  
Darcy Ellis,
Assistant Clerk of the Board



Stovepipe Wells Developed Area Improvements Newsletter  •  Page 1

Dear Friends,
The National Park Service is seeking feedback on improvements to the Stovepipe Wells Developed Area in Death 
Valley National Park (park) to improve visitor experience, safety, and park operations. The areas included in this 
effort are the Stovepipe Wells Village, Emigrant Junction, the Mesquite Flat Sand Dunes trailhead, Mosaic Canyon 
Road and trailhead, and the Devils Cornfield pullout. 

The vision for these improvements is to increase and enhance recreation opportunities, improve vehicle and 
pedestrian safety, update utilities and infrastructure, rehabilitate historical buildings, and reduce impacts to park 
resources. 

We invite you to participate in the planning process by submitting your ideas by December 23, 2020. We would like 
to hear your thoughts on the concepts, potential issues with park resources, visitor experience, as well as any other 
ideas you feel are relevant and important. We hope that you will join us in this important discussion regarding your 
public lands by submitting comments. Once we have received and considered your comments, we will move to the 
next phase, which will include assessing compliance needs under the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) 
and other environmental regulations. As we move forward with planning for the improvements at the Stovepipe 
Wells Developed Area, we encourage you to stay connected and be an active participant in this planning process.

Thank you for your interest and participation.

Mike Reynolds
Superintendent, Death Valley National Park

National Park Service
US Department of the Interior

Death Valley National Park
California • Nevada

Stovepipe Wells Developed Area Project  •  November 2020

DRAFT for Inyo County



Mosaic Canyon 

• The existing unpaved two-lane
Mosaic Canyon Road could be
improved through a range of
potential improvements to the
road, up to paving it with
asphalt. The final decision
regarding the treatment of the
road would consider the
results of an evaluation of the
road’s historical significance
and potential impacts to
resources. It would be
realigned where it connects to
the parking area, and the
parking would be better
delineated.

• A vault toilet and better
signage would be installed at
the trailhead.

Mesquite Flat Sand Dunes 

• A new trail would connect
the Stovepipe Wells Village to
Mesquite Flats Sand Dunes.

• The trailhead would be
improved to encourage more
focused visitor access to the
dunes, including signs and
benches.

Emigrant
Junction

Mosaic Canyon
Trailhead

Devils
CornfieldMesquite Flat 

Sand Dunes

Stovepipe
Wells

Airstrip

Devils Cornfield 

• Barriers would be installed at
the pullout and along CA-190
to discourage off-road driving.

• New signs along CA-190
would improve visitor safety.

Emigrant Junction 

• The historic ranger station
would be rehabilitated. A short
trail with interpretive wayside
signs would provide access to
the exterior of the ranger
station and surrounding
features built by the Civilian
Conservation Corps.

• The historic comfort station
would be rehabilitated, and the
adjacent parking area would be
realigned and repaved.

• To improve visitor safety, efforts
would be taken to warn drivers
of an upcoming developed area
(e.g., signs, beacons, mumble
strips), and a stop sign would be
installed at the parking lot by
the comfort station.

• The campground would receive
minor improvements but remain
rustic and semi-primitive.

• Operational improvements
would include installing two
trailer pads for campground
hosts behind the ranger station;
installing an off-grid solar power
system; and replacing the water
system and 5-mile-long
waterline along Emigrant
Canyon Road.

Airstrip 

• The airstrip would be removed
and replaced by a night sky
viewing area.

Airport

Stovepipe Wells Developed Area Improvements Newsletter  •  Page 2

DRAFT for Inyo County



Sewage
Lagoons

Campground

Hotel / 
Consession 

Area

Maintenance / 
Operations

Area

Water 
Treatment

Plant

General Store
and Gas 
Station

Infrastructure Projects

• Operational improvements 
would include a new staff 
dormitory and the renovating 
of staff RV pads; expanding 
the fire and ambulance station 
to accommodate modern 
vehicles, a workshop, offices, 
and upgrades to the potable 
water and wastewater systems.

Stovepipe Wells 
Campground

• The campground would be 
redesigned for separate tent 
and RV areas, to increase 
privacy at each site, provide 
picnic tables, shade structures, 
improve walking paths and 
traffic flow, and improve 
accessibility. A group site would 
be added. A second restroom 
would be constructed. This ould 
result in a reduction in the 
number of sites, in order to stay 
within the existing 
campground’s footprint.

Pedestrian Projects

• A crosswalk and overhead
lighting would be added
across CA-190.

• Pedestrian walkways would be
added.

Ranger Station &
Gas Station
• A new ranger station would be

constructed west of the General
Store. The existing ranger
station east of the gas station
would be demolished.

• A day use area would be
constructed near the new
ranger station. The day use area
would include picnic tables,
trash receptacles, and shade
structures.

• The gas station would be
adapted to sell diesel by adding
a second above-ground fuel
tank and expanding the fuel
dispensing area.

CA-190

Tra
il to

 Mesquite Flat Sand Dunes

Airport

Landscape Projects

• Landscaping in the developed
area would provide visitors
with more shade and
separation between areas.

Stovepipe Wells Village

Stovepipe Wells Developed Area Improvements Newsletter  •  Page 3

DRAFT for Inyo County



How to Comment
Public participation is an important element of the planning process, and 
we welcome your ideas, concerns, suggestions, and potential topics for 
consideration. 

Please share your comments no later than December 23, 2020 online at 
http://parkplanning.nps.gov/deva or mail your comments to:

Stovepipe Wells Developed Area Improvements Project
Superintendent, Death Valley National Park 
P.O. Box 579 
Death Valley, CA 923282

You should be aware that your entire comment, including your personal identifying 
information, may be made publicly available at any time. You may request that the 
NPS withhold your name and/or address from public disclosure. If you wish to do this, 
you must state this prominently at the beginning of your comment and make such a 
request by checking the box “keep my contact information private” on the website. The 
NPS will honor such requests to the extent allowable by law, but individuals should be 
aware that the NPS may still be required to disclose personal identifying information. 

Guiding Questions for Public Comments
1. What suggestions do you have for us to consider when redesigning Stovepipe

Wells Campground?

2. What suggestions do you have regarding the proposal to remove the airstrip
and replace it with a night-sky viewing area?

3. We are considering changes to Mosaic Canyon Road which could include
paving it. What suggestions do you have?

4. What other comments do you have about the proposed Stovepipe Wells
Developed Area improvements at Stovepipe Wells Village, Emigrant
Junction, the Mesquite Flat Sand Dunes, Mosaic Canyon, and Devils
Cornfield?

Planning Phase Estimated Date

Civic Engagement / Comment Analysis* November - December 2020

Refine Actions January 2021

Prepare Compliance Documents January - April 2021

Public Review of Compliance Documents May - June 2021

Publish Decision August 2021

* Indicates the current phase of the project

Planning Process
The following table presents the planning timeline. Opportunities to 
comment are highlighted.

Stovepipe Wells Developed Area Improvements Newsletter  •  Page 4

DRAFT for Inyo County



County of Inyo

Planning Department
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  November 17, 2020 

FROM:  Cathreen Richards 
 
SUBJECT:   
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board receive a presentation from staff regarding a grant proposal from the Nature Conservancy to 
purchase property in Chicago Valley; review draft comment letters; provide comments; and authorize the 
Chairperson to sign.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
A Pacific Flyway Conservation grant application (attached) was submitted to the WCB from the Nature 
Conservancy to obtain property in Chicago Valley. It is in the southeast part of the County located about 6-miles 
to the east of Shoshone (Maps attached). The initial proposal was to purchase eight parcels, but the most recent 
proposal has been changed to four, according to WCB staff. The other four parcels are being purchased out right 
by the nature conservancy without grant funding. A single 40-acre parcel has already been purchased by the 
Nature Conservancy that is adjacent to the parcels proposed for purchase. It was most currently owned by David 
Suculla, who had proposed to develop a cannabis cultivation project on it. The total acquisition of property is 
about 1,000 acres that has been owned by Charles Sorrells for many years. 

The Conservancy is buying this land for the goal of wildlife habitat, open space and groundwater protection. 
There is a mesquite bosque on this land that is part of the largest intact block of mesquite in the eastern Mojave 
Desert. It provides habitat to local flora and fauna as well as for migrating birds. The Nature conservancy is also 
buying this property to prevent future development that may require groundwater use. This is, in part, in reaction 
to the cannabis cultivation project proposed on David Sucullo’s 40-acre parcel. The Conditional Use Permit 
application for cannabis cultivation has been withdrawn. A statement provided in an e-mail from WCB staff 
indicates that the Nature Conservancy intends to continue to pay local property taxes to Inyo County on these 
parcels and that they have set funds aside for this in their long-term stewardship budget.

This grant request was scheduled to go before the WBC on November 18th, 2020, but has been delayed until 
February 2021. The County can still submit a letter to the WCB regarding the Nature Conservancy grant 
proposal. Staff recommends also sending a letter to the Nature Conservancy. Both are attached for the Boards 
review and comment.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:

 
FINANCING:
Resources from the Planning Department’s general budget are utilized to monitor planning related activities.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. The Nature Conservancy Chicago Valley Full Application Form
2. Vicinity Map
3. Parcels Map
4. Comment Letter 11.17.2020 Wildlife Conservation Board
5. Comment Letter 11.17.2020 Nature Conservancy
 
APPROVALS:
Cathreen Richards Created/Initiated - 11/3/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 11/3/2020
Cathreen Richards Final Approval - 11/6/2020



Page 1 of 12
WILDLIFE CONSERVATION BOARD | Pacific Flyway Conservation – Full Application Form 2019

Wildlife Conservation Board
Pacific Flyway Conservation

2019 Full Application Form

PROJECT INFORMATION TABLES
Insert responses to every question.  Use N/A where appropriate.

 SUMMARY

Title  Chicago Valley Acquisition
Abstract  This 1,000-acre acquisition in Chicago Valley would protect valuable Pacific 

Flyway migratory bird habitat in the Amargosa watershed. Protecting this 
mesquite habitat is essential to foraging and nesting Pacific Flyway migrants. 
This acquisition would also prevent inappropriate use of the groundwater 
aquifer that supports both the mesquite habitat and the important habitat in 
the nearby Wild and Scenic Amargosa River.

Total Cost
(round up to nearest $1,000)

$1,559,000 Amount Requested 
(round up to the nearest $1,000)

$889,000

Start Date October, 2019 End Date January 15, 2021

Habitat Type/Acres Mesquite bosque and sand dunes (870 acres), Creosote bush scrub (130 acres).

Project Type
(check all that apply)

            Planning                    Implementation                 Acquisition                                   

LOCATION INFO

County(ies) Inyo Specific Location
 (APN or Address) 

Shoshone/Tecopa
APNs: 046-100-01, 
08, 17, 18, 20, 21, 22, 
23, 24

Nearest City Shoshone Distance 6 miles
Latitude 

(Decimal Degrees)
36.000721 Longitude

(Decimal Degrees)
-116.186421

What is represented by the lat/long coordinates? 
(e.g., center of project site):

North western site boundary

 



Page 2 of 12
WILDLIFE CONSERVATION BOARD | Pacific Flyway Conservation – Full Application Form 2019

APPLICANT INFO

Organization Type   State Government                          Federal Government
 Local Government                             Nonprofit Organization* 

Organization Name The Nature Conservancy (TNC)
Contact Person Sophie Parker Title Senior Scientist

Phone 626-720-1296 E-mail sophie_parker@tnc.org
Address 445 S. Figueroa St., Suite 1950, Los Angeles, CA 90071

Signatory Name Scott Morrison Title Director of Conservation Programs 
and Science

Address 201 Mission Street, San Francisco, CA 94104;  Fourth Floor
Tax ID# 53-0242652

* If qualified under Section 501(c)(3) provide 501(c)(3) nonprofit organization and registered to work in 
California. Number: 006957

Project Overview:  In three paragraphs or less, clearly describe the project and how it will advance the 
priorities and objectives described in the Proposal Solicitation Notice (PSN).

The Nature Conservancy (TNC) is requesting grant funding to support the acquisition of 1,000 
privately held acres in Chicago Valley, California. This project is located on the northern edge 
of the mapped Sonoran Joint Venture boundary, and deep in the heart of the Mojave Desert, 
the driest region in North America. The wetland, riparian, and groundwater-dependent 
habitats of this region are an exceedingly important resource for migratory birds within the 
Pacific Flyway. 

This project advances priority 1 in the Proposal Solicitation Notice: to protect migratory bird 
habitat through a fee title acquisition. This acquisition would directly protect honey mesquite 
(Prosopis glandulosa) habitat and would prevent inappropriate use of the groundwater 
aquifer that supports both this habitat and the nearby Wild and Scenic Amargosa River. Both 
of these protections would serve to benefit valuable Pacific Flyway migratory bird habitat in 
the Mojave Desert. The mesquite bosque occupying Chicago Valley between Resting Springs 
and the north end of the valley is the largest intact block of mesquite habitat in the eastern 
Mojave Desert. Mesquite flowers in the spring and attracts the insects that sustain migratory 
birds. It also constitutes important nesting and roosting habitat. 

If TNC were not able to complete the acquisition and the target parcels were purchased and 
developed for cannabis cultivation or other projects that required groundwater use, both the 
mesquite bosque in Chicago Valley and the underground flow of water that sustains the 
Amargosa River would be severely threatened. 



Page 3 of 12
WILDLIFE CONSERVATION BOARD | Pacific Flyway Conservation – Full Application Form 2019

 LANDOWNER INFO

Landowner Type   State Government                        Federal Government
 Local Government                           Nonprofit Organization
 Private Landowner                           Other      

Landowner Name Charles Sorrells and Alice Keefer, husband and wife; Old West Land Company, 
LLC, a Nevada limited liability company; James L. Gilliam; Vance K. Gilliam; 
Jamee L. Best; Ralph J Gilliam; Brian and Louise Brown, Trustees of the Charles 
F. Brown Living Trust dated February 2, 1985; George A. Brown

Contact Person Charles Sorrells Title Landowner
Phone 250-764-1346 E-mail keefer@teleus.net

Address 385 Uplands Court, Kelowna, BC V1W 4J7 Canada
Signatory Name Various – see willing seller 

letters
Title Various – see willing seller letters

Mineral Rights Holder Various (Landowner, United States, State of California)

 ELECTED OFFICIALS
Districts Numbers Names

State Assembly
https://www.assembly.ca.gov/ 

26th Devon Mathis

State Senate
https://www.senate.ca.gov/

8th Andreas Borgeas

Applicant Signature:  “By signing this form, I certify that I am authorized to apply for this grant and the 
information contained in this Application and its attachments is true and accurate to the best of my 
knowledge.”

Printed Name: Scott Morrison Title: Director of Conservation Programs and Science

Signature:                          Date: 11/4/19

mailto:keefer@teleus.net
https://www.assembly.ca.gov/
https://www.senate.ca.gov/


Page 4 of 12
WILDLIFE CONSERVATION BOARD | Pacific Flyway Conservation – Full Application Form 2019

NARRATIVE QUESTIONS
Concisely respond to each of the following questions.  Combined responses to narrative questions, not 
including figures or tables, are expected to range between 5 to 10 single-spaced, letter-size (8.5” x 11”) 
pages and should not exceed 15 pages.

Applicability to Solicitation Priorities 

1. Explain how the proposed project aligns with the PSN priorities and would advance the 
Proposition 68 objectives described in the PSN. Include a detailed description of the 
project background, rationale for the project need, scientific basis for the proposed work, 
and expected results from the project.  Describe anticipated consequences if WCB does 
not fund this project at this time.  Identify relevant, related projects or phases that have 
already been planned or implemented.

One of the objectives of Prop 68 is to protect and restore habitat associated with the Pacific 
Flyway. We are requesting grant funding to support the acquisition of 1,000 acres of 
privately held land in Chicago Valley, California, which is deep in the heart of the Mojave 
Desert. This acquisition sits squarely in Priority 1 of the PSN, “acquisitions that protect 
migratory bird habitat”. 

Located in the driest region in North America, the project will protect rare, groundwater-
dependent desert habitat for the birds of the Pacific Flyway. The protection of Chicago 
Valley through the acquisition of the target parcels would directly address Proposition 68 
objectives relating to “…the acquisition, development, rehabilitation, restoration, protection, 
and expansion of wildlife corridors and open space to improve connectivity and reduce 
barriers between habitat areas and to protect and restore habitat associated with the 
Pacific Flyway.”

The wetland, riparian, and groundwater-dependent habitats of the Amargosa region, where 
Chicago Valley is located, are an exceedingly important resource for migratory birds within 
the Pacific Flyway. This acquisition would directly protect honey mesquite (Prosopis 
glandulosa) habitat and would prevent inappropriate use of the groundwater aquifer that 
supports both this habitat and the nearby Wild and Scenic Amargosa River. Both of these 
protections would serve to benefit valuable Pacific Flyway migratory bird habitat in the 
Mojave Desert.

Protecting the extensive acreage of mesquite occupying the target parcels in the Chicago 
Valley is essential to foraging and nesting Pacific Flyway migrants. Mesquite flowers in the 
spring and attracts the insects that sustain migratory birds. Many species nest or seek 
shelter in mesquite as well. The mesquite bosque occupying Chicago Valley between 
Resting Springs and the north end of the valley is the largest intact block of mesquite 
habitat in the eastern Mojave Desert. 

Mesquite requires shallow groundwater. The shallow aquifer under Chicago Valley supports 
both the mesquite onsite and significant perennial flow into the groundwater-dependent 



Page 5 of 12
WILDLIFE CONSERVATION BOARD | Pacific Flyway Conservation – Full Application Form 2019

Wild and Scenic Amargosa River. By acquiring the target parcels in Chicago Valley, we can 
ensure that the groundwater flowing beneath these parcels is not extracted for uses 
incompatible with long-term habitat protection. 

If The Nature Conservancy (TNC) were not able to complete the acquisition of these target 
parcels in Chicago Valley, and the parcels were purchased and developed for cannabis 
cultivation or other projects that required groundwater use, the onsite mesquite habitat 
and the groundwater flow that supports both it and the Amargosa River would be severely 
threatened. In fact, one of the neighboring parcels was acquired by a potential cannabis 
cultivator. 

2. Describe how the project aligns with the goals, objectives, and priorities outlined within 
the WCB Strategic Plan (e.g., Goals B.1 or B.5 from the 2014 Strategic Plan). 

Although Prop 68’s Pacific Flyway provisions were not in effect at the time of the original 
strategic plan, as a land acquisition project involving habitat for wildlife, this project clearly 
fits in Goal A of WCB’s  2014 Strategic Plan calling for WCB to “Acquire and invest in wildlife 
habitat and natural areas, and work towards long-term, landscape level conservation, 
habitat quality and connectivity, and the success of wildlife species and populations”.   

Significance of the Benefits

3. Explain how this project will result in multiple tangible benefits (e.g., wildlife habitat, 
water quality, carbon storage, nutrient cycling, etc.) and their significance to the PSN 
priorities and Proposition 68 objectives.

This project will result in multiple tangible benefits, including the protection of wildlife 
habitat, connectivity and open space, and groundwater resources. 

Chicago Valley provides important wildlife habitat for a variety of birds and other species. 
This project will acquire 1,000 acres of this habitat, thereby addressing the Prop 68 
objective to support “…the acquisition, development, rehabilitation, restoration, protection, 
and expansion of wildlife corridors and open space to improve connectivity and reduce 
barriers between habitat areas and to protect and restore habitat associated with the 
Pacific Flyway.”

TNC and partner scientists conducted an expert bioblitz in 2016 to provide a detailed 
assessment of the biological and archaeological resources in Chicago Valley. A variety of 
bird species have been documented at the project site, both during the expert bioblitz, and 
through field surveys conducted by staff of TNC who are deeply familiar with the birds of 
the Amargosa region. Many of the region’s songbird species use Chicago Valley’s mesquite 
habitat during migration. Studies have shown that neotropical songbird migration is timed 

https://tnc.box.com/s/fzwgtgcfepo5ahs58hnoij7pe490z7ar


Page 6 of 12
WILDLIFE CONSERVATION BOARD | Pacific Flyway Conservation – Full Application Form 2019

to the blossoming of honey mesquite (see McGrath et al., 2009). Bird species of Special 
Concern that breed in Chicago Valley include Crissal Thrasher (Toxostoma crissale), Lucy's 
Warbler (Leiothlypis luciae), and Loggerhead Shrike (Lanius ludovicianus). Other species that 
breed in the valley include Gambel’s Quail (Callipepla gambelii), Phainopepla (Phainopepla 
nitens), Verdin (Auriparus flaviceps), Greater Roadrunner (Geococcyx californianus), and 
Black-throated Sparrow (Amphispiza bilineata). Least Bell's Vireo (Vireo bellii pusillus), and 
Brewer’s Sparrow (Spizella breweri) forage in the valley. The Sonoran Joint Venture Bird 
Conservation Plan specifically names all these species as high priority species for 
conservation action within the Arid Borderlands Region (Sonoran and Mojave Deserts).

Beyond the bird species that will directly benefit from the protection of the mesquite 
habitat in Chicago Valley, many species of plants and animals will benefit from the 
protection of the intact landscape currently present in the valley. The majority of the 
private lands in Chicago Valley will be acquired through this project. Most of the remaining 
nearby lands are already publicly owned and managed for conservation values—both 
mountain ranges surrounding the valley are currently protected as parts of the Nopah 
Range Wilderness. Protection of the valley bottom will allow there to be a contiguous swath 
of protected habitat that runs from the southern portion of the Resting Springs Range, 
across Chicago Valley, and up through the Nopah Mountains. This project will ensure that 
this currently intact landscape and the open space, connectivity, and wildlife corridor 
benefits it exhibits, are not severed by incompatible human activities.

In addition to wildlife and open space benefits, there are also important benefits related to 
groundwater protection that will occur due to this project. The groundwater basin that 
underlies this area and the wider Amargosa region is a deep carbonate aquifer that contains 
very old and slowly moving water. The mesquite habitat in Chicago Valley is directly 
supported by this groundwater aquifer. Extraction of groundwater anywhere in the basin is 
a potential threat to the long-term survival of groundwater dependent vegetation, the 
aboveground water expressed as springs in both the Chicago Valley and along the Amargosa 
River, and all the plants and animals dependent on groundwater and surface water habitats 
in the region. This project will prevent this extraction from occurring, thereby protecting the 
groundwater basin and the species that depend upon it.
 

Durability of Investment/Climate Change Considerations

4. Describe the extent to which a project will deliver enduring, sustainable benefits.  What 
are the provisions to maintain the benefits and for what period of time?  Are there any 
protections or restrictions affecting the project (e.g., carbon offset projects, conservation 
easements, etc.)?

Implementation project proposals must include a Long-Term Management Plan (or the 
equivalent) addressing how the project will be maintained for a minimum of 25 years.  
Acquisition projects should outline a 25-year management strategy for the property.

https://besjournals.onlinelibrary.wiley.com/doi/pdf/10.1111/j.1365-2656.2008.01464.x


Page 7 of 12
WILDLIFE CONSERVATION BOARD | Pacific Flyway Conservation – Full Application Form 2019

An expert bioblitz performed in 2016 by TNC and partner scientists in the Chicago Valley 
provides a detailed assessment of the biological and archaeological significance of the site 
and indicates that the baseline condition of the habitat is healthy. Invasive nonnative plant 
species are uncommon, and displacement of native habitat or species has not been 
observed.

Acquisition of this property will address the primary threat: land conversion of contiguous 
groundwater-dependent habitat to cultivated cannabis and industrial lands. Should 
protection of this land not occur, our expectation is that land conversion will cause the loss 
of essential nesting and foraging honey mesquite habitat for Pacific Flyway migrants; 
concurrent overuse of groundwater will lead to subsequent degradation of honey mesquite 
habitat. 

With over 500,000 acres in conservation holdings statewide, TNC California has the 
expertise to plan long-term management activities on our assets. All lands owned and 
managed by TNC are visited regularly for monitoring and management activities. TNC also 
regularly monitors, studies, and evaluates management actions to adapt to changing 
circumstances. As acquisition of this property will address current known threats to the site, 
monitoring of the honey mesquite habitat and target migratory bird species is the most 
pressing ongoing activity. In the near term (1-5 years), plans for site stabilization include 
trespass control and debris removal. Long Term (5-25+ years) management could include 
these activities, in addition to monitoring and treatment of new nonnative invasive plant 
species, monitoring of groundwater using a groundwater monitoring well in Chicago Valley, 
monitoring of the mesquite habitat depending on this groundwater, and monitoring of the 
bird species that use the mesquite habitat. 

5. Explain how the proposed project will provide climate change adaptation and resilience 
benefits to wildlife, habitat, and ecosystem function.  

While much of the land in the Mojave Desert has been conserved through the designation 
of protected areas and management that directly supports conservation (Randall et al. 
2010), the long-term sustainability of biodiversity in the desert is being called into question 
by climate change. The world’s deserts constitute an important global hotspot for the 
impacts of climate change on wildlife (Vale et al. 2015). New studies that repeat the 
baseline-setting surveys of Joseph Grinnell demonstrate that despite good landscape 
intactness and integrity in the Mojave Desert, bird populations have declined dramatically 
over the past century (Riddel et al. 2019). The explanation for this is not so much hotter 
temperatures as it is reductions in rainfall, and loss of the climate refuge areas provided by 
wetlands, riparian zones, and groundwater dependent vegetation in the desert. 

Groundwater extraction exacerbates climate changes problems in the desert by further 
reducing what are already precious and limited resources: surface water, and shallow 
groundwater that is accessed by vegetation. By acquiring and placing in conservation 
management the privately-owned parcels that overlie important groundwater basins, we 
can not only prevent the destruction of habitat onsite, thereby preventing the 

https://tnc.box.com/s/fzwgtgcfepo5ahs58hnoij7pe490z7ar
https://www.scienceforconservation.org/assets/downloads/Mojave_Desert_Ecoregional_Assessment_2010.pdf
https://www.scienceforconservation.org/assets/downloads/Mojave_Desert_Ecoregional_Assessment_2010.pdf
https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/pii/S2351989415000852
https://www.pnas.org/content/116/43/21609


Page 8 of 12
WILDLIFE CONSERVATION BOARD | Pacific Flyway Conservation – Full Application Form 2019

fragmentation of connected and intact Mojave Desert landscapes, but we also prevent 
future groundwater extraction. This prevents the vegetation that is dependent on this 
groundwater from dying and supports important habitats that serve as climate refugia for 
birds and other wildlife in the desert. 

The privately-owned lands in Chicago Valley present an excellent opportunity to protect 
groundwater resources in the desert, thereby supporting conservation goals for bird species 
that live in the mesquite habitat onsite, and for species associated with other groundwater 
dependent ecosystems along the Amargosa River nearby. Recent research supports the 
conclusion that there is a hydrological connection between the groundwater in Chicago 
Valley and the groundwater which supports the spring-fed and perennially-flowing portions 
of the Amargosa River (Belcher et al. 2019). These sites are both part of a deep, ancient, 
carbonate aquifer that also supports the wetland ecosystems of Ash Meadows National 
Wildlife Refuge. This groundwater aquifer is not being replenished naturally by rainfall at a 
rate that can sustain intense human use. Water extraction anywhere in the basin has the 
potential to negatively impact groundwater-dependent ecosystems elsewhere in the basin. 
The drawdown of an aquifer may occur without any noticeable effects for many years, but 
the cone of depression in groundwater levels can, over time, be observed at great distances 
and result in groundwater-dependent resources being impacted far from the point of 
extraction. Therefore, the benefits of protecting Chicago Valley go well beyond this project 
site, both spatially and temporally. 

The sustainability and resilience of populations of birds and other wildlife in the Amargosa 
region depends on sites like Chicago Valley being protected in perpetuity from extractive 
groundwater use, and from habitat destruction. The patches of wetland, riparian, and 
groundwater-dependent habitat found within the Amargosa region are spatially separated 
by great distances of arid uplands. These groundwater-fed habitats support populations of 
species, some of which (like birds) are able to travel between the patches. Therefore, the 
elimination of any single habitat patch within the system has the potential to impact the 
entire metapopulation of these species. This is particularly true when the habitat patch in 
question is one of the largest contained in the system, as is the case of the mesquite bosque 
found in Chicago Valley. Because the birds and wide-ranging mammals that travel through 
the Mojave Desert and use various habitat patches are also important consumers of insects, 
small vertebrate species, and plants, they exert important controls over a variety of 
ecosystem functions – from pollination to carbon sequestration. 

6. For implementation projects, describe applicable Management and/or Monitoring plans 
and how they pertain to the project.  

Not applicable

Approach and Feasibility

7. Describe how the proposed project will be carried out.  Explain how the approach and 
methodology are appropriate for the project objectives.

https://pubs.usgs.gov/sir/2018/5151/sir20185151.pdf


Page 9 of 12
WILDLIFE CONSERVATION BOARD | Pacific Flyway Conservation – Full Application Form 2019

This is an acquisition project.  TNC and the Landowner have signed a Letter of Intent and 
obtained an appraisal of the property. TNC and the Landowner will be executing an Option 
Agreement for TNC’s purchase of the property which will include a 12-month due diligence 
period for TNC to review the condition of the property. TNC will obtain a Phase I environmental 
assessment and determine whether to purchase property after reviewing all the due diligence.  
After TNC’s acquisition of the property, TNC will manage the property for attracting Pacific 
Flyway birds and birdwatchers. After closing, TNC will explore options for public access for 
birdwatching. 

Monitoring and Reporting

8. Describe how the effectiveness of the project will be monitored, assessed, and reported.  
All project proposals must include a Monitoring and Reporting Plan (or the equivalent) 
addressing project-specific performance measures, opportunities to extend the 
monitoring activities beyond the term of the grant, and how monitoring results and 
progress towards objectives will be reported. 

According to the PSN, “Planning and implementation project proposals are required to include a 
Monitoring and Reporting Plan…”, but this is an acquisition project. TNC regularly monitors, 
studies, and evaluates management actions to adapt to changing circumstances. An outline of 
our 25-year management strategy for this project is provided in answer to question 4, above.

Project Team Qualifications

9. Describe your organization’s relevant experience, resources, and capacity to successfully 
complete the proposed project. Provide examples of similar grant-funded projects 
previously completed by your organization. Identify key partners or subcontractors who 
will contribute to project work.

TNC is a global conservation organization that leads projects in all 50 states and in 72 countries 
around the world to conserve and restore natural habitats and associated biodiversity. TNC has 
worked to protect land and waters in California for over 60 years. TNC’s California Field Office 
has successfully completed numerous land acquisition and conservation easement projects and 
real estate assists with support the support of WCB, including American River Headwaters 
Property, Caliente Ranch and Toll House Ranch in the Tehachapi Mountains, Parker, Smith-Vest 
and Perry-Smith conservation easements in the North Coast, and many others.

TNC will staff this acquisition with seasoned real estate professionals: Jake Jacobson has been 
with TNC for 19 years as Real Estate Project Manager, and Sharon Wasserman has been with 
TNC for 14 years as both an attorney and as Associate Director for Transactions. Sophie Parker, 
who has been a scientist at TNC for 12 years and has led a team of scientists in documenting 
the habitats and species present in Chicago Valley during the 2016 expert bioblitz, will be the 



Page 10 of 12
WILDLIFE CONSERVATION BOARD | Pacific Flyway Conservation – Full Application Form 2019

Senior Scientist for the project. Susan North, who has been with the Conservancy for 3 years, 
will manage the property after acquisition. Susan currently manages over 20,000 acres of 
Conservancy property in California.

Schedule and Deliverables

10. Detail the sequence and timing of project tasks, milestones, and deliverables to complete 
the project within the grant term (i.e., project must be complete, and funds expended, no 
later than March 31, 2024).   

TNC expects to execute an Option Agreement by December 1, 2019.  We will have one year 
from that point to complete due diligence and exercise the option to purchase the property.  
We expect to exercise the option on or before October 31, 2020 and close by January 15, 2021.

Project Readiness

11. Demonstrate how property access, environmental compliance, permitting, planning, 
engineering design, and any other necessary preparations have been addressed and are 
sufficient to ensure prompt project implementation.  For acquisition projects, other 
relevant preparations include appraisal, purchase and sales agreement, option 
agreement, preliminary title report, etc.  If the applicant must be granted site access to 
implement the project or conduct long-term management or monitoring, provide the 
access agreement (draft agreement will suffice) and evidence that the party authorized to 
grant access is willing to do so.

This is an acquisition project. The appraisal by Warren H. Nevel was completed on June 14, 
2019.  A preliminary title report was prepared for the appraiser by Inyo-Mono Title Company on 
April 26, 2019. The Conservancy anticipates that the Option Agreement will be executed by all 
parties by December 1, 2019 or soon thereafter. 

12. List each environmental document and permit that will be required for the project and 
provide the date completed or current status and date anticipated to be completed.  If 
the proposed project may qualify for a CEQA exemption, identify which exemption(s) and 
explain why.  If the project does not qualify for a CEQA exemption, identify the “lead 
agency” under CEQA, which type of environmental document may be required and its 
current status. Provide the State Clearinghouse Number, if available.

This is a fee title acquisition for fish and wildlife conservation purposes and to preserve open 
space and habitat. The acquisition project is statutorily exempt from CEQA under Section 
21080.28, which was recently added to the Public Resources Code by Assembly Bill No. 782, 
Chapter 181, approved by the Governor August 30, 2019, and filed with the Secretary of State 
August 30, 2019. No permits are required to acquire fee title to the Property. The Wildlife 



Page 11 of 12
WILDLIFE CONSERVATION BOARD | Pacific Flyway Conservation – Full Application Form 2019

Conservation Board would be the lead CEQA agency for the acquisition and prepare and file the 
Notice of Exemption. 

Budget

13. Complete the Budget Worksheets referenced in the PSN (A. Applicant Budget; B. Budget 
Justification; C. Cost Share).  See the PSN for information regarding project budgets and 
cost share.  Submit the completed Budget Worksheets as attachments to the Application 
Form.

See attached

Cost Share

14. Provide evidence (e.g., letters, contact information) of secured cost share.  In the absence 
of secured cost share, describe any budget shortfall and how it will be addressed.

Costs exceeding the grant amount, including purchase price and related acquisition costs, will 
be covered by TNC Chapter reserves currently in hand. Please see the budget workbook for 
additional details.

Community Support and Collaboration

15. Provide evidence of broad-based public and/or institutional support for the project at the 
local, regional, or larger scale.  Discuss local community or other stakeholder engagement 
in project delivery (e.g., involvement with project planning/design, outreach, 
implementation, monitoring, maintenance, etc.).

TNC has worked to acquire and manage lands for conservation in the Amargosa region since the 
early 1970s, and has partnered with a variety of individuals, organizations, and institutions to 
do this work. As such, this project has broad support, both from members of the local 
community, and from members of the public living in other communities in California and 
across the United States. Please see attached letters of support from community members, 
local business owners, members of the public who recreate in this area, 
organizations/institutions, and scientists that work in the Amargosa region.

Serving Disadvantaged Communities

16. Explain whether the project provides direct benefits to severely disadvantaged 
communities and/or is located within a disadvantaged community.  See the PSN for 
instructions how to make these determinations.



Page 12 of 12
WILDLIFE CONSERVATION BOARD | Pacific Flyway Conservation – Full Application Form 2019

100% of the proposed project area is located within a severely disadvantaged community. The 
median household income for the census block group in Inyo County in which the project is 
located is $31,350. In addition to being located within a severely disadvantage community, the 
proposed project would also provide direct benefits to a severely disadvantaged community 
because it preserves a site that could be used by the public in the future, thereby enhancing 
public recreational opportunities such as hiking and birdwatching. The location of the Chicago 
Valley project is adjacent to a public highway, and can be accessed by a public road, both of 
which would facilitate this access. 

CCC/CALCC Services

17. Describe whether and to what extent the project will utilize California Conservation Corps 
(CCC) and/or California Association of Local Conservation Corps (CALCC) services.  The 
Corps Consultation Review Document can be used to determine feasibility for CCC or 
CALCC to provide project services. 

Not applicable

END OF APPLICATION

http://nrm.dfg.ca.gov/FileHandler.ashx?DocumentID=168148&inline






 

November 17, 2020

Wildlife Conservation Board
John P. Donnelly, Executive Director
PO Box 944209
Sacramento, CA 94244-2090

RE: Pacific Flyway Conservation 2019 application from the Nature Conservancy for Chicago Valley 
Acquisition

Mr. Donnelly:

On behalf of the Inyo County Board of Supervisors, I would like to thank you for the opportunity to 
comment on this grant application. I would also like to thank your staff, particularly Jasen Yee, for 
the time, assistance and information he provided to Inyo County staff to help us understand the 
application. The Board would also like to offer the following comments.

In general, we are not against the acquisition of the Sorrells property by Nature Conservancy. We are 
also keenly aware of the unique and important habitat that is found on it and are quite proud of the 
mesquite bosque that covers much of it. We are, however, always concerned when large amounts of 
private property is taken out of the pool of land for potential development in the County. Inyo County 
has less than 2-pecent of its total land area in private ownership. The rest is public land under 
Federal, and State management or owned by the City of Los Angeles. This dearth of private land 
makes it difficult for the County to realize meaningful economic development, other than tourism, 
which does not provide for the best wages for our citizens. It also keeps the majority of County land 
off the tax roll, which in turn makes it difficult for the County to provide services to its residents. 

It was indicated to us that the Nature Conservancy has a plan to continue to pay property taxes on this 
land if they do acquire it. We strongly support this, and ask that the Wildlife Conservation Board do 
the same as the grant proposal is reviewed. The application also states under #7, Approach and 
Feasibility, that after closing, the Nature Conservancy will explore options for public access for bird 
watching. We highly encourage this for all of the time this property might be owned by the Nature 
Conservancy. If the area is to no longer to be privately owned, then it should be open to the public to 
be enjoyed. This could also be an excellent educational opportunity on desert ecosystems.

Sincerely,

Matt Kingsley, Chairperson
Inyo County Board of Supervisors

CC: 

MEMBERS  OF THE  BOARD
DAN TOTHEROH
JEFF GRIFFITHS

RICK PUCCI    
MARK  TILLEMANS             
MATT  KINGSLEY     

CLINT G. QUILTER      
Clerk of the Board

DARCY ELLIS
Assistant Clerk of the Board

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
COUNTY OF INYO

P. O. BOX N   INDEPENDENCE, CALIFORNIA 93526
TELEPHONE (760) 878-0373 

e-mail: dellis@inyocounty.us



Supervisor Rick Pucci
Supervisor Jeff Griffiths
Supervisor Mark Tillemans
Supervisor Dan Totheroh
Clint Quilter, County Administrative Officer



 

November 17, 2020

The Nature Conservancy
Scott Morrison, Director of Conservation Programs and Science
201 Mission Street
San Francisco, CA 94104

RE: Pacific Flyway Conservation 2019 application from the Nature Conservancy for Chicago Valley 
Acquisition

Mr. Morrison:

On behalf of the Inyo County Board of Supervisors, I would like offer comments on the grant 
application prepared by the Nature Conservancy for the Chicago Valley Acquisition. First of all, I 
would like to say that a land acquisition of this scale by a conservation organization should be shared 
with the local jurisdiction in which it is occurring. We would have greatly appreciated being 
informed by the Nature Conservancy about its plans for Chicago Valley prior to finding out about the 
grant.

In general, we are not against the acquisition of the Sorrells property by Nature Conservancy. We are 
also keenly aware of the unique and important habitat that is found on it and are quite proud of the 
mesquite bosque that covers much of it. We are, however, always concerned when large amounts of 
private property is taken out of the pool of land for potential development in the County. Inyo County 
has less than 2-pecent of its total land area in private ownership. The rest is public land under 
Federal, and State management or owned by the City of Los Angeles. This dearth of private land 
makes it difficult for the County to realize meaningful economic development, other than tourism, 
which does not provide for the best wages for our citizens. It also keeps the majority of County land 
off the tax roll, which in turn makes it difficult for the County to provide services to its residents. 

It was indicated to us that the Nature Conservancy has a plan to continue to pay property taxes on this 
land if they do acquire it. We are definitely in support of this. We appreciate the sensitivity of the 
Nature Conservancy on this point and hope that you follow through with this plan. The application 
states under #7, Approach and Feasibility, that after closing, the Nature Conservancy will explore 
options for public access for bird watching. We highly encourage this for all of the time this property 
might be owned by the Nature Conservancy. If the area is to no longer to be privately owned, then it 
should be open to the public to be enjoyed. This could also be an excellent educational opportunity 
on desert ecosystems.

Thank you for your attention to our comments,

Matt Kingsley, Chairperson

MEMBERS  OF THE  BOARD
DAN TOTHEROH
JEFF GRIFFITHS

RICK PUCCI    
MARK  TILLEMANS             
MATT  KINGSLEY     

CLINT G. QUILTER      
Clerk of the Board

DARCY ELLIS
Assistant Clerk of the Board

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
COUNTY OF INYO

P. O. BOX N   INDEPENDENCE, CALIFORNIA 93526
TELEPHONE (760) 878-0373 

e-mail: dellis@inyocounty.us



Inyo County Board of Supervisors

CC: 
Supervisor Rick Pucci
Supervisor Jeff Griffiths
Supervisor Mark Tillemans
Supervisor Dan Totheroh
Clint Quilter, County Administrative Officer



County of Inyo

Health & Human Services - Health/Prevention
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  November 17, 2020 

FROM:  Marilyn Mann 
 
SUBJECT:  Approval of Fiscal Year 2020-2021 ELC Cares Budget #610390 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve the Fiscal Year 2020-2021 ELC Cares Budget #610390 as follows: increase estimated revenue in Federal Other 
(Revenue Code 4552) by $853,501 and increase appropriation in the following object codes (4/5th vote required): 
    •     Salaried employees (Object Code 5001) by $343,868; 
    •     Overtime (Object Code 5003) by $10,000; 
    •     Standby time (Object Code 5004) by $10,000; 
    •     Part time employees (Object Code 5012) by $83,244; 
    •     Retirement and Social Security (Object Code 5021) by $38,657; 
    •     PERS Retirement (Object Code 5022) by $38,937; 
    •     Medical Insurance (Object Code 5031) by $104,554; 
    •     Disability (Object code 5032) by $4,903; 
    •     Cell Phones (Object Code 5122) by $1,338; 
    •     Advertising (Object code 5263) by $1,000; 
    •     Professional Services (Object Code 5265) by $195,000; 
    •     General Operating (Object Code 5311) by $4,000; 
    •     Internal Charges (Object Code 5121) by $12,000; and 
    •     Office and Other Equipment (Object Code 5232) by $6,000.

 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The Department received formal notification from the California Department of Public Health (CDPH) in August 2020 of a grant award of 
$1,610,178 for COVID-19 ELC (Epidemiology Laboratory Capacity) Enhancing Detection Funding. The funding is intended to provide 
critical resources to local health departments to support a wide-range of COVID-19/SARS-CoV-2 testing and epidemiologic surveillance 
related activities. The funding expands on prior COVID-19 awards (ELC CARES and ELC Community-based Surveillance) and spans six 
different strategies to build upon current investments and to better address our response to COVID-19 over the next 24 months.  

Inyo County is being allocated funding to address local needs in four of the six strategy areas, as two of the strategies are specific to 
counties that have public health laboratories. The Department has identified specific staffing and/or contracting options needed to meet the 
goals for each strategy. The following is a summary of the strategies and related activities and staffing needs outlined in the plan 
submitted to CDPH by the County of Inyo.

Strategy 1: Enhance Laboratory, Surveillance and Other Workforce Capacity ($409,273.00)

Building the Department's workforce capacity to support the management of the COVID-19 related activities is critical. The pandemic has 
had a significant workload impact on our small Public Health office, which has been managing the ever-changing COVID-19 environment, 
while still working to meet competing needs of other public health programs in the division. Two primary staffing needs were identified 
under this strategy: a COVID-19 Program and Grant Manager and a COVID-19 Response Coordinator. The Program and Grant Manager 
position would be responsible for providing leadership, program and grant management of all aspects of our COVID-19 response 
including, but not limited to training and hiring staff to improve epidemiologic capacity; building our contact tracing capacity, especially to 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

our Latinx community, which is disproportionately impacted by the disease; increasing the capacity for timely data management, analysis, 
and reporting; ensuring our preparedness to implement a COVID-19 vaccine plan; build expertise for healthcare and community outbreak 
response, including infection prevention and control; provide oversight to all COVID-19 staff functions; and other COVID-19 related duties 
as identified.  

The Department is also recommending that a COVID-19 Response Coordinator be hired as a term-limited contract employee. This 
position would provide clerical and programmatic support to the COVID-19 response team, as well as coordinate activities and 
assignments of case investigators and contact tracers, including providing supervision and guidance. The Department is recommending 
that both of these positions be hired as contract positions on a term-limited basis.  

Strategy 2 and Strategy 3: No Funding

Strategy 4: Improve Public Health Surveillance and Reporting of Electronic Health Data ($325,721.00)

Improving our local epidemiologic capacity to ensure effective surveillance; data reporting and analysis; and to lead local disease 
prevention and mitigation efforts is a key goal identified under this strategy. Milestones identified to meet this goal include:

 Contracting with an epidemiologist at 0.5 FTE 
 Hiring the above referenced COVID-19 Program and Grant Manager to lead COVID-19 response efforts
 Purchasing and implementing a HIPAA compliant document sharing and messaging system, as well as a case management 

system that effectively interfaces with CalCONNECT, the State’s contact tracing data management system.

Strategy 5: Use Laboratory Data to Enhance Investigation, Response and Prevention by Supporting California Connected, the State's 
comprehensive contact tracing program ($470,923.00)

COVID-19 has not impacted all ethnic groups equally and part of this funding will be used to address health equity issues across the 
County.  Statewide and locally, our Latinx community is disproportionately impacted by COVID-19. Improving our clinical capacity to 
provide more robust infection prevention outreach and education, as well as infection prevention technical assistance and oversight, 
particularly in high risk residential settings is critical. Additionally, ensuring robust contact tracing is occurring in order to promote 
containment is critical. It is important to coordinate these efforts with local tribal entities and health care providers.To address this strategy 
the Department proposes the following: 

 Hiring two term-limited Infection Preventionists/Senior Infection Preventionists. One position would be designated to act primarily 
as an infection preventionist, working with our health care partners and local residential facilities to coordinate effective infection 
control and prevention efforts. The second position will be used to provide additional clinical support to the COVID-19 response 
effort by providing additional infection prevention expertise, supporting efforts to enhance our testing capacity, and assisting in 
vaccine distribution planning and implementation.

 Hiring two term-limited, part-time Bilingual Case Investigators to assist in the contact investigation and follow-up with isolated and 
quarantined individuals, including ensuring concrete support needs of these individuals are identified and addressed.

 Contracting with local tribal and/or other community-based organizations to provide concrete supports that may be needed by 
those who are isolated or quarantined.

Given the time limited nature of these positions, the Department requests that the positions be hired as term-limited contract employees.  

Strategy 6: Coordinate and Engage with Partners including Skilled Nursing Facilities ($404,261.00)

Coordination of our response efforts with local health care partners and residential facilities where our most vulnerable population resides 
will be supported, in part, by strengthening our staff resource capacity with the positions outlined in the previous strategies. Our primary 
goals in this strategy include enhancing our capacity for testing and infection control and prevention of COVID-19/SARS-CoV-2.In addition 
to strengthening our staff resource capacity, the Department proposes to :

 Contract with local community-based healthcare resources, including but not limited to hospitals, rural health centers, Indian 
health services, EMS (emergency medical services) agencies, pharmacies, and private providers to provide enhanced testing 
and/or vaccine services.

 Utilize the contracted, term-limited staff identified in Strategy 5 to provide robust infection prevention technical assistance; 
engaging with local, regional, and state public health partners to identify, implement and monitor strategies to mitigate COVID-19, 
particularly in residential living settings like our Skilled Nursing Facilities.

 Conduct outreach and education to enhance public information about disease prevention, including purchasing media spots in 
local and social media outlets. 

The Department’s Public Health division is responsible for not only our local response to the pandemic, but also for ongoing communicable 
disease surveillance and management, childhood immunization services, pregnancy testing and emergency contraception, flu vaccines, 
Tb testing, and other maternal and child health programming, as well as providing case management services for programs like California 
Children’s Services and CARES HIV programming.The request for term-limited contract positions will allow for us to enhance our COVID-
19 response through more robust and focused team efforts, as well as ensure the continuity of other critical public health services.

Request Board amend the Fiscal Year (2020/2021) ELC #2 (Budget #610390) as follows: increase estimated revenue in Federal Other 



Agenda Request 
Page 3

(4552) by ($853,501) and increase appropriation in the following object codes:

Object Code Object Name Amount
5001 Salaried Employees $343,868
5003 Overtime $10,000
5004 Standby time $10,000
5012 Part time employees $83,244
5021 Retirement & Social Security $38,657
5022 PERS Retirement $38,937
5031 Medical Insurance $104,554
5032 Disability $4,903
5122 Cell Phones $1,338
5263 Advertising $1,000
5265 Professional Services $195,000
5311 General Operating $4,000
5121 Internal Charges $12,000
5232 Office & Other Equipment $6,000

(4/5ths vote required).

The strategies as outlined above, including the identified term-limited contract employee positions, are incorporated in the ELC budget 
attached for your review.  The Department respectfully request your Board approve the budget as proposed.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The Board could decide not to approve the ELC Cares Budget as proposed. This would require HHS to work with 
the state to propose new funding categories that may not meet the needs of the Public Health Division and our 
Pandemic response.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Local Healthcare Agencies and Residential Care Facilities
 
FINANCING:
Federal funding. These expenses will be claimed out of the newly created budget ELC #2 (610390).
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. ELC BUDGET REQUEST DETAIL
 
APPROVALS:
Rhiannon Baker Created/Initiated - 11/2/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 11/2/2020
Marilyn Mann Approved - 11/9/2020
Melissa Best-Baker Approved - 11/9/2020
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 11/9/2020
Denelle Carrington Approved - 11/9/2020
Amy Shepherd Approved - 11/10/2020
Marilyn Mann Final Approval - 11/10/2020



Budget Request Detail
610390 $ 1,610,178.00

COVID-19 ELC #2 Funding Grant $ 853,501.00
$ -

Requested
Revenues FY 2020-2021

$853,501
4552 - Federal Other
Pri. Description Qty.

1 Federal Other 1

CDC Epidemiology and Laboratory Capacity for Prevention and Control of Emerging Infectious Diseases (ELC) Grant. Used towards COVID-19 testing, 
surveillance, and response per grant guidelines.

Total Revenues $ 853,501.00

5001 - SALARIED EMPLOYEES $ 343,868.00
Pri. Description Qty.

1 COVID-19 Program and Grant Manager 1
100% PROGMNGR00

2 COVID-19 Response Coordinator 1
100% OFFCTECH03

3 Infection Preventionist RN/PHN 1
100% Infection Preventionist

4  RN/PHN 1
100%  RN/PHN

5 Case Investigator (Current employees) 1
100% Case Investigator

5003 - OVERTIME $ 10,000.00
Pri. Description Qty.

1 Overtime Costs 1
100% Overtime costs related to COVID-19

5004 - STANDBY TIME $ 10,000.00
Pri. Description Qty.

1 Standy Costs 1
100% Standby costs related to COVID-19

5012 -PART-TIME EMPLOYEES $ 83,244.00
Pri. Description Qty.

1 Case Investigator-PT 1



100% Case Investigator
2 Case Investigator-PT 1

100% Case Investigator

5021 - RETIREMENT & SOCIAL SECURITY $ 38,657.00
Pri. Description Qty.

1 COVID-19 Program and Grant Manager 1
100% PROGMNGR00

2 COVID-19 Response Coordinator 1
100% OFFCTECH03

3 Infection Preventionist 1
100% Infection Preventionist

4  RN/PHN 1
100% Infection Preventionist

5 Case Investigator (Current employees) 1
100% Case Investigator

6 Case Investigator-PT 1
100% Case Investigator

7 Case Investigator-PT 1
100% Case Investigator

5022 - PERS RETIREMENT $ 38,937.00
Pri. Description Qty.

1 COVID-19 Program and Grant Manager 1
100% PROGMNGR00

2 COVID-19 Response Coordinator 1
100% OFFCTECH03

3 Infection Preventionist 1
100% Infection Preventionist

4  RN/PHN 1
100% Infection Preventionist

5 Case Investigator (Current employees) 1
100% Case Investigator

5031 - MEDICAL INSURANCE $ 104,554.00
Pri. Description Qty.

1 COVID-19 Program and Grant Manager 1
100% PROGMNGR00

2 COVID-19 Response Coordinator 1
100% OFFCTECH03

3 Infection Preventionist 1
100% Infection Preventionist

4  RN/PHN 1
100% Infection Preventionist



5 Case Investigator (Current employees) 1
100% Case Investigator

6 Case Investigator-PT 1
100% Case Investigator

7 Case Investigator-PT 1
100% Case Investigator

5032 - DISABILITY INSURANCE $ 4,903.00
Pri. Description Qty.

1 COVID-19 Program and Grant Manager 1
100% PROGMNGR00

2 COVID-19 Response Coordinator 1
100% OFFCTECH03

3 Infection Preventionist 1
100% Infection Preventionist

4  RN/PHN 1
100% Infection Preventionist

5 Case Investigator (Current employees) 1
100% Case Investigator

6 Case Investigator-PT 1
100% Case Investigator

7 Case Investigator-PT 1
100% Case Investigator

5122 - CELL PHONES $ 1,338.00
Pri. Description Qty.

1 Cell Phones (TBD) 1
Cell phone costs for COVID-19 Program and Grant Manager

2 Cell Phones (TBD) 1
Cell phone costs for Infection Preventionist

3 Cell Phones (TBD) 1
Cell phone costs for Case Investigator

5263 - ADVERTISING $ 1,000.00
Pri. Description Qty.

1 Advertising (TBD) 1
TBD-Advertising with Inyo Register, KIBS, KSRW and other local media outlets

5265 - PROFESSIONAL & SPECIAL SERVICE $ 195,000.00
Pri. Description Qty.

1 Epidemiologist Subcontractor 1
TBD-To interpret data and inform local strategies about trends and outbreaks

2 Subcontract for isolation and quarantine support services 1



Subcontract with community-based organizations to provide grocery and other isolation and quarantine support services for vulnerable 
populations

3 Local Healthcare Resource for Underserved Populations 1

Contract with local community-based healthcare resources who have access to underserved and diverse populations, including but not 
limited to hospitals, rural health centers, indian health centers, EMS agencies, pharmacies, and private providers to provide enhanced 
testing and/or vaccine services. 

4 Language Contract 1
TBD

5311 - GENERAL OPERATING $ 4,000.00
Pri. Description Qty.

1 General Operating Expense 1
General Office Supplies (i.e paper, pens, post-its, etc)

5121 - INTERNAL CHARGES $ 12,000.00
Pri. Description Qty.

1 Internal Charges 1
TBD-Estimated Information Services fees - COVID Graphs

5232 -OFFICE & OTHER EQUIPMENT <$5,000 $ 6,000.00
Pri. Description Qty.

1 Office & Other Equip < $5,000 4
Laptops, Monitors, etc. for ELC Funding offices



Total Allocation 
<-Total Budgeted
<-Remaining

Price Total
853,501.00 853,501.00

Price Total
 83,906.00  83,906.00

 58,876.00  58,876.00

 88,043.00  88,043.00

 88,043.00  88,043.00

 25,000.00  25,000.00

Price Total
 10,000.00  10,000.00

Price Total
 10,000.00  10,000.00

Price Total
 41,622.00  41,622.00

$ 1,610,178.00
$ 853,501.00

$ -

CDC Epidemiology and Laboratory Capacity for Prevention and Control of Emerging Infectious Diseases (ELC) Grant. Used towards COVID-19 testing, 
surveillance, and response per grant guidelines.



 41,622.00  41,622.00

Price Total
6,483.00 6,483.00

4549.00 4,549.00

7175.00 7,175.00

7175.00 7,175.00

6843.00 6,843.00

3216.00 3,216.00

3216.00 3,216.00

Price Total
8,254.00 8,254.00

5792.00 5,792.00

8661.00 8,661.00

8661.00 8,661.00

7569.00 7,569.00

Price Total
19,981.00 19,981.00

19981.00 19,981.00

19980.00 19,980.00

19980.00 19,980.00



10000.00 10,000.00

7316.00 7,316.00

7316.00 7,316.00

Price Total
839.00 839.00

589.00 589.00

929.00 929.00

929.00 929.00

785.00 785.00

416.00 416.00

416.00 416.00

Price Total
446.00 446.00 Indirect

446.00 446.00 Indirect

446.00 446.00 Indirect

Price Total
1,000.00 1,000.00 Other

Price Total
75,000.00 75,000.00 Sub-Contracts

 40,000.00  80,000.00



 82,500.00  20,000.00

 20,000.00  20,000.00

Price Total
4,000.00 4,000.00 Other

Price Total
12,000.00 12,000.00 Other

Price Total
1,500.00 6,000.00 Other

Subcontract with community-based organizations to provide grocery and other isolation and quarantine support services for vulnerable 
populations

Contract with local community-based healthcare resources who have access to underserved and diverse populations, including but not 
limited to hospitals, rural health centers, indian health centers, EMS agencies, pharmacies, and private providers to provide enhanced 
testing and/or vaccine services. 



5001 5003 5004 5012 5021
Salary OT Standby Part time Retirement/SS

Program Manager 78E 83906 6483
Office Tech III 63E 58876 4549
Infection Preventionist 80E 88043 7175
Contact Tracers estimated 25000 10000 10000 3063



5022 5031 5032
PERS Insurance Disability

8254 19981 839
5792 19981 589
8661 19980 929

7316 396



County of Inyo

Health & Human Services
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  November 17, 2020 

FROM:  Melissa Best-Baker 
 
SUBJECT:  Ratification and approval of contract to provide Registered Dietitian services to Mono County Senior 
Nutrition Services 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board ratify and approve a contract with Mono County, in an amount not to exceed $20,000, for Eastern 
Sierra Area Agency on Aging's Registered Dietitian (RD) to provide the mandated RD services for menu and 
nutrition services to Mono County seniors, and authorize the HHS/ESAAA Director to sign.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Mono County does not have an available Registered Dietitian (RD) to oversee senior meals, as required. Since 
2014, the Inyo ESAAA RD position has met the needs of both Inyo and Mono Counties through a sub-contract. 
The RD reviews the meals and approves menus, provides quarterly and annual inspections of the Antelope 
Valley Senior Center kitchen, provides senior education and counseling, and provides staff education. 

The Department respectfully requests ratification and approval of this contract to ensure continuity of services.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Board could choose not to approve this request, meaning that Mono County will either not meet the mandate for 
RD services, or we continue to operate through an on-going Purchase Order Agreement, which is outside 
standard operating procedures for both counties.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
California Department of Aging, Mono County
 
FINANCING:
These funds are deposited into the ESAAA Budget (683000) in Other Current Charges (4825).
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Dietician Services Agreement
 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

APPROVALS:
Melissa Best-Baker Created/Initiated - 10/31/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 11/2/2020
Rhiannon Baker Approved - 11/2/2020
Marilyn Mann Approved - 11/4/2020
Melissa Best-Baker Approved - 11/4/2020
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 11/5/2020
Marilyn Mann Approved - 11/10/2020
Amy Shepherd Final Approval - 11/10/2020



Page 1 of 11 
Standard Agreement Template 

Version 2019040 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF MONO AND THE COUNTY OF 
INYO FOR THE PROVISION OF REGISTERED DIETICIAN SERVICES 

   
INTRODUCTION 

 
 WHEREAS, the County of Mono, a political subdivision of the State of California (the “County”), 
may have the need for the registered dietician services of the County of Inyo, a political subdivision of the 
State of California (“Contractor”).  Hereinafter, the County and Contractor may be referred to individually as 
a “Party” and collectively as the “Parties.”  In consideration of the mutual promises, covenants, terms and 
conditions hereinafter contained, the Parties agree as follows: 
 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
1. SCOPE OF WORK 

Contractor shall furnish to the County, upon its request, those services and work set forth in Attachment A 
(Scope of Work), attached hereto and by this reference incorporated herein.  Requests by the County to 
Contractor to perform under this Agreement will be made by the Director of the Mono County Social 
Services Department, or an authorized representative thereof.  Requests to Contractor for work or services to 
be performed under this Agreement will be based upon the County’s need for such services.  The County 
makes no guarantee or warranty, of any nature, that any minimum level or amount of services or work will be 
requested of Contractor by the County under this Agreement.  By this Agreement, the County incurs no 
obligation or requirement to request from Contractor the performance of any services or work at all, even if 
the County should have some need for such services or work during the term of this Agreement. 
 
Services and work provided by Contractor at the County's request under this Agreement will be performed in 
a manner consistent with the requirements and standards established by applicable federal, state, and county 
laws, ordinances, and resolutions.  Such laws, ordinances, regulations, and resolutions include, but are not 
limited to, those that are referred to in this Agreement. 
 
2. TERM 

The term of this Agreement shall be from July 1, 2020, to  June 30, 2021, and shall automatically renew 
for up to four subsequent one-year terms (i.e., until June 30, 2025) having the same terms and conditions 
set forth herein, unless sooner terminated as provided below. 

 
3. CONSIDERATION 

A. Compensation.  The County shall pay Contractor in accordance with the schedule of fees set forth in 
Attachment B (Schedule of Fees) for the services and work described in Attachment A (Scope of Work) that 
are performed by Contractor at the County’s request. 
 
B. Travel and Per Diem.  Contractor will not be paid or reimbursed for travel expenses or per diem that 
Contractor incurs in providing services and work requested by the County under this Agreement, unless 
otherwise provided for in Attachment B (Schedule of Fees).  
 
C. No Additional Consideration.  Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, Contractor shall not 
be entitled to, nor receive, from the County, any additional consideration, compensation, salary, wages, or 
other type of remuneration for services rendered under this Agreement.  Specifically, Contractor shall not be 
entitled, by virtue of this Agreement, to consideration in the form of overtime, health insurance benefits, 
retirement benefits, disability retirement benefits, sick leave, vacation time, paid holidays, or other paid 
leaves of absence of any type or kind whatsoever. 



Page 2 of 11 
Standard Agreement Template 

Version 2019040 

  
D. Limit Upon Amount Payable Under Agreement. The total sum of all payments made by the County 
to Contractor for services and work performed under this Agreement shall not exceed Twenty Thousand and 
NO/100 Dollars ($20,000.00), and in any twelve-month period Four Thousand and NO/100 Dollars 
($4,000.00) (collectively, the “Contract Limit”).  The County expressly reserves the right to deny any 
payment or reimbursement requested by Contractor for services or work performed that is in excess of the 
Contract Limit. 
 
E.  Billing and Payment. Contractor shall submit to the County, on a monthly basis, an itemized 
statement of all services and work described in Attachment A (Scope of Work), which were done at the 
County’s request.  The statement to be submitted will cover the period from the first (1st) day of the 
preceding month through and including the last day of the preceding month.  Alternatively, Contractor may 
submit a single request for payment corresponding to a single incident of service or work performed at the 
County’s request.  All statements submitted in request for payment shall identify the date on which the 
services and work were performed and describe the nature of the services and work which were 
performed on each day.  Invoicing shall be informative but concise regarding services and work 
performed during that billing period.  Upon finding that Contractor has satisfactorily completed the work 
and performed the services as requested, the County shall make payment to Contractor within 30 days of 
its receipt of the itemized statement.  Should the County determine the services or work have not been 
completed or performed as requested and/or should Contractor produce an incorrect statement, the County 
shall withhold payment until the services and work are satisfactorily completed or performed and/or the 
statement is corrected and resubmitted. 
 
F. Federal and State Taxes.  

(1) Except as provided in subparagraph (2) below, the County will not withhold any federal or 
state income taxes or social security from any payments made by the County to Contractor under the terms 
and conditions of this Agreement.  

 
(2) The County shall withhold California state income taxes from payments made under this 

Agreement to non-California resident independent contractors when it is anticipated that total annual 
payments to Contractor under this Agreement will exceed One Thousand Four Hundred Ninety-Nine and 
NO/100 Dollars ($1,499.00). 

 
(3) Except as set forth above, the County has no obligation to withhold any taxes or payments 

from sums paid by the County to Contractor under this Agreement.  Payment of all taxes and other 
assessments on such sums is the sole responsibility of Contractor.  The County has no responsibility or 
liability for payment of Contractor’s taxes or assessments. 

  
(4) The total amounts paid by the County to Contractor, and taxes withheld from payments to 

non-California residents, if any, will be reported annually to the United States Internal Revenue Service and 
the California State Franchise Tax Board. 

 
4. WORK SCHEDULE 

Contractor's obligation is to perform, in a timely manner, those services and work identified in Attachment A 
(Scope of Work) that are requested by the County.  It is understood by Contractor that the performance of 
these services and work will require a varied schedule.  Contractor, in arranging his/her schedule, will 
coordinate with the County to ensure that all services and work requested by the County under this 
Agreement will be performed within the time frame set forth by the County. 

 



Page 3 of 11 
Standard Agreement Template 

Version 2019040 

5. REQUIRED LICENSES, CERTIFICATES, AND PERMITS 

Any licenses, certificates, or permits required by the federal, state, county, or municipal governments, for 
Contractor to provide the services and work described in Attachment A (Scope of Work) must be procured by 
Contractor and be valid at the time Contractor enters into this Agreement.  Further, during the term of this 
Agreement, Contractor must maintain such licenses, certificates, and permits in full force and effect. 
Licenses, certificates, and permits may include, but are not limited to, driver's licenses, professional licenses 
or certificates, and business licenses. Such licenses, certificates, and permits will be procured and maintained 
in force by Contractor at no expense to the County.  Contractor will provide the County, upon execution of 
this Agreement, with evidence of current and valid licenses, certificates and permits that are required to 
perform the services identified in Attachment A (Scope of Work). Where there is a dispute between 
Contractor and the County as to what licenses, certificates, and permits are required to perform the services 
identified in Attachment A (Scope of Work), the County reserves the right to make such determinations for 
purposes of this Agreement. 

 
6. OFFICE SPACE, SUPPLIES, EQUIPMENT, ETC 

Contractor shall provide such office space, supplies, equipment, vehicles, reference materials, support 
services and telephone service as is necessary for Contractor to provide the services identified in Attachment 
A (Scope of Work) to this Agreement.  The County is not obligated to reimburse or pay Contractor for any 
expense or cost incurred by Contractor in procuring or maintaining such items.  Responsibility for the costs 
and expenses incurred by Contractor in providing and maintaining such items is the sole responsibility and 
obligation of Contractor. 

 
7. COUNTY PROPERTY 

A. Personal Property of the County. Any personal property such as, but not limited to, protective or 
safety devices, badges, identification cards, keys, uniforms, vehicles, reference materials, furniture, 
appliances, etc. provided to Contractor by the County pursuant to this Agreement is, and at the termination of 
this Agreement remains, the sole and exclusive property of the County.  Contractor will use reasonable care 
to protect, safeguard and maintain such items while they are in Contractor's possession.  Contractor will be 
financially responsible for any loss or damage to such items, partial or total, that is the result of Contractor's 
negligence. 
 
A. Products of Contractor's Work and Services. Any and all compositions, publications, plans, designs, 
specifications, blueprints, maps, formulas, processes, photographs, slides, videotapes, computer programs, 
computer disks, computer tapes, memory chips, soundtracks, audio recordings, films, audio-visual 
presentations, exhibits, reports, studies, works of art, inventions, patents, trademarks, copyrights, or 
intellectual properties of any kind that are created, produced, assembled, compiled by, or are the result, 
product, or manifestation of, Contractor's services or work under this Agreement are, and at the termination 
of this Agreement shall remain, the sole and exclusive property of the County.  At the termination of the 
Agreement, Contractor will convey possession and title to all such properties to the County. 

 
8. WORKERS' COMPENSATION 

Contractor shall provide Statutory Workers' Compensation insurance coverage and Employer’s Liability 
coverage for not less than One Million and NO/100 Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per occurrence for all 
employees engaged in services or operations under this Agreement.  Any insurance policy limits in excess 
of the specified minimum limits and coverage shall be made available to the County as an additional 
insured.  The Workers’ Compensation policy shall be endorsed with a waiver of subrogation in favor of 
the County for all work performed by Contractor, its employees, agents, and subcontractors. 



Page 4 of 11 
Standard Agreement Template 

Version 2019040 

 
9. INSURANCE 

A. Contractor shall procure and maintain, during the entire term of this Agreement or, if work or 
services do not begin as of the effective date of this Agreement, commencing at such other time as may be 
authorized in writing by the County’s Risk Manager, the following insurance (as noted) against claims for 
injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of 
the work and/or services hereunder and the results of that work and/or services by Contractor, its agents, 
representatives, employees, or subcontractors: 
 

 General Liability.  A policy of Comprehensive General Liability Insurance which covers all the 
work and services to be performed by Contractor under this Agreement, including operations, 
products and completed operations, property damage, bodily injury (including death) and 
personal and advertising injury.  Such policy shall provide limits of not less than One Million and 
NO/100 Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per claim or occurrence.  If a general aggregate limit applies, 
either the general aggregate limit shall apply separately to this project or the general aggregate 
limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit. 

 
 Automobile/Aircraft/Watercraft Liability Insurance.  A policy of Comprehensive 
Automobile/Aircraft/Watercraft Liability Insurance for bodily injury (including death) and 
property damage which provides total limits of not less than One Million and NO/100 Dollars 
($1,000,000.00) per claim or occurrence applicable to all owned, non-owned and hired 
vehicles/aircraft/watercraft.  If the services provided under this Agreement include the 
transportation of hazardous materials/wastes, then the Automobile Liability policy shall be 
endorsed to include Transportation Pollution Liability insurance covering materials/wastes to be 
transported by Contractor pursuant to this Agreement.  Alternatively, such coverage may be 
provided in Contractor’s Pollution Liability policy.   

 
 Professional Errors and Omissions Liability Insurance.  A policy of Professional Errors and 
Omissions Liability Insurance appropriate to Contractor’s profession in an amount of not less 
than One Million and NO/100 Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per claim or occurrence or Two Million 
and NO/100 Dollars ($2,000,000.00) general aggregate.  If coverage is written on a claims-made 
form then: (1) the “retro date” must be shown, and must be before the beginning of contract work; 
(2) insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for at least five 
years after completion of the contract work; and (3) if coverage if cancelled or non-renewed, and 
not replaced with another claims-made policy form with a “retro date” prior to the contract 
effective date, then Contractor must purchase “extended reporting” coverage for a minimum of 
five years after completion of contract work. 

 
 Pollution Liability Insurance.  A policy of Comprehensive Contractors Pollution Liability 
coverage applicable to the work being performed and covering Contractor’s liability for bodily 
injury (including death), property damage, and environmental damage resulting from “sudden 
accidental” or “gradual” pollution and related cleanup costs arising out of the work or services to 
be performed under this Agreement.  Coverage shall provide a limit no less than One Million and 
NO/100 Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per claim or occurrence or Two Million and NO/100 Dollars 
($2,000,000.00) general aggregate.  If the services provided involve lead-based paint or asbestos 
identification/remediation, the Pollution Liability policy shall not contain lead-based paint or 
asbestos exclusions.   
 

B. Coverage and Provider Requirements.  Insurance policies shall not exclude or except from 
coverage any of the services and work required to be performed by Contractor under this Agreement.  The 



Page 5 of 11 
Standard Agreement Template 

Version 2019040 

required polic(ies) of insurance shall be issued by an insurer authorized to sell such insurance by the State 
of California, and have at least a “Best’s” policyholder’s rating of “A” or “A+”.  Prior to commencing 
any work under this agreement, Contractor shall provide the County: (1) a certificate of insurance 
evidencing the coverage required; (2) an additional insured endorsement for general liability applying to 
the County, its agents, officers and employees made on ISO form CG 20 10 11 85, or providing 
equivalent coverage; and (3) a notice of cancellation or change of coverage endorsement indicating that 
the policy will not be modified, terminated, or canceled without thirty (30) days written notice to the 
County. 
 
B. Primary Coverage.  For any claim made related to this Agreement or work and/or services 
performed or provided pursuant to this Agreement, Contractor’s insurance coverage shall be primary 
insurance coverage at least as broad as ISO CG 20 01 04 13 as with respect to the County, its officers, 
officials, employees, and volunteers.  Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the County, its 
officers, officials, employees, or volunteers shall be excess of Contractor’s insurance and shall not 
contribute with it. 
 
C. Deductible, Self-Insured Retentions, and Excess Coverage.  Any deductibles or self-insured 
retentions must be declared and approved by the County.  If possible, Contractor’s insurer shall reduce or 
eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retentions with respect to the County, its officials, officers, 
employees, and volunteers; or Contractor shall provide evidence satisfactory to the County guaranteeing 
payment of losses and related investigations, claim administration, and defense expenses.  Any insurance 
policy limits in excess of the specified minimum limits and coverage shall be made available to the 
County as an additional insured. 
 
D. Subcontractors.  Contractor shall require and verify that all subcontractors maintain insurance 
(including Workers’ Compensation) meeting all the requirements stated herein and that the County is an 
additional insured on insurance required of subcontractors. 

 
10. STATUS OF CONTRACTOR 

All acts of Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees, relating to the performance of this Agreement, 
shall be performed as an independent contractor, and not as an agent, officer, or employee of the County.  
Contractor, by virtue of this Agreement, has no authority to bind or incur any obligation on behalf of, or 
exercise any right or power vested in, the County, except as expressly provided by law or set forth in 
Attachment A (Scope of Work).  No agent, officer, or employee of the County is to be considered an 
employee of Contractor.  It is understood by both Contractor and the County that this Agreement shall not, 
under any circumstances, be construed to create an employer-employee relationship or a joint venture.  As an 
independent contractor: 
 
A. Contractor shall determine the method, details, and means of performing the work and services to be 
provided by Contractor under this Agreement. 
 
B. Contractor shall be responsible to the County only for the requirements and results specified in this 
Agreement, and except as expressly provided in this Agreement, shall not be subjected to the County’s 
control with respect to the physical action or activities of Contractor in fulfillment of this Agreement. 
 
C. Contractor, its agents, officers and employees are, and at all times during the term of this Agreement 
shall represent and conduct themselves as, independent contractors, and not employees of the County. 

 



Page 6 of 11 
Standard Agreement Template 

Version 2019040 

11. DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION 

Contractor shall defend with counsel acceptable to the County, indemnify, and hold harmless the County, its 
agents, officers, and employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, judgments, liabilities, expenses, 
and other costs, including litigation costs and attorney’s fees, arising out of, resulting from or in connection 
with, the performance of this Agreement by Contractor, or Contractor’s agents, officers, or employees. 
Contractor’s obligation to defend, indemnify, and hold the County, its agents, officers, and employees 
harmless applies to any actual or alleged personal injury, death, damage or destruction to tangible or 
intangible property, including the loss of use.  Contractor’s obligation under this Paragraph 11 extends to any 
claim, damage, loss, liability, expense, or other costs that are caused in whole or in part by any act or 
omission of Contractor, its agents, employees, supplier, or anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of 
them, or anyone for whose acts or omissions any of them may be liable.  Contractor’s obligation to defend, 
indemnify, and hold the County, its agents, officers, and employees harmless under the provisions of this 
Paragraph 11 is not limited to, or restricted by, any requirement in this Agreement for Contractor to procure 
and maintain a policy of insurance and shall survive any termination or expiration of this Agreement. 

 
12. RECORDS AND AUDIT 

A. Records.  Contractor shall prepare and maintain all records required by the various provisions of this 
Agreement, federal, state, county, municipal, ordinances, regulations, and directions.  Contractor shall 
maintain these records for a minimum of four (4) years from the termination or completion of this 
Agreement.  Contractor may fulfill its obligation to maintain records as required by this Paragraph 12 by 
substitute photographs, micrographs, or other authentic reproduction of such records.  
 
B. Inspections and Audits.  Any authorized representative of the County shall have access to any books, 
documents, papers, records, including, but not limited to, financial records of Contractor, that the County 
determines to be pertinent to this Agreement, for the purposes of making audit, evaluation, examination, 
excerpts, and transcripts during the period such records are to be maintained by Contractor.  Further, the 
County has the right, at all reasonable times, to audit, inspect, or otherwise evaluate the work performed or 
being performed under this Agreement.  

 
13. NONDISCRIMINATION 

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees shall not 
unlawfully discriminate in violation of any federal, state, or local law, against any employee, or applicant for 
employment, or person receiving services under this Agreement, because of race, religious creed, color, 
ancestry, national origin, physical disability, mental disability, medical condition, marital status, sex, age, or 
sexual orientation.  Contractor and its agents, officers, and employees shall comply with the provisions of the 
Fair Employment and Housing Act (Government Code section 12900, et seq.), and the applicable regulations 
promulgated thereunder in the California Code of Regulations. Contractor shall also abide by the Federal 
Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-352) and all amendments thereto, and all administrative rules and 
regulations issued pursuant to said Act. 

 
14. TERMINATION 

This Agreement may be terminated by the County without cause, and at will, for any reason by giving to 
Contractor thirty (30) calendar days written notice of such intent to terminate.  Contractor may terminate this 
Agreement without cause, and at will, for any reason by giving to the County thirty (30) calendar days written 
notice of such intent to terminate.   

 



Page 7 of 11 
Standard Agreement Template 

Version 2019040 

15. ASSIGNMENT 

This is an agreement for the personal services of Contractor.  The County has relied upon the skills, 
knowledge, experience, and training of Contractor as an inducement to enter into this Agreement.  Contractor 
shall not assign or subcontract this Agreement, or any part of it, without the express written consent of the 
County.  Further, Contractor shall not assign any moneys due or to become due under this Agreement without 
the prior written consent of the County. 

 
16. DEFAULT 

If Contractor abandons the work, fails to proceed with the work or services requested by the County in a 
timely manner, or fails in any way as required to conduct the work and services as required by the County, 
then the County may declare Contractor in default and terminate this Agreement upon five (5) days written 
notice to Contractor.  Upon such termination by default, the County will pay to Contractor all amounts owing 
to Contractor for services and work satisfactorily performed to the date of termination.   

 
17. WAIVER OF DEFAULT 

Waiver of any default by either Party to this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any subsequent 
default.  Waiver or breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any other 
or subsequent breach, and shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms of this Agreement unless 
this Agreement is modified as provided in Paragraph 23. 

 
18. CONFIDENTIALITY 

Contractor agrees to comply with various provisions of the federal, state, and county laws, regulations, and 
ordinances providing that information and records kept, maintained, or accessible by Contractor in the course 
of providing services and work under this Agreement, shall be privileged, restricted, or confidential.  
Contractor agrees to keep confidential, all such privileged, restricted or confidential information and records 
obtained in the course of providing the work and services under this Agreement. Disclosure of such 
information or records shall be made by Contractor only with the express written consent of the County. 

 
19. CONFLICTS 

Contractor agrees that he/she has no interest, and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, that would 
conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of the work and services under this Agreement.  
Contractor agrees to complete and file a conflict-of-interest statement. 

 
20.  POST-AGREEMENT COVENANT 

Contractor agrees not to use any confidential, protected, or privileged information that is gained from the 
County in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, for any personal benefit, gain, or 
enhancement. Further, Contractor agrees for a period of two (2) years after the termination of this Agreement, 
not to seek or accept any employment with any entity, association, corporation, or person who, during the 
term of this Agreement, has had an adverse or conflicting interest with the County, or who has been an 
adverse party in litigation with the County, and concerning such, Contractor by virtue of this Agreement has 
gained access to the County’s confidential, privileged, protected, or proprietary information. 

 
21. SEVERABILITY 

If any portion of this Agreement or application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be declared 
invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, or if it is found in contravention of any federal, state, or county 



Page 8 of 11 
Standard Agreement Template 

Version 2019040 

statute, ordinance, or regulation, then the remaining provisions of this Agreement, or the application thereof, 
shall not be invalidated thereby, and shall remain in full force and effect to the extent that the provisions of 
this Agreement are severable. 

 
22.  FUNDING LIMITATION 

The ability of the County to enter into this Agreement is based upon available funding from various sources.  
In the event that such funding fails, is reduced, or is modified, from one or more sources, the County has the 
option to terminate, reduce, or modify this Agreement, or any of its terms within ten (10) days of notifying 
Contractor of the termination, reduction, or modification of available funding.  Any reduction or modification 
of this Agreement effective pursuant to this provision must comply with the requirements of Paragraph 23. 

 
23. MODIFICATION AND AMENDMENT 

This Agreement may be modified and/or amended by the mutual consent of the Parties, if such modification 
or amendment is in written form, and executed with the same formalities as this Agreement or in accordance 
with delegated authority therefor, and attached to the original Agreement to maintain continuity.  

 
24.  NOTICE 

Any notice, communication, amendments, additions or deletions to this Agreement, including change of 
address of either Party during the term of this Agreement, which Contractor or the County shall be required, 
or may desire to make, shall be in writing and may be personally served, or sent by prepaid first-class mail or 
email (if included below) to the respective Party as follows: 

If to the County: 

Mono County Social Services Department 
Attn: Kathy Peterson, Director 
P.O. Box 2969 
Mammoth Lakes, CA 93546 
PHONE: (760) 924-1763 
EMAIL: kpetereson@mono.ca.gov   

If to Contractor: 

Inyo County Health and Human Services 
Attn: Melissa Best-Baker, Senior Management 
Analyst - Fiscal 
P.O. Drawer H 
Independence, CA 93529 
PHONE: 760.878.0242  
EMAIL: inyohhsfiscal@inyocounty.us  

 

mailto:kpetereson@mono.ca.gov
mailto:inyohhsfiscal@inyocounty.us


Page 9 of 11 
Standard Agreement Template 

Version 2019040 

25. INTERPRETATION; VENUE 

The construction and interpretation of this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of 
California.  Venue for any legal proceeding arising out of or related to this Agreement shall be in the Superior 
Court of California for Mono County. 
 

26. COUNTERPARTS 

This Agreement may be executed in two (2) or more counterparts (including by electronic and facsimile 
transmission), each of which shall constitute an original, and all of which taken together shall constitute one 
and the same instrument. 

 
27. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the Parties, and no representations, inducements, promises, 
or agreements otherwise between the Parties not embodied herein or incorporated herein by reference, shall 
be of any force or effect. Further, no term or provision hereof may be changed, waived, discharged, or 
terminated, unless executed in writing by the Parties. 
 
 
IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HAVE EXECUTED THIS AGREEMENT THROUGH 
THEIR DULY AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES AS OF THE LAST DATE SET FORTH 
BELOW. 
 
COUNTY OF MONO     COUNTY OF INYO 
 
 
By:        By:       

Name:        Name:       

Title:        Title:       

Date:        Date:       
  

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:    APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
  
        
             
Mono County Counsel’s Office    Inyo County Counsel’s Office 
 
 
 
APPROVED BY RISK MANAGEMENT: 
 
 
      
Mono County Risk Manager 



Page 10 of 11 
Standard Agreement Template 

Version 2019040 

ATTACHMENT A 
 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF MONO AND THE COUNTY OF 
INYO FOR THE PROVISION OF REGISTERED DIETICIAN SERVICES 

 
TERM: 

 
FROM: July 1, 2020  TO: June 30, 2025 

 
SCOPE OF WORK: 

 
1. Contractor shall provide the County with registered dietician services to meet the requirements for 
compliance with nutritional standards set by the California Department on Aging for the provision of senior 
congregate and home-delivered meals.   
 
2. Such services shall include, but are not limited to, providing inspections of the Antelope Valley 
Senior Center kitchen; review of recipes; participant education and consultation; staff in-services; preparation 
time; and follow up phone calls and emails with Contractor staff.   
 
3. The timing and frequency of such tasks will be coordinated between the County and Contractor and 
shall comply with all applicable legal and regulatory requirements.



 

Page 11 of 11 
Standard Agreement Template 

Version 2019040 

ATTACHMENT B 
 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF MONO AND THE COUNTY OF 
INYO FOR THE PROVISION OF REGISTERED DIETICIAN SERVICES 

 
TERM: 

 
FROM: July 1, 2020  TO: June 30, 2025 

 
SCHEDULE OF FEES: 

 
1. Subject to the Contract Limit set forth in Paragraph 3.D of the Agreement, the County shall 
reimburse Contractor for the dietician services actually performed, provided, and/or otherwise furnished by 
Contractor at the County’s request at the then current rate paid by Contractor for such services (including 
salary and benefits), plus mileage costs at the then-current United States Internal Revenue Service rate, and 
per diem costs for out-of-county meal reimbursement at the then-current rate paid by Contractor for out-of-
county meals.   
 
2. Per diem meal reimbursement is authorized only in conjunction with the following tasks:   

• in-person visits by the Registered Dietician to the Antelope Valley Senior Center; and  

• consultation by the Registered Dietician with recipients of home delivered meals, as required 
and requested by the County.  



County of Inyo

Sheriff
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  November 17, 2020 

FROM:  Office of the Sheriff 
 
SUBJECT:  Amend the Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Jail CAD RMS budget and authorize purchase order 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board: A) amend the Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Jail CAD RMS Project Budget #022950 as follows: 
increase estimated revenue in Operating Transfers In Revenue Code No. 4998 by $25,000 and increase 
appropriation in Special and Professional Services Object Code 5265 by $25,000 (4/5ths vote required); B) 
amend the Fiscal Year 2020-2021 AB443 Fund #502709 as follows: increase appropriations Operating Transfer 
Out Object Code 5801 by $25,000 (4/5ths vote required); and C) declare Sun Ridge Systems, Inc. of El Dorado 
Hills, CA a sole-source provider of RIMS CIBRS Reporting and authorize the issuance of a purchase order in an 
amount not to exceed $25,000, payable to Sun Ridge Systems, Inc. of El Dorado Hills, CA for RIMS CIBRS 
Reporting.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Law Enforcement agencies are required to start reporting crime data through NIBRS by January 1, 2021. The 
Sheriff's Office uses the Sun Ridge Systems, Inc. CAD/RMS/911 reporting system known as RIMS to report 
crime data to state and federal agencies. Sun Ridge Systems, Inc is currently working on a RIMS CIBRS/NIBRS 
reporting module and implementation to meet the required deadline.

The historic Summary Reporting System (SRS) data collection, which collects more limited information than the 
more robust National Incident-Based Reporting System (NIBRS), will be phased out to make Unified Crime 
Reorting (UCR) a NIBRS-only data collection by January 1, 2021. 

There is only one known source because:
This is a sole provider of a licensed, copyrighted, or patented good or service.

Sun Ridge Systems, Inc. is a sole source provider of our CAD/RMS/911 reporting system (RIMS). 

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
Approval of this purchase will increase the Sheriff's annual purchasing authority with Sun Ridge Systems from 
$22,337 (annual maintenance) to $47,337 (NIBRS reporting)
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could deny this purchase and direct us to seek out other RMS/CAD/911 vendors. This is not 
recommended as SunRidge is an exclusive maintenance and warranty provider for our already existing 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

RMS/CAD/911 system.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Auditor
Budget Officer
Purchasing
 
FINANCING:
With the approval of this budget amendment, there will be sufficient funding in the Jail CAD RMS budget 022950, 
expense code 5265; and sufficient funding exists in the AB443 Small and Rural County Law Enforcement 
account. No County General Funds will be utilized for this purchase.

 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Sunridge Quote
 
APPROVALS:
Riannah Reade Created/Initiated - 11/2/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 11/2/2020
Riannah Reade Approved - 11/2/2020
Denelle Carrington Approved - 11/2/2020
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 11/2/2020
Amy Shepherd Approved - 11/2/2020
Jeffrey Hollowell Final Approval - 11/3/2020





County of Inyo

Sheriff
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  November 17, 2020 

FROM:  Office of the Sheriff 
 
SUBJECT:  Amend Sheriff budget and authorize purchase of vehicle docking stations. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board: A) amend the Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Sheriff Budget #022700 as follows: increase estimated 
revenue in Operating Transfers In Revenue Code No. 4998 by $12,614 and increase appropriation in Personal 
and Safety Equipment Object Code 5112 by $12,614 (4/5ths vote required); B) amend the Fiscal Year 2020-2021 
AB443 Budget #502709 as follows: increase appropriation in Operating Transfers out Object Code No. 5801 by 
$12,614 (4/5ths vote required); C) declare Adamson Police Products of Los Alamitos, CA the successful bidder 
for vehicle docking station and tablet cases per Bid No. 2020-03; and D) authorize the purchase of 28 vehicle 
docking station and tablet cases with vehicle specific mounts from Adamson Police Products of Los Alamitos, CA 
in an amount not to exceed $12,614.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The Sheriff's office has been working towards giving authorized users mobile access to our CAD/RMS 
information. These vehicle mounts will allow the user a secure location to store the mobile devices and access 
critical information from the vehicle.

There are two responses to Bid No. 2020-03:

Adamson Police Products $12,613.55 (lowest)
Nielsens' Equipment Maintenance $16,772.80

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
On April 7th, 2020, your Board authorized the purchase of mobile devices for use with the CAD/RMS/911 
communication system. We have been field testing these devices and determined the safest way to have them in 
vehicles is to purhase vehicle mounted docking stations.
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your board could choose not to purchase the mobile tablet mounts. Staff does not recommend this action. These 
docking stations will increase accuracy of data collected, facilitate compliance with state mandates and allow for 
deputies to write reports in the field and access CAD/RMS information remotely.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Auditor



Agenda Request 
Page 2

Budget Officer
Purchasing
 
FINANCING:
With the approval of this budget amendment, there will be sufficiant funding in the Sheriff General budget 
022700, expense code 5112. There is sufficient funding in the AB443 Small and Rural County Law Enforcement 
account to facilitate this transfer. No County General Fund will be utilized for this purchase.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Bid Tabulation Sheet & Bids
 
APPROVALS:
Riannah Reade Created/Initiated - 11/2/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 11/2/2020
Riannah Reade Approved - 11/2/2020
Denelle Carrington Approved - 11/2/2020
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 11/2/2020
Amy Shepherd Approved - 11/2/2020
Jeffrey Hollowell Final Approval - 11/3/2020

























County of Inyo

County Administrator - Emergency Services
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  November 17, 2020 

FROM:  County Administrator 
 
SUBJECT:  Emergency Services Manager Contract Amendment 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve Amendment No. 1 to the agreement between the County of Inyo and Kelley Williams for 
the provision of personal services as Emergency Services Manager, effective November 26, 2020, and authorize 
the County Administrator to sign.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
During the COVID emergency, it became apparent that the Emergency Services Manager must perform at a 
much higher level than was expected when the position was created. It requires substantive coordination both 
within our organization and with outside organizations. The County has recently conducted a compensation study 
that included the Emergency Services Manger position.  The results showed the position did in fact merit an 
adjustment. The salary that is proposed herein is consistent with the market based on that compensation study.  

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 

 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Not approve contract amendment and continue in its current form.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:

 
FINANCING:
Budget 023700 - Disaster  (50%) 
Budget 623820 - 2020 EMPG (50%/50%)
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Williams Amendment 1
 
APPROVALS:
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 11/10/2020
Sue Dishion Approved - 11/10/2020



Agenda Request 
Page 2

Marshall Rudolph Approved - 11/10/2020
Amy Shepherd Final Approval - 11/10/2020



AMENDMENTNUMBER 1 TO
AGREEMENT BETWEEN GOUNW OF INYO

KELLEYWLLIAMS
FORTHE PROVISION OF PERSONAL SERVICES

AS EMERGENCY SERVICES MANAGER

WHEREAS, the County of lnyo (hereinafter referred to as "Coung") and Kelley Williams
(hereinafter referred to as "Emergency Services Manager"), have entered into an Agreement for the
Provision of Personal Services dated April 19, 2018, on County of lnyo Standard Contract No. 208, for the
term from April 19,2018, untilterminated.

WHEREAS, County and Emergency Services Manager do desire and consent to amend such
Agreement as set forth below;

WHEREAS, such Agreement provides that it may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or
subtracted from, by the mutual consent of the parties thereto, if such amendment or change is in written
form, and executed with the same formalities as such Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement
to maintain continuity.

County and Contractor hereby amend such Agreement as follows:

As of the effective date of this Amendment, Attachment B (Schedule of Fees) is amended to read as set
forth in the revised Attachment B, which is aftached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference.

The effective date of this Amendment to the Agreement is November 17. 2020

All the other terms and conditions of the Agreement are unchanged and remain the same.

Amendment 'l to County of lnyo Standard Contract - No, 208
Page 1

062912



ATTACHMENT B
(REVTSED)

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND KELLEY WILLIAMS

FOR THE PROVISION OF PERSONAL SERVICES
AS EMERGENCY SERVICES MANAGER

TERM:

FROM: April 19, 2018 TO: TERMINATION

SCHEDULE OF FEES:

1 . Effective November 26, 2020, and continuing until May 26,2021, Emergency Services Manager
shall be paid $3,786.35 every two weeks on County paydays (i.e,, a total of 14 pay periods at that
amount). Said amount includes a component for "longevity." Effective May 27,2021, Emergency
Services Manager shall be paid at Range 82, Step E (currently $7,677 perhonth), plus appiicabl-e
longevity pay, every two weeks on County paydays.

2. . -The 
County Administrator will review Emergency Services Manager's performance annually. As a

result of such review, the County Administrator may authorize an increase or decrease in Emergency
Services Manager's salary to a higher step in the range for Emergency Services Manager's position.-

3. To the extent not inconsistent with any other provision of this contract, the terms and conditions of
Emergency Services Manager's employment inatt atio be covered by the County's Personnel Rules and
Regulations. an! by the Non-Represented Employees' Resolution. (Note: amongj other things, Articles Xll
and Xlll of the Personnel Rules and Regulations, dealing with Disciplinary Procedures/Appeals and
Grievances, will not apply to Emergency Services Manager's employment.) '

4. County will provide a Coun$ vehicle for use. County vehicle will be housed at 163 May Street.

qr . llergency Services Manager is entitled to forty paid administrative hours off every fiscal year.
The administrative leave hours shall not accumulate and will be lost if not utilized during the fiscal year.
The administrative leave shall have no cash value.

6. Effective November 25, 2020, Emergency Services Manager shall no longer be entifled to receive
"on call" pay. lt has also been determined that, through no fau-lt of either pariy, Emergency Services
Manager has received an overpayment of $3,775.00 in pievious on-call pay, which-she shail repay no later
than May 26,2021.



AMENDMENTNUMBER 1 TO
AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

KELLEYWLLIAMS
FOR THE PROVISION OF PERSONAL SERVICES

AS EMERGENCY SERVICES MANAGER

IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS
DAYOF , #

COUNTY OF INYO

By:

Name
Dated

Dated
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY:

County Counsel

APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM:

County Auditor

D AS TO PERSONNEL REQUIREMENTS:

nelServices

APPROVED AS TO RISKASSESSMENT:

{

,rt

Coun$ nager

DC_



County of Inyo

Clerk of the Board
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  November 17, 2020 

FROM:  Assistant Clerk of the Board 
 
SUBJECT:  Confirmation of Delegates and Alternates to the RCRC, Golden State Finance Authority, and 
Environmental Services Joint Powers Authority boards of directors 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board: A) confirm from among its members a delegate and alternate to the boards of directors for both 
the Rural County Representatives of California and the Golden State Finance Authority; and B) confirm a 
supervisor as delegate and a staff member as Inyo County's alternate to the Environmental Services Joint 
Powers Authority.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The Rural County Representatives of California (RCRC) requires each of its member counties to confirm a 
Delegate and Alternate to serve on the RCRC Board of Directors every calendar year. In anticipation of the first 
RCRC Board meeting of 2021, scheduled for January 13, the Board of Supervisors is being asked to make its 
selections this fall/winter so that they may be submitted to RCRC staff ahead of time. 

The Golden State Financial Authority (GSFA), a program of RCRC, also requires confirmation of member 
counties’ Delegates and Alternates for its Board of Directors. Traditionally, the same Supervisors selected to 
serve as the Delegate and Alternate for the RCRC Board of Directors are confirmed as the Delegates and 
Alternates for the GSFA. 

RCRC also requires member counties to confirm a Delegate and at least one Alternate to the board of directors 
for the Environmental Services Joint Powers Authority (ESJPA). The ESJPA bylaws require that a Supervisor be 
the Delegate. Alternates are generally a staff member in charge of solid waste/recycling programs for the county. 
Last year - at the suggestion of the Assistant County Administrator - the Board confirmed Recycling and Waste 
Management Superintendent Cap Aubrey as Inyo County's Alternate.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
Chairperson Matt Kingsley currently serves as Inyo County's delegate on the RCRC, GSFA, and ESJPA boards 
of directors. Supervisor Rick Pucci serves as the alternate to the RCRC and GSFA boards. 

Chairperson Kingsley is also finishing out his term as Immediate Past Chair of RCRC.

Recycling and Waste Management Superintendent Cap Aubrey is Inyo County's alternate to the ESJPA board.
 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose not to confirm new Board of Directors representatives for RCRC or the Golden State 
Financial Authority and Environmental Services Joint Powers Authority, but this is not recommended, as the 
confirmations are required of member counties. Your Board could also choose to wait until after the new year to 
makes its selections.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
RCRC
 
FINANCING:
There are no fiscal impacts to the County associated with these confirmations.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Rural County Representatives of California (RCRC) 2021 Memo Form
2. Golden State Finance Authority (GSFA) 2021 Memo Form
3. Environmental Services Joint Powers Authority (ESJPA) 2021 Memo Form
 
APPROVALS:
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 11/10/2020
Darcy Ellis Final Approval - 11/10/2020



 
 

 

RURAL COUNTY REPRESENTATIVES OF CALIFORNIA 

 1215 K STREET, SUITE 1650   SACRAMENTO, CA 95814   PHONE: 916-447-4806   FAX: 916-448-3154    WEB: WWW.RCRCNET.ORG 
 

  

To:   RCRC Board of Directors 
  RCRC Board Alternates 
  RCRC Member County CAO’s 
  RCRC Member County Clerks of the Board 
 

From:  Greg Norton, President & CEO 

Date:   November 5, 2020 

Re:  Designation of the 2021 RCRC Board of Directors, Delegates and 
Alternates - ACTION REQUIRED 

  

As we’re approaching the end of another year, this is a reminder that annually the Rural 
County Representatives of California (RCRC) requires confirmation of each member 
county’s Delegate and Alternate to the RCRC Board of Directors.  The first RCRC Board 
Meeting of 2021 and Installation of Officers will be held virtually on January 13th.   
 
To ensure we have the necessary Delegate and Alternate confirmations, once 
determined, please utilize the attached designation form to provide your county’s 
election/appointment.  Please forward the formal confirmation to RCRC as soon as 
possible.  The confirmation can be sent via e-mail to Maggie Chui at  mchui@rcrcnet.org, 
or mailed to: 
 
            Rural County Representatives of California 
            1215 K Street, Suite 1650 
            Sacramento, CA 95814 
            Attn: Maggie Chui 
 
Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any questions or require additional 
information. Thank you for your assistance with this information.  
 
Attachment 

• RCRC Designation Form 
 

mailto:mchui@rcrcnet.org


 

 

Designation of 2021 Delegate and Alternate Supervisors for the  

Rural County Representatives of California (RCRC) Board of Directors 

 

Date:  ____________________________________________ 

 

County: ____________________________________________ 

 

Delegate: Supervisor ___________________________________ 

 

Alternate: Supervisor ___________________________________ 

 

 

Authorization: 
 
 
 
_______________________________________________________ 



  
 
 
 

 

  

Golden State Finance Authority (GSFA) 

1215 K Street, Suite 1650      Sacramento, California  95814 

Phone: (855) 740-8422      Fax: (916) 444-3219        www.gsfahome.org 

 
 

To:   GSFA Board of Directors 
  GSFA Board Alternates 
  GSFA Member County CAO’s 
  GSFA Member County Clerks of the Board 

From:  Greg Norton, Executive Director   

Date:   November 5, 2020 

Re:  Designation of the 2021 GSFA Board of Directors, Delegates and 
Alternates - ACTION REQUIRED 

 
 

Annually, the Golden State Finance Authority (GSFA) requires confirmation of each 
member county’s Delegate and Alternate to the GSFA Board of Directors.  The first 
GSFA Board Meeting of 2021 will be held on January 13th. 
 
Upon determination, please provide confirmation of your county’s election/appointment, 
and forward the formal confirmation to GSFA as soon as possible.  The confirmation 
can be sent via e-mail to Maggie Chui at mchui@rcrcnet.org or mailed to: 
 
            Golden State Finance Authority 
            1215 K Street, Suite 1650 
            Sacramento, CA 95814 
            Attn: Maggie Chui 
 
Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any questions or require additional 
information. Thank you for your assistance with this information.  
 
Attachment 

• GSFA Designation Form 
 

http://www.gsfahome.org/
mailto:mchui@rcrcnet.org


 

 

Designation of 2021 Delegate and Alternate Supervisors for 

Golden State Finance Authority (GSFA) Board of Directors 

 

Date:  ____________________________________________ 

 

County: ____________________________________________ 

 

Delegate: Supervisor ___________________________________ 

 

Alternate: Supervisor ___________________________________ 

 

 

 

Authorization: 

 

________________________________________________________ 



 

 

 

Chair – Michael Kobseff, Siskiyou  County 

Vice Chair – Denise Carter, Colusa County 

Executive Director – Greg Norton  

 

Technical Advisory Group (TAG) 

TAG Chair – Tedd Ward, Del Norte County 

TAG Vice Chair –  Greg Stanton, El Dorado 

County 

Program Manager — Staci Heaton 

 

 

 

 

ALPINE, AMADOR, BUTTE, CALAVERAS, COLUSA, DEL NORTE, EL DORADO, GLENN, IMPERIAL, INYO, LAKE, LASSEN, MADERA, MARIPOSA, MODOC, MONO, 

NEVADA, PLUMAS, SHASTA, SIERRA, SISKIYOU, TEHAMA, TRINITY, TUOLUMNE 

1215 K STREET, SUITE 1650, SACRAMENTO, CA 95814   PHONE: 916-447-4806   FAX:  916-447-1667   WEB: WWW.ESJPA.ORG 

 

  To:   ESJPA Board of Directors 
  ESJPA Alternates 
  ESJPA CAO’s 
  ESJPA Clerks of the Board 
 

From:  Greg Norton, President & CEO 

Date:   November 5, 2020 

Re:  Designation of the 2021 ESJPA Delegates and Alternates - 
  ACTION REQUIRED 

 
The first ESJPA Board of Directors meeting of 2021 will be held on Thursday, March 11th. 
Please complete the attached designation form specifying the official Delegate and 
Alternate for your county.  
 
Upon the official determination by the county, please provide confirmation of your county’s 
election/appointment.  Please forward the formal confirmation to RCRC as soon as 
possible.  The confirmation can be sent via e-mail to Maggie Chui at mchui@rcrcnet.org 
or mailed to: 
 
            Rural County Representatives of California  
            1215 K Street, Suite 1650 
            Sacramento, CA 95814 
            Attn: Maggie Chui 
 
The ESJPA bylaws require that a Supervisor be the Delegate.   Alternates are generally 
a staff member in charge of solid waste/recycling programs for the county.  While 
there is no limit on the number of county staff who may attend the ESJPA meetings, only 
the officially designated Delegate or Alternate from each county will have voting rights. 
 
Additionally, all Delegates and Alternates will be required to comply with the ESJPA 
conflict of interest code and file a Form 700. 
 
Please do not hesitate to contact me at gnorton@rcrcnet.org or Staci Heaton, ESJPA 
Program Manager, at sheaton@rcrcnet.org if you have any questions or require additional 
information.  Thank you for your assistance in this matter.  
 
Attachment 

• ESJPA Designation Form 

mailto:mchui@rcrcnet.org
mailto:gnorton@rcrcnet.org
mailto:sheaton@rcrcnet.org


 

Designation of 2021 Delegate and Alternates for the  

Rural Counties’ Environmental Services Joint Powers Authority (ESJPA)  

Board of Directors 

 

Date:  ____________________________________________ 

 

County: ____________________________________________ 

 

Delegate: Supervisor ___________________________________ 

 

1st Alternate: ____________________________________________ 

 

2nd Alternate: ____________________________________________ 

 

*An Alternate is generally a staff member who is in charge of solid waste /recycling programs for 

the member county.  While there is no limit on the number of county staff who may attend the ESJPA 

meetings, only the officially designated Delegate or Alternate will have voting rights.  Please note 

that all Delegates and Alternates will be required to comply with the ESJPA’s conflict of interest 

code and file a Form 700. 

 

Authorization: 

 

________________________________________________________ 



County of Inyo

Clerk of the Board
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  November 17, 2020 

FROM:  Assistant Clerk of the Board 
 
SUBJECT:  Approval of Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve the minutes of the regular Board of Supervisors meeting of November 3, 2020.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The Board is required to keep minutes of its proceedings. Once the Board has approved the minutes as 
requested, the minutes will be made available to the public via the County’s webpage, www.inyocounty.us.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
N/A
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
N/A
 
FINANCING:
N/A
 
ATTACHMENTS:

 
APPROVALS:
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 11/10/2020
Darcy Ellis Final Approval - 11/10/2020


	 Call to Order
	1. PUBLIC COMMENT

	 Closed Session
	2. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATIO
	3. CONFERENCE WITH COUNTY’S LABOR NEGOTIATORS [Pursua

	 Open Session
	4. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	5. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION AS REQUIRED BY LAW.
	6. PUBLIC COMMENT
	7. COUNTY DEPARTMENT REPORTS (Reports limited to two 
	8. COVID-19 STAFF UPDATE

	 Departmental - Personnel Actions
	9. Request Board find that, consistent with the adopt
	Agenda Request Form

	10. Request Board, contingent upon the approval of the
	Agenda Request Form
	Case Investigator

	11. Request Board, contingent upon the approval of the
	Agenda Request Form
	Draft COVID-19 Program and Grant Manager

	12. Request Board, contingent upon the approval of the
	Agenda Request Form
	Infection Preventionist

	13. Request Board, contingent upon the approval of the
	Agenda Request Form
	Draft COVID-19 Response Coorinator


	 Consent Agenda
	14. Request Board: A) declare Malcolm Smith Motorsport
	Agenda Request Form
	ATV Bid
	Malcolm Smith Motor Sports Correction Letter

	15. Request Board: A) receive the 2020 Conflict of Int
	Agenda Request Form
	Ag Comm CIC Response
	PAPG CIC Response
	Public Works CIC Response
	Risk Management CIC Response
	Lone Pine Community Service District CIC Response
	Southern Inyo Fire Protection District CIC Response

	16. Request Board: A) declare Statewide Traffic Safety
	Agenda Request Form
	Bid Tab - Radar Speed Trailers
	BID RD20-01 - Statewide Safety Systems

	17. Request Board: A) declare Bishop Ford of Bishop, C
	Agenda Request Form
	Bid Tab - Ford Trucks
	BID RD20-05 - Bishop Ford

	18. Request Board: A) declare Silver State Barricade a
	Agenda Request Form
	Bid Tab - Compact Light Towers
	BID RD20-06 - Silver State

	19. Request Board: A) declare United Rentals of Ridgec
	Agenda Request Form
	Bid Tab - Tow Brooms
	Bid RD20-07 - United Rentals

	20. Request Board: A) declare Environmental Concepts o
	Agenda Request Form
	Bid Tab - Asphaltic Emulsion
	BID RD20-08 - Environmental Concepts

	21. Request Board:
A)approve the purchase agreement be
	Agenda Request Form
	IWVWD Purchase Agreement
	IWWD Highway Easement Deed
	IWWD Resolution No. 2020-43
	Nunez Purchase Agreement
	Nunez Highway Easement Deed
	Nunez Resolution No. 2020-44


	 Departmental
	22. Request the Board receive a presentation and provi
	DEVA SPW Civic Engagement for Inyo County

	23. Request Board receive a presentation from staff re
	Agenda Request Form
	The Nature Conservancy Chicago Valley Full Application Form
	Vicinity Map
	Parcels Map
	Comment Letter 11.17.2020 Wildlife Conservation Board
	Comment Letter 11.17.2020 Nature Conservancy

	24. Request Board approve the Fiscal Year 2020-2021 EL
	Agenda Request Form
	ELC BUDGET REQUEST DETAIL

	25. Request Board ratify and approve a contract with M
	Agenda Request Form
	Dietician Services Agreement

	26. Request Board: A) amend the Fiscal Year 2020-2021
	Agenda Request Form
	Sunridge Quote

	27. Request Board: A) amend the Fiscal Year 2020-2021
	Agenda Request Form
	Bid Tabulation Sheet & Bids

	28. Request Board approve Amendment No. 1 to the agree
	Agenda Request Form
	Williams Amendment 1

	29. Request Board: A) confirm from among its members a
	Agenda Request Form
	Rural County Representatives of California (RCRC) 2021 Memo Form
	Golden State Finance Authority (GSFA) 2021 Memo Form
	Environmental Services Joint Powers Authority (ESJPA) 2021 Memo Form

	30. Request Board approve the minutes of the regular B
	Agenda Request Form


	 Comment
	31. PUBLIC COMMENT

	 Board Members and Staff Reports

	applicable items: 
	undefined: 
	undefined_2: 
	undefined_3: 
	undefined_4: 
	Contact Person: 
	Department: 
	Mailing Address: 
	Date of Review of Departmental Conflict of Interest Code: 
		2020-10-27T13:47:01-0700
	Nathan Reade




